Public Document Pack

Service Director — Legal, Governance and

Commissioning

@ K i r klees Julie Muscroft

COUNCIL The Democracy Service

Civic Centre 3
High Street
Huddersfield
HD1 2TG

Tel: 01484 221000

Please ask for: Jenny Bryce-Chan

Email: jenny.bryce-chan@kirklees.gov.uk
Wednesday 6 December 2017

Notice of Meeting
Dear Member
Health and Wellbeing Board

The Health and Wellbeing Board will meet in the Council Chamber - Town
Hall, Huddersfield at 3.00 pm on Thursday 14 December 2017.

This meeting will be webcast live and will be available to view via the Council’s website.

The items which will be discussed are described in the agenda and there are reports
attached which give more details.

ﬂ My wrj/

Julie Muscroft
Service Director — Legal, Governance and Commissioning

Kirklees Council advocates openness and transparency as part of its democratic
processes. Anyone wishing to record (film or audio) the public parts of the meeting should
inform the Chair/Clerk of their intentions prior to the meeting.



The Health and Wellbeing Board members are:-

Member
Councillor David Sheard (Chair)

Councillor Donna Bellamy
Councillor Kath Pinnock
Councillor Erin Hill

Rory Deighton

Dr David Kelly

Carol McKenna

Dr Steve Ollerton

Richard Parry

Rachel Spencer-Henshall
Fatima Khan-Shah
Priscilla McGuire
Councillor Viv Kendrick
Steve Walker



Agenda
Reports or Explanatory Notes Attached

Pages
Membership of the Board/Apologies

This is where members who are attending as substitutes will say for
whom they are attending.

Contact: Jenny Bryce-Chan, Principal Governance Officer

Minutes of previous meeting 1-6

To approve the Minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 28
September 2017.

Contact: Jenny Bryce-Chan, Principal Governance Officer

Interests 7-8

The Board Members will be asked to say if there are any items on
the Agenda in which they have disclosable pecuniary interests,
which would prevent them from participating in any discussion of the
items or participating in any vote upon the items, or any other
interest.

Admission of the Public

Most debates take place in public. This only changes when there is a
need to consider certain issues, for instance, commercially sensitive
information or details concerning an individual. You will be told at
this point whether there are any items on the Agenda which are to
be discussed in private.

Deputations/Petitions

The Board will receive any petitions and hear any deputations from
members of the public. A deputation is where up to five people can
attend the meeting and make a presentation on some particular
issue of concern. A member of the public can also hand in a petition
at the meeting but that petition should relate to something on which
the body has powers and responsibilities.

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 (2), Members of the
Public should provide at least 24 hours’ notice of presenting a
deputation.



10:

11:

Public Question Time

The Board will hear any questions from the general public.

Kirklees Safeguarding Adults Board 2016/17 Annual 9-56
Report

This report presents for information the 2016/17 Kirklees
Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report.

Contact: Mike Houghton-Evans, Independent Chair, Kirklees
Safeguarding Adults Board

Children & Adolescence Mental Health Service (CAMHS) 57 - 166
Local Transformation Plan Refresh

This Report presents the draft 2017 Kirklees CAMHS Local
Transformation Plan Refresh, for approval.

Contact: Tom Brailsford, Head of Joint Commissioning Children.
Tel: 01484 221000

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment Post Consultation 167 -
174

To present to the Board information summarising the responses
received post Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment consultation.

Contact: Nicola Bush, Public Health Pharmaceutical Advisor. Tel:
01484 221000

Proposals for Integrated governance arrangements for 175 -
Commissioning Health and Social Care in Kirklees 178

This report seeks the Boards support for the emerging proposals for
integrated commissioning governance arrangements

Contact: Steve Brennan, Senior Responsible Officer Working
Together. Tel: 01924 504913

Date of next meeting

To note that the next formal meeting of the Health and Wellbeing
Board will be on 22 March 2018.




Agenda Item 2:

Contact Officer: Jenny Bryce-Chan

KIRKLEES COUNCIL

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

Thursday 28th September 2017

Present:

Apologies:

In attendance:

Observers:

Councillor David Sheard (Chair)
Councillor Donna Bellamy

Rory Deighton

Dr David Kelly

Carol McKenna

Dr Steve Ollerton

Richard Parry

Rachel Spencer-Henshall
Fatima Khan-Shah

Councillor Viv Kendrick

Councillor Kath Pinnock
Councillor Erin Hill
Priscilla McGuire

Steve Walker

lan Holmes - Director, West Yorkshire and Harrogate
Sustainability and Transformation Partnership

Helen Bewsher — Senior Manager, Public Health
Intelligence

Owen Richards — Public Health Intelligence Senior
Project Officer

Clir Elizabeth Smaje — Chair of Health and Adults Social
Care Scrutiny Panel

Nina Birt — Interim Head of Primary Care Support &
Development

Rachel Carter — Interim Head of Strategic Primary Care
Projects

Tom Brailsford — Joint Commissioning Manager

Nicola Bush — PH Pharmaceutical Advisor

Phil Longworth — Health Policy Officer

Catherine Riley — Calderdale Huddersfield Foundation
Trust

DCI Michael Brown — West Yorkshire Police

Carol Harris — South West Yorkshire Partnership MHS
Trust

Page 1



Health and Wellbeing Board - 28 September 2017

Membership of the Board/Apologies
Apologies from the following Board Members were received: Councillor Kath
Pinnock, Councillor Erin Hill, Steve Walker and Priscilla McGuire.

Minutes of previous meeting
That the minutes of the 29 June 2017 be approved as a correct record.

Interests
No interests were declared.

Admission of the Public
All agenda items were considered in public session.

Deputations/Petitions
No deputations or petitions received.

Public Question Time
No questions were asked.

West Yorkshire and Harrogate Sustainability and Transformation Partnership
Update

lan Holmes, Director, West Yorkshire and Harrogate Sustainability and
Transformation Partnership (STP) attended the meeting to update the Board on the
development of the West Yorkshire and Harrogate STP. The Board was advised
that the West Yorkshire and Harrogate STP footprint is the second largest in the
country with a significant geographical footprint covering a diverse population of 2.6
million people. There are six strong places in West Yorkshire and Harrogate and
the STP is a collection of these rather than a top down plan. The philosophy is that
transformation and change are best delivered locally.

The Board was advised that the document published last year and presented to the
Board in November 2016, was not intended to be a reflection of all the work being
undertaken in those six places or on a West Yorkshire level. Rather than a plan it is
an umbrella partnership of organisations working to a common set of aims and
objectives. There are benefits to working together and collaborating across a bigger
footprint and when collaboration happens one of three questions needs to be
considered.

1) Is it a scale issue — does the issue need to be looked at on a bigger than a
place footprint for example the cancer programme

2) Is it a best practice issue - is there learning from each other and across a
West Yorkshire footprint that can be adopted elsewhere

3) Is it a wicked issue — is the issue a significant challenge and would it make
sense to work together to come up with a solution.

This describes the approach being taken across West Yorkshire and Harrogate.

The vision set out in the document is very similar to the vision set out in the Kirklees
Strategic Plan.

Page 2



Health and Wellbeing Board - 28 September 2017

The Board was informed that although each of the six places are different in terms
of their relationships and population there are a set of themes emerging. These
include: for places to be healthy, stronger focus on prevention and inequalities, for
support self-care to be the norm and for people to be empowered to look after
themselves. It is also important that when people need services these should be
joined up, integrated and planned around their needs rather than organisational
structures.

Since the production of the document fairly good progress had been made and
progress can be considered in terms of delivery within the programmes of work,
strengthening partnership working across the footprints and the capacity that has
been built so that the work can be done well across West Yorkshire.

The Board was informed that since November 2016, through the STP, £31 million in
transformation funding had been secured from national bodies and the hope is that
extra funding for Cancer services will be announced in the next couple of months.
Strong bids that describes working in partnerships across the West Yorkshire and
Harrogate footprint and the work being done has been recognised and backed by
national bodies.

Further work needs to be done on communication and engagement. When the plan
was first published concerns were raised that there had been no engagement with
the public or with the established democratic processes. Since then a forward plan
of all the consultation and engagement that will take place across the footprint and
across each place has been published. In addition, there has been a significant
piece of engagement work led by Rory Deighton and the results are on the website.
There will be engagement on cancer and maternity services and a plan going
forward on how there can be meaningful conversations with the public regarding
things that are important.

The Board was advised that governance had progressed and a joint committee of
Clinical Commissioning Groups had been established with an independent lay chair.
This committee met in public in July for the first time and has a work plan and will
meet every second month to consider issues where working together across West
Yorkshire and Harrogate as commissioners is needed. Acute trusts have
established a committee in common a formal vehicle which allows working together
on shared priorities across the patch and Mental Health Services are looking to do
something similar.

The Board was informed that the next steps will be refreshing the financial strategy
across the West Yorkshire and Harrogate footprint, moving to a financial strategy
which better describes how the money is spent. In addition, publishing a one year
on next steps document which will describe that these were the aspirations in
Oct/Nov 2016 and this is what has been achieved. The intention is to work with
Health and Wellbeing Boards to finalise that document. The Board questioned
whether there was a target date for the next steps document and was advised mid
to late November.

The Board was informed that recruitment is currently taking place for a Health
partnerships post for West Yorkshire & Harrogate hosted by Leeds Council who are

3
Page 3



Health and Wellbeing Board - 28 September 2017

the health lead for councils across West Yorkshire. The purpose is to improve
partnership working and engagement with local councils and develop a way of
working with national bodies.

The Board commented that the mental health section was positive in bringing
priorities together however, as local authorities have responsibility to have a suicide
prevention plan it should be included in the discussions. In response the Board was
advised that there does need to be a link between the local authorities the working
group of the mental health trust and the CCG’s.

RESOLVED - That the information be noted by the Board.

Updated Kirklees Joint Strategic Assessment (KJSA) Overview 2017/18
Rachel Spencer-Henshall, Service Director Policy, Intelligence and Public Health
introduced the updated Kirklees Joint Strategic Assessment advising that the Health
and Wellbeing Board is obliged to produce a KJSA which describes the health and
wellbeing of its population. The Board was reminded that at a previous meeting, it
had endorsed a new approach that focused on community assets as well as
community needs. A Kirklees overview is produced on a twelve to twenty four
month basis and gives the high level strategic needs and assets of the community.

Helen Bewsher and Owen Richards presented the updated Kirklees Joint Strategic
Assessment Overview 2017/18, which summarised the key population issues and
challenges. The Board was advised that the information is updated on a regular
basis and is published online. It was agreed to continue with the infographics format
as it had been well received.

The Board was given the following overview of information in the KJSA:-

- the key challenges are the same as those highlighted last year and the way
to tackle those challenges also remains the same

- There had been a shift to an asset approach, and an emphasis on starting
with what is strong and not what is wrong

- The changing profile such as an aging population will place demands on the
social and healthcare system

- A significant change in the ethnic make-up in the last 7 years which creates a
very diverse population with different needs

- Kirklees has some very deprived areas as well as areas of affluence

The Board raised questions in respect of inequalities and whether there was any
information to show the comparison of ethnicity and social deprivation. Questions
were also raised in respect of anxiety and depression and how and what was
measured. The Board was advised that it was based on self-reported from the CLIK
survey.

RESOLVED -
(a) that the Board continues to receive regular updates

(b) that the updated Kirklees overview be endorsed and supported by the Board
(c) that the ongoing development of the KJSA be supported by the Board

4
Page 4



10

Health and Wellbeing Board - 28 September 2017

Kirklees Integrated Healthy Child Programme update report

Tom Brailsford, Joint Commissioning Manager advised the Board that the newly
commissioned Kirklees Integrated Healthy Child Programme went live on the 1 April
2017 and operates under a partnership called ‘Thriving Kirklees’. The partnership
includes Locala, South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust,
Northorpe Hall and the Yorkshire Children Centre and has a clear governance
structure in place. Thriving Kirklees brings together a number of services such as
Health Visiting, Family Nurse Partnership, School Nursing and Children and
Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) tiers two and three.

The programme has a detailed mobilisation plan which identifies opportunities,
threats and mitigation against risks. Since it was established, Thriving Kirklees had
achieved a number of things including:
- the continuation of service delivery without disruption
- the development of a number of joint work streams involving representation
from Public Health to ensure transformation is evidence based and timely
- the development of a new 24/7 single point of contact for all services within
the programme. It is planned to go live on the 2 October 2017.

The Board was advised that an important aspect has been moving away from the
traditional Health Visiting and School Nursing Roles, to a skill mix of 0-19 teams.
This has now started and is led by Public Health Intelligence Leads and Health
visitors and school nurses are now working in dual roles. Another important aspect
is the Schools as Community Hubs Programme which will ensure an integrated
approach within the community.

RESOLVED -

a) That the successful implementation of the contract be noted by the Board
b) That the Board supports the strategic transformation of the Healthy Child
Programme

Primary Care Strategy Update - Greater Huddersfield CCG and North Kirklees
Carol McKenna, Chief Officer, Greater Huddersfield CCG introduced the Primary
Care Strategy advising that the strategies of the two CCG’s had previously been
presented to the Board and the information being presented was by way of an
update.

The Board was informed that in 2016, the General Practice Forward View was
published and it was helpful to see that the key messages were largely reflected in
the strategies of the two CCGs. Key messages from the national and local
strategies include:

- Funding in general practice had not kept pace with investments elsewhere in
the NHS. The share of spend on general practice services now needs to be
increased.

- There are major pressures on primary care capacity.

The Board'’s view was sought on the implications for the overall Health and Social
Care systems particularly in terms of the development of Primary Care. The Board

Page 5



11

12

13

Health and Wellbeing Board - 28 September 2017

was advised that it would be difficult to maintain successful Primary Care in Kirklees
without the support of wider partners.

RESOLVED - That the Board note the update on the Primary Care Strategy and
endorse the Strategic objectives of the programme.

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment Notification and Preparation for
Consultation

Rachel Spencer-Henshall presented the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA)
advising that the paper provides information on the PNA consultation, information on
new updates and changes and details with regard to gaps in pharmacy provision.

The Board was informed that the Regulations require Health and Wellbeing Boards
to publish a revised assessment within three years of the previous assessment.
The three year term of the current PNA which started in April 2015 will come to an
end on 31 March 2018. The report outlines updates that the Board needs to be
aware of and to get formal sign off to begin the consultation.

The Board was advised that the intention is to move into public consultation on the
draft PNA for a period of 60 days on the 2 October 2017 and close on the 1
December 2017. The draft PNA, taking into account comments received will be
reviewed in January 2018. A paper will be brought back to the Board in February
2018.

In summary, the Board was informed that:-

- The Market Entry Change to Regulations which allows NHS pharmacy
businesses to consolidate the services provided on two or more sites onto a
single site

- The Pharmacy Access Scheme was introduced as one of the elements of the
Community Pharmacy Reform

- The flu vaccine previously commissioned locally has become a nationally
commissioned Advance Service.

- There are still enough pharmacies in Kirklees.

RESOLVED - That the pharmaceutical Needs Assessment notification and
preparation for consultation be noted and endorsed by the Board.

NHS Greater Huddersfield - CCG Annual Report and Accounts 2016/ 17

Carol McKenna, Chief Officer, Greater Huddersfield CCG advised that previous
practice was for the Greater Huddersfield CCG Annual Report and Accounts to be
presented to the Board. In future, the intention is not to put the document on the
meeting agenda but to publish it on the website and direct the Board to the website.

RESOLVED - That the NHS Greater Huddersfield CCG Annual Report and
Accounts 2016/17 be noted by the Board.

Date of next meeting
That the date of the next meeting, 14 December 2017 be noted by the Board.

Page 6



Agenda Item 3:

............................................ pareq g e
[N/A] ¢uoiresspisuod
lapun si1salajul ue aAey
NOA YaIym ul wall ayl ajiym (.1sal1u|
Bunsaw ayl woliy meipylim 1ay10, ue 10 1salalul
1Salaul 01 noA alinbal 1saJ91ul Areiunoad ajgeso|asip 1SaJa1ul

InoA jo uondiosap Jjaug

ay) Jo ainjeu ayl saoqg

e 0B9) 1salaiul Jo adA

ue aAey noA yaiym ui way|

10]|19UN0D JO aWweN

14 SONILIIN FILLINWOD/LINIGVI/TTONNOD

Ay¥vo9d ONIZE 1713M ANV HLTVIH
S1S3d31NI 40 NOILVAVY10dd

1IONNOD S THHINA

Page 7



"SSe|9 1ey Jo [euded aleys
PanssI [e10] 8y} JO Yipalpuny auo SPasdxa 1Salalul [elonauag e sey ‘1auned [IA19 InoA 10 asnods InoA 10 ‘noA yaiym
Ul SSe[d auo Aue Jo saleys ayl JO anjeA [euiwou [e10] 8y} ‘SSe|9 auo ueyl aiow Jo SI Apoq ey jo [ended ateys ayi Hi
1o ‘Apoq
Teys Jo [ended areys panssi [e101 8y} JO Yipalpuny auo 10 000‘GZF SPaaIxXa SaNliNdas ayl JO anjeA [euiwou [e10} ay)
- Jayue (q)
pue ‘Aoyine 1o |1ounod JNoA Jo Balse ay) ul pue| Jo ssauisng jo ade(d e sey (ebpajmouy JInoA 01) Apoq eyl (e)
- a19ym Apoq e Jo sanundas ul sey Jauned [IA19 IN0OA 10 asnods INoA 10 ‘noA yaiym 1salaiul [eiolauaq Auy

"1SaJaul [elolauaq e sey ‘Jauned |IAID
INoA 10 asnods InoA 10 ‘noA yaiym uil Apog e SI Jueual ayl pue AlLioyine Jo [1I9unod INoA si piojpue| ayl - (ebpajmouy] INoA 01) alaym Aoueual Auy

*19buo| 1o yiuow e 10j Auoyine
10 [19UN02 INOA Jo BaJe ayl ul pue] Adn220 01 spjoy ‘Jauried [IA19 IN0A 10 asnods INoA 10 ‘noA yaiym (s1ayio yum Apuiol 1o suofe) aoual| Auy

*Allloyine 1o |1ouno9 INOA JO Bale ayl UuIylM SI Ydiym pue aAey ‘laurred |IAID INOA 10 asnods INoA 10 ‘noA yaiym pue| ul 1salaul [eidlauaq Auy
‘pabreydsip AN usag 1ou sey Yyaiym e
pue {palndaxa aQ 0] aJe SHIOM 1o papinoid ag 0] aJe S3JIAISS 10 SPO0B Yaiym Japun e

- Alloyine 1o |19unod INoA pue (1salalul [elolBuag e

sey ‘Jaunred [IAID IN0A 10 asnods InoA 10 ‘noA yaiym ul Apoq e 1o) Jauued [IAID INoA 10 asnods INoA 10 ‘nOA usamiaq apew SI YdIym 19euod Auy

'sasuadxa UoI1199]3 INOA Splemo] 10 ‘lagquiaw e se sannp 1no BuiAied ul noA Agq pasinoul sasuadxa Aue Jo 10adsal
ul pouad 1ueasjal ayl uiyum papiaoid o apew (Alioyine 1o |1IDunod JNOA Wl ueyl JaYylo) ujauaq eidueul) 1ayio Aue Jo uoisinoid 1o JuswAed Auy

‘'sayeuapun ‘suired |IAI9 10 asnods InoA 1o ‘noA yoiym ‘ureb 1o 11joad 10) UO palied uoRIOoA 10 uoissajold ‘apen ‘@210 QuawAiojdwa Auy

“Jaunred [IAID INOA a1am AUl JI Se U0 ‘9JIm J0 pueqsny se Bulall are noA woym yum uosiad Aue sapnjoul Jaunred [IAID 10 asnhods
0] 92uaJajal Auy "SajnJ [euoneU Mau ay] Japun s1salalul Aeiundad ajqesojasip 1noA are Aay) ‘s1salaiul Areiundad Buimol|o) ayi Jo Aue aney noA |

s1saJa1u| Alelunoad a|qeso|asig

S310N

Page 8



Agenda Iltem 7:

KIRKLEES HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

MEETING DATE: THURSDAY 14 DECEMBER 2017

TITLE OF PAPER: KIRKLEES SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD 2016/17 ANNUAL REPORT

1. Purpose of paper

This report presents for information the attached 2016/17 Kirklees Safeguarding Adults
Board Annual Report.

Background

2.1 The Kirklees Safeguarding Adults Board (KSAB) is a statutory strategic partnership which
brings together the main organisations working with adults at risk of abuse or neglect.
Hence, its membership includes: the Council, West Yorkshire Police, NHS organisations and
West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service. Its core purpose is to help and protect adults at
risk in its area.

2.2 In 2015 the board appointed its first Independent Chair and, in accordance with Care Act
guidance, the Independent Chair of the KSAB reports quarterly to the Council’s Chief
Executive on the work of the board.

2.3 In 2016/17 arrangements for lay membership on the Board were strengthened by the
recruitment of a second lay member. Great emphasis is given to this role and both
members critically challenge decision-making, provide a service user and carer perspective
and have played an active role in the work of the Board, including supporting the
Independent Chair at number of high profile events. One lay member is also on the Board
of Healthwatch and is able to provide useful links to that organisation.

2.4 Individual Board members take responsibility for reporting through their own
organisations, including the submission of annual progress reports to their executive
management body/board. This is to ensure that Adult Safeguarding requirements are
integrated into their organisation’s overall approach to service provision and service
development.

2.5 Each organisation actively plans and monitors its work around safeguarding, which
contributes to evidence for the Board’s performance framework and the Board’s annual
challenge event. The Board calls partners to account for their approach to safeguarding
adults through regular reporting and through the challenge event.

2.6 The principal purpose of the Board’s annual report is to identify progress made over the
past 12 months against the intentions laid out in the Board’s Three Year Strategic Plan
(here which is a rolling plan updated annually alongside the Board’s annual report) and to
lay out the work programme for the next 12 months.

Proposal

3.1 The report is being presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) as it is the forum
where key leaders from the health and social care system in Kirklees work together to
improve the health and wellbeing of the local population, reduce health inequalities and
tackle variances in the quality of health and social care.

3.2 As part of this role the HWB receives the KSAB Annual Report which helps to further
develop a shared understanding of the Board’s responsibilities and priorities and promote
a relationship where issues of common interest and concern are shared and challenged, in
a constructive and mutually supportive way.

3.3 In fulfilling part of their role the panel receives the KSAB Annual Report.

Page 9


https://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/adult-social-care-providers/pdf/kirklees-safeguarding-adults-board-strategic-plan.pdf

Financial Implications
None.

Sign off
Richard Parry, Strategic Director for Adults and Health, on 16 November 2017.

6.2

Next Steps

The report will be presented to the Health and Adult Social Care Scrutiny Panel on 13
March 2018. The Panel, which is made up of democratically elected members and
members of the public who volunteer to sit with Councillors on the Panel, has the powers
to:

e Hold decision makers to account

e Challenge and improve performance

e Support improvement that achieves better outcomes and value for money
¢ Influence decision makers with evidence based recommendations

e Bringin the views and evidence of stakeholders, users and citizens

Panel members have a unique role to act across the whole health and social care economy.
They are responsible for holding decision makers (ie the HWB, the Council, Clinical
Commissioning Groups, NHS England and providers), to account.

Recommendations
That the 2016/17 Kirklees Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report be received.

Contact Officer
Mike Houghton-Evans, Independent Chair, Kirklees Safeguarding Adults Board.

Page 10




S

Safeguardlng Adults

Board

Partners in
preventing

abuse and
neglect

Annual Report

2016/17 '



Contents page

Message from the Chair 2
Kirklees 3
Governance and accountability 4
Membership and attendance 5
Our vision and principles 7
Summary: Key achievements and work still to do 8
Board activity, achievements and progress in 2016/17 11
1 Leadership and collaboration 11
2 Assurance that adults are safequarded and supported to have choice 18
3 Preventative strategies 21
4 Multi-agency workforce development and specialist training 26
5 Effectiveness of partners safequarding arrangements 28
Agency achievements 32
Appendix 1 — Safequarding concerns and Deprivation of Liberty information 37
Appendix 2 — Work programme 2016-17 43
Appendix 3 — Board members 45
Back to cont?rjl'gge

12



Introduction from the Chair

Welcome to the Kirklees Safeguarding Adults Board annual report for 2016-17, the
second annual report since | became the first Independent Chair.

The principal purpose of our annual report is to identify progress made over the past
12 months against the intentions we have laid out in our strategic plan and to lay out
our work programme for the next 12 months against our updated 3 year strategic
plan.

Whilst we now have our strengthened infrastructure in place with two effective lay
members and the delivery group, chaired by the boards vice chair, and sub-groups
engaged in delivery of the work programme. We know we have more to do to
achieve our objectives. In particular over the next year we will be focusing on the
following:

e Use of data and better evaluation of the safeguarding effectiveness for
individuals, and our own effectiveness as a board. Our performance
framework is being refined to enable the Board to focus on key priority areas.

e Making safeguarding personal is a key priority and we want to do better at
understanding on how safeguarding interventions are affecting outcomes for
adults who experience abuse and neglect.

e Continued strong collaboration with Kirklees other strategic partnerships and
community engagement on transition issues and other areas of common
ground relating to safety and community wellbeing.

It is essential that the board continue to provide even-handed and objective
oversight, and challenges wherever issues of poor practice and unsatisfactory
outcomes are identified. We are clear about our function as system leaders with
others to work towards achieving our primary aim to keep the people of Kirklees
safe. As an outward facing board we are committed to collaborative ways of working.

As normal this Annual Report will be submitted to the Health and Wellbeing Board
and Overview and Scrutiny Panel. Board members will take it through their own
governance boards and in addition, as required by the Care Act 2014, it will be
shared with the Chief Executive and the leader of the local authority, the local
policing body and Healthwatch Kirklees.

1 CHL R

Mike Houghton-Evans
Independent Chair

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 13



Talking about Kirklees

Around 440,000 people live in Kirklees. It encompasses the two major centres of
Huddersfield and Dewsbury, and smaller towns of Batley, Birstall, Cleckheaton,
Denby Dale, Heckmondwike, Holmfirth, Kirkburton, Marsden, Meltham, Mirfield and
Slaithwaite. It is a place where:

» The population has increased by 8.4% since 2002, and is predicted to rise by a
further 9.9% by 2030.

* Projected increases are largest in very young and older adult age groups.

» Over three-quarters of the population are of White British ethnicity.

* One in ten people is of Pakistani ethnicity.

* Life expectancy is increasing but there are inequalities — those in the least deprived
areas live longer than those in more deprived areas.

* Demand for suitable and affordable accommodation outstrips supply.

» Asylum seekers and European economic migrants are contributing to the
emergence of new communities within Kirklees.

There are a number of significant factors affecting local health and wellbeing of these
people. These include the economic challenges facing the country and impact on
those who are more vulnerable; the increasing numbers of older people and their
needs for care and support.

Kirklees Council and its Partners have developed two important strategies to
respond to these challenges, and the opportunities available as well, The Joint
Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) and the Kirklees Economic Strateqgy (KES).

These two strategies set their own priorities and actions. They cover different ground
and do different things, yet are connected.

At the heart of both is commitment to achieve a shared aim, that, ‘No matter where
they live, people in Kirklees live their lives confidently, in better health, for
longer and experience less inequality’.

It aims for people to have control and manage life challenges, be resilient and feel
connected to others, and for them feel safe and included. The Kirklees Adults Board
has its Strategic Plan, as required by the Care Act 2014, which takes into account
this local background and context.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 14


http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/delivering-services/pdf/health-strategy.pdf
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/delivering-services/pdf/health-strategy.pdf
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/involve/entry.aspx?id=661
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/adult-social-care-providers/pdf/kirklees-safeguarding-adults-board-strategic-plan.pdf

What is the Kirklees Safeguarding Adults Board and what does it
do?

The Kirklees Safeguarding Adults Board (KSAB) brings together the main
organisations working with Adults at Risk including the Local Authority, West
Yorkshire Police and Health Agencies. Its core purpose is to help and protect adults
at risk in its area.

The board has overall governance of the policy, practice and implementation for
Safeguarding. It also has a key role in promoting the wider agenda so that
Safeguarding is seen as a responsibility for everyone. This year the Board has held
four meetings and an additional development session

In accordance with Care Act guidance, the Independent Chair reports quarterly to
the Local Authority Chief Executive on the work of the board. The board also has a
formal relationship with the Health and Wellbeing Board to ensure effective
accountability of its work

Individual board members take responsibility for reporting through their own
organisations, including the submission of annual progress reports to their executive
management body/board. This is to ensure that Adult Safeguarding requirements are
integrated into their organisation’s overall approach to service provision and service
development.

Each organisation actively plans and monitors its work around safeguarding, which
contributes to evidence for the board’s performance framework and the board’s
annual challenge event. The Board calls partners to account for their approach to
safeguarding adults through regular reporting and through the challenge event.

The Board is supported by an infrastructure — refreshed 18 months ago that

oversees and enables delivery of the work programme, coordinates Sub-Groups and
Task-and-Finish Groups and provides analysis and intelligence for the Board.

Safeguarding Adults Board 3to Syear
Strategic Plan

I Annual Work

Programme
Delivery Group ‘

! !

Task and Finish
Groups

Safeguarding
Adults Reviews

Sub Groups

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 15



As a strategic partnership it is essential that the partners share the chairing and
membership of the Delivery Group and the Sub Groups. The Delivery Group is
chaired by the vice chair of the board and has set about co-ordinating the
development and implementation of priorities outlined in the strategic plan.

Who are our Members?

The board is made up of senior officers nominated by each member organisation.
They are required to sign a membership agreement, which reflects the board’s
constitution, and information sharing agreement.

Members have sufficient delegated authority to effectively represent their agency
and to make decisions on their agency's behalf. If they are unable to attend board
meetings for any reason they send, with the chairs permission, a nominated
representative of sufficient seniority.

During 2016 - 17 the following agencies and organisations were members of the
Kirklees Safeguarding Adults Board:

Kirklees Council Adult Social Care

Kirklees Council Commissioning and Health Partnerships
Kirklees Council Housing

West Yorkshire Police

West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service

NHS North Kirklees Clinical Commissioning Group

NHS Greater Huddersfield Clinical Commissioning Group
South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
Calderdale and Huddersfield NHS Foundation Trust

The Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust

NHS England

Locala Community Partnerships

We have strengthened our arrangements for lay membership on the board and have
recruited a second lay member. We give great emphasis to this role and both
members critically challenge decision-making, provide a service user and carer
perspective and have played an active role in the work of the board, including
supporting our Independent Chair at number of high profile events. One lay member
is also on the Board of Healthwatch and is able to provide useful links to that
organisation.

The expectation is that all members attend all board meetings and despite
continuous, rapid organisational change in all partner agencies there has been
excellent attendance. If for any reason members have been unable to attend their
nominated deputy has usually attended.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 16



Agency

Attendance for
2016-2017 (%)

Chair — Mike Houghton-Evans 100
Greater Huddersfield CCG 100
Mid Yorkshire NHS Trust 75
South West Yorkshire NHS Trust 100
Kirklees — Director of Commissioning, Public
Health and Adult Social Care 100
Kirklees Social Care and Wellbeing for Adults

100
Kirklees Council — Commissioning and Health
Partnerships 100
Kirklees Legal Services 100
Kirklees Council Housing Services 75
West Yorkshire Police 100
Locala 100
West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue 100
North Kirklees CCG 100
Calderdale & Huddersfield NHS Trust 100
NHS England 75
Lay member 50

The following attend in an advisory capacity:

Kirklees Council Legal Services

Business Support Manager

During 2015-16 Sub-Groups of the board were:

Delivery Group
Safeguarding Adults Review
Training and Development
Quality and Performance

Kirklees Safeguarding Partnership Manager
Kirklees Deputy Safeguarding Partnership Manager

All of these groups have multi-agency membership. The Sub-Groups have met

regularly in between each board meeting.

The Safeguarding Adults Network and the Dignity and Dementia Network are also
Sub-Groups of the board. Their roles are to act as an information exchange and to
share learning and good practice for a wider group of agencies across the

partnership. This year two network events have been held.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge

17



This year there have been Task and Finish Groups working in partnership with other
boards in Kirklees, including planning and delivering Safeguarding Week 2016, and
across West, North Yorkshire, and York updating our Regional Policy and
Procedures. Task and Finish Groups have also worked on updating our guidance on
self-neglect, and refreshing the See Me and Care Campaign

What is our Vision?

The Care Act 2014 aims to:

e Promote people’s wellbeing.

e Enable people to prevent and postpone the need for care and support.

e Put people in control of their lives so they can pursue opportunities to realise their
potential.

Making Safeguarding Personal aims to develop a safeguarding culture that focuses
on the outcomes desired by people with care and support needs who may have
been abused.

We want to look further at the role people play in embedding the ‘Making
Safeguarding Personal’ approach across agencies, by establishing and developing a
broader engagement strategy, having a focus on qualitative reporting on outcomes
as well as quantitative measures, encouraging person-centred approaches to
working with risk and making sure policies and procedures are in line with a
personalised safeguarding approach.

Our vision

‘The citizens of Kirklees, irrespective of age, race, gender, culture, religion, disability
or sexual orientation are able to live with their rights protected, in safety, free from
abuse and the fear of abuse’

This Vision is based on these fundamental principles along with the Joint Health and
Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) and the Kirklees Economic Strategy (KES).

Our focus is on creating a culture where:

e Abuse is not tolerated.
e Following the principles of ‘Making Safeguarding Personal’, there is common
understanding and belief of what to do when abuse happens.

To make this vision a reality it is essential that agencies work together to:

e Prevent harm and reduce the risk of abuse or neglect to adults with care and
support needs.

e Ensure that they safeguard adults in a way that supports them in making choices
and having control about how they want to live.

e Proactively take steps to stop abuse or neglect.

e Ensure they have a competent and able workforce.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 18


http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/delivering-services/pdf/health-strategy.pdf
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/delivering-services/pdf/health-strategy.pdf
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/involve/entry.aspx?id=661

¢ Raise public awareness recognising the value local communities can play in
prevention and early intervention.

We work to the recognised six Safeguarding Principles:

e Empowerment: people being supported and encouraged to make their own
decisions and give informed consent.

Prevention: it is better to take action before harm occurs.

Proportionality: the least intrusive response appropriate to the risk presented.
Protection: support and representation for those in greatest need.
Partnership: local solutions through services working with their communities —
communities have a part to play in preventing, detecting and reporting neglect
and abuse.

e Accountability: and transparency in Safeguarding Practice.

These principles above underpin the delivery of our vision.

Summary: Our key priorities and update on board activity

This section of the report outlines our key priorities and summarises what we have
achieved over the year.

Our priorities are to:

1) Provide strategic leadership across Kirklees for Adult Safeguarding through
effective collaborative working.

This year we said we would work towards the Board and its members being visible
and outward facing. We also said we would work effectively with other strategic
partnerships.

Key achievements include:
v Undertaking joint partnership work with the West and North Yorkshire and City
of York Safeguarding Adults Boards.
v Signing up to a joint vision with Kirklees Safeguarding Children Board and
Community Safety Partnership, and holding a joint Safeguarding Week with
them developing our engagement strategy.

And next:
e Take the joint vision forward by continuing to work closely with other strategic
partnerships on themed areas.
e Improve our understanding and gain stronger evidence of community
awareness of safeguarding.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 19



2) Gain assurance that adults are safeguarded through timely and
proportionate responses when abuse or neglect have occurred, applying
‘Making Safeguarding Personal’ approaches.

We said we would continue to work toward Safeguarding Practice being focused on
outcomes and experience, not process. And that people who have experienced harm
are empowered and feel outcomes are improved.

Key achievements include:

v/ Continuing to develop practice in line with ‘Making Safeguarding Personal’.

v Delivering training that promotes and embeds ‘Making Safeguarding Personal’.

v" Auditing Safeguarding situations.

v Supporting Local Authority, as the lead partner agency for undertaking
Safeguarding enquiries, to encourage more proportionate reporting of abuse and
neglect.

And next:

e Continue to seek assurance that Making Safeguarding Personal is fully
understood as part of everyday practice and improve our analysis of data to
help us to do this

e Undertake themed audits where indicated through this analysis.

3) Support the development of and oversee preventative strategies that aim to
reduce instances of abuse and neglect.

Like last year, we said we would continue to support work on prevention and early
intervention and continue to promote prevention of financial abuse.

Key achievements include:

v Sharing learning from our Safeguarding Adults Reviews.

v' Developing strategic links with working to the Kirklees Early Intervention and
Prevention Programme.

v' Refreshing the See Me and Care campaign.

v" Holding a successful network event highlighting local best practice on preventing
financial abuse.

And next:
e Play our full part in contributing to the Kirklees wider prevention and early
intervention work through participation in the work of the newly formed Joint
Integration Board — Health, Social care and Housing.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 20



4) Promote multi-agency workforce development and consider any specialist
training that may be required.

This year we said we would disseminate learning across partners in Kirklees and
reflective practice is encouraged. And make sure The Mental Capacity Act (MCA) is
further embedded into practice.

Key achievements include:
v/ Continuing to run existing multi agency network events.

v' Using the Board’s Safeguarding Adults Review framework and providing training
for our Safeguarding Adults Review Sub Group members.

v" Promoting the Mental Capacity Act with an event for care providers focusing on
good practice.

v Evaluating our existing training approach.

And next:
e Continue with networking events as a key way of engaging with professionals
from across the system
e Continue our work to evaluate the impact of multi-agency training and identify
future need and approach.

5) Provide oversight of the effectiveness of partners’ safeguarding
arrangements and improvement plans.

Like last year, we said we would make sure the Board has assurance mechanisms in
place that enable it to hold agencies to account.

Key achievements include

Strengthening our lay membership.

Adopting a revised assurance framework.

Adopting a refreshed, independent, Agency Audit Framework.

Holding our annual Challenge Event for partners.

Commencing work looking at how to analyse data from our partner agencies, so
we can increase our understanding of the prevalence of abuse and neglect.

AN N NN

And next:
e Use the improved Assurance Framework to commission targeted audits and
strengthen challenge event interviews
e Use feedback from adults who use care and support services , carers,
advocates as well as Healthwatch and service providers to help us to do this

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 21

10



Work we have undertaken throughout 2016/17

This section highlights of some of the work that has been completed over the year. It
is organised around the key priorities described in the previous section.

1) Leadership and collaboration

Our Independent Chair says

“It is essential that the board continue to provide even-handed and objective
oversight, and challenges wherever issues of poor practice and unsatisfactory
outcomes are identified. We are clear about our function as system leaders with
others to work towards achieving our primary aim to keep the people of Kirklees
safe. As an outward facing board we are committed to collaborative ways of
working.”

Our members

We have built on work we started last year, when we appoint our first Independent
Chair. This year we wanted to make sure that the board and its members are more
accountable, visible and outward facing, so we have clarified the role of the Vice
Chair, a position taken by one of the board’ s statutory partners.

The Vice Chair is appointed for a period of 3 years, and acts as deputy to the
Independent Chair. This ensures consistent leadership across the partnership.

In the absence of the Independent Chair, the Vice Chair will chair meetings of the
KSAB, and provide impartial support and advice when requested.

The Vice Chair also plays a key part in the development of the Delivery Group by
leading and chairing it, and undertakes a leadership role in the continued
development of our partnership work.

The Delivery Group has been created to strengthen partnership ownership of the
boards’ work. It co-ordinates the development and implementation of objectives and
priorities outlined in the strategic plan, establishes Sub-Groups, Task-and-Finish
Groups and public engagement arrangements, as appropriate; and helps drive the
development of good practice in Safeguarding Adults work.

We've also strengthened our lay membership this year — by appointing a second lay
member. The role of the lay member has been crucially important for a number of
years, but as we seek to become more person centred and more participative in the
way we work, we recognised that it was important to increase the profile of this role.
They work at a strategic level to provide lay, service user and carer perspectives.

Our lay members are asked to attend board meetings and other meetings where the
lay member’s perspective is required. They assess evidence and information
provided at meetings to form views and opinions; they ask appropriate questions on
issues at board meetings and contribute to the formulation of board decisions.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 22

11



The board took another step to becoming more outward facing this year and now
publishes its minutes. This is to increase the transparency of the board’s actions and
achievements and those of its partner agencies. In turn, this should help to increase
public awareness of the independent nature of the board and how it seeks
assurances from its members regarding safeguarding issues.

Working with Healthwatch Kirklees and developing our Engagement Strategy:

We know we need to improve our understanding of community awareness of adult
abuse; our relationship with Healthwatch is one way of helping us do this. Last year
we broke new ground when it independently evaluated how much learning had taken
place in Kirklees following a Safeguarding Adults Review. We also consulted over
the development of our first Strategic Plan.

This year the relationship has continued to develop in a dynamic way. We asked
Healthwatch to support our Independent Chair and lay members at our annual
Challenge Event, when partners are asked to account for the work they have
undertaken. This provided an additional level of transparency and scrutiny.

We will continue to work in partnership with Healthwatch and our local third sector as
we fully implement our engagement strategy over the next year.

Healthwatch Kirklees is the independent consumer champion for the public in
Kirklees, on matters relating to Health and Social Care. It has a seat on the Health
and Wellbeing Board and contributes to feedback as part of commissioning and
decision making for local Health and Social Care Services.

‘Stronger together — working for a safe and healthy Kirklees’ —continuing to
Work effectively with other strategic partnerships and the Police and Crime
Commissioner:

There are five boards who work to promote safe and healthy communities across
Kirklees. Whilst each board has its own specific roles, the boards also have shared
values and, often, shared priorities and areas of work.

The boards already work together in helping to keep local people safe and healthy
within strong and supportive communities. At the same time, we recognise that
closer, more formal links will support our work and achieve a wide range of benefits -
contributing to a shared ethos of being person-centred with a focus on individual,
family and community wellbeing.

The five Kirklees Boards are the Safeguarding Children’s Board, the Safeguarding
Adult’s Board, the Community Safety Partnership, the Health and Wellbeing Board
and the Children’s Trust.

Safer Kirklees brings together the Council, Kirklees Neighbourhood Housing, West
Yorkshire Police, Fire and Rescue Service, the Office for the Police Crime
Commissioner and Offender Management Services to work with local people to
collectively make Kirklees a safer place. Its work focuses on reducing crime, tackling
anti-social behaviour, improving confidence and protecting people from serious
harm.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 23

12


http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/adult-social-care-providers/pdf/kirklees-safeguarding-adults-board-strategic-plan.pdfhttp:/www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/adult-social-care-providers/pdf/kirklees-safeguarding-adults-board-strategic-plan.pdf

Protecting people from serious harm includes a wide range of areas including
domestic abuse, child sexual exploitation, human trafficking, female genital
mutilation and preventing violent extremism.

All of these areas require community safety partners to work in collaboration with
those from Adult’s and Children’s to safeguard people at the earliest stage.

The Kirklees Safeguarding Children’s Board provides the framework for making sure
that effective services are provided by partner agencies, including Kirklees Council,
Health Organisations, West Yorkshire Police, West Yorkshire Probation, and the
voluntary/community sector, to safeguard and promote the welfare of children in
Kirklees, particularly protection from harm.

About 18 months ago, the Community Safety Partnership and the Safeguarding
Boards for Adults and Children recognised the need to work collaboratively to ensure
there were effective strategic and operational connections to keep people safe and
protect them from harm at the earliest opportunity. This approach is keenly supported
by the Police and Crime Commissioner, the work that we do feeds in to the
outcomes of the Health and Wellbeing Boards and the Children’s Trust.

Since then we have had some strategic workshops to take stock of the current
position and identify areas where we needed to focus on. As a result of this work, we
ensured there were better connections with some of the areas mentioned above and
for other areas it was about developing a new joint strategy to build on existing
approaches.

In October 2016 the partnerships came together for Kirklees’ first ever Safeguarding
Week to launch a joint statement reflecting our ambition.

Safeguarding Week had 2 key aims:

- To strengthen the extensive work undertaken by the 3 Boards and partner
agencies to safeguard children, young people and adults, and support
partners and staff in their safeguarding roles.

- Toraise public awareness around the services delivered - promoting key
messages for the week around keeping safe, speaking up if you have any
concerns, early intervention and prevention and importantly, breaking down
stigmas and fears around safeguarding.

e Avariety of communication methods were used, including pavement vinyls,
button badges, info-bus banners, information packs and Social media (Facebook
and Twitter) was also used.

e People from Kirklees Involvement Network (KIN), Kirklees Youth Council (KYC),
and Huddersfield Pakistani Community Alliance volunteered their time to get
involved in producing a video “What makes me feel safe”. This short film formed
part of the series of presentations at the launch event.

e 40 events and activities took place over the week including an Opening Launch.

e Use of theatre performances.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 24

13



Workshops and briefings included:

e Raising awareness of sexual violence.

e Raising awareness of Prevent — WRAP (Workshop to Raise Awareness of
Prevent).

e Making Safeguarding Personal.

e Domestic Abuse briefing including Live Safe Hub and Choices Perpetrator
Programme.

e Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS).

During the week we started work on proactively reporting on the work of the board,
highlighting areas of good practice and using social media as a way of disseminating
information. This included some work on raising community awareness of adult
abuse and neglect and how to respond.

Since Safeguarding Week and the launch of the statement, the Adults Board has
refreshed its protocol with the Health and Wellbeing Board and continues to develop
working relationships with these partnerships and with elected members. During the
year we have also undertaken joint work on the Female Genital Mutilation Strategy,
and received update reports from other cross cutting areas — such as Human
Trafficking, and ‘Prevent - WRAP”’.

The Kirklees FGM Strategy 2016 produced by all three Boards is focused on
preventing FGM through education, and identifying women and girls at risk so that
they can be protected from harm. Where FGM has occurred, either recently or at
some point in the past, the strategy ensures that appropriate support is put in place
for the woman or girl’s physical and emotional wellbeing.

Stronger together - working for a safe and healthy Kirklees

There are five boards who already AN —
‘ work together to help keep people

in Kirklees safe and healthy. {‘, ;i

[ =y |

A & AR

M donay wOpfloas?

helping to keep Kirklees safe and healthy
within strong and supportive communities.

Fr i ; A o
RLTLL' EAUBCAING LTS eeayone S usiness
o 2 J '

Kirklees Safeguarding Week 2016 moments
Back to conteqnts
‘JFgage 25

14



Undertaking joint partnership work with the West and North Yorkshire and City
of York Safeguarding Adults Boards

The Multi — Agency Safeguarding Adults Policy and Procedures currently in use
across West Yorkshire, North Yorkshire and York, were developed in accordance
with the requirements of the Care Act 2014, and implemented from April 2015. It was
always envisaged that a review would take place to ensure the procedures deliver
effective, proportional, person centred approaches that support people to be safe
and promote their wellbeing. This year, the Kirklees Safeguarding Adults Board has
been actively involved in the review, working closely with our regional colleagues on
this joint work to promote best practice.

Working with the Domestic Abuse Strategy Partnership to finalise a local
approach to Adult Safeguarding and domestic abuse

A significant proportion of people who need safeguarding support do so because
they are experiencing domestic abuse. Despite the clear overlap between work to
support people experiencing domestic abuse and safeguarding adults work, the two
have tended to develop as separate professional fields. The Care Act 2014 requires
clear strategic and practice links to be made between the approaches

In order for good practice to develop and flourish, there are steps that organisations
can take to provide the best environment to support good practice.

This includes:

e Ensuring that staff understands that many circumstances are both safeguarding
situations and domestic abuse, and that they have a range options with which to
work with people.

e Ensuring that organisational policies, protocols and procedures about
safeguarding explain the links with domestic abuse and, similarly, policies,
protocols and procedures about domestic abuse refer to safeguarding.

e Ensuring that there are effective and clear links and arrangements between
safeguarding services and MARACs (Multi agency risk Assessment
conferences).

e Ensure all relevant sectors of the workforce have access to training and
awareness raising, including integrated training that covers both safeguarding
and domestic abuse rather than treating them as separate issues.

e Contribute effectively to, and learn from, Safeguarding Adults Reviews, Serious
Case Reviews and Domestic Homicide Reviews identifying what organisational
changes can be made in order to reduce the risk of death and serious harm
occurring in the future.

This year the board has been working closely with the Domestic abuse partnership
here in Kirklees to help make these links better understood.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge

15



Promoting a learning culture by undertaking Safeguarding Adults Reviews,
and sharing the learning from them

The KSAB Safeguarding Adults Review (SAR) framework sets out the criteria for
when the board must or may commission a SAR and a menu of options for
conducting one. It also includes how learning from our SARs and from other SARs
nationally will be acted on in Kirklees.

This year we have shared learning by newsletters and network events, and by
commissioning specific pieces of work in relation to sharing learning, but this area
continues to be one we need to develop. Our Engagement strategy and learning
framework, which will be completed during 2017, should enable us to do this better.

Learning Disabilities Mortality Review (LeDeR) Programme

Over the last 2 years a focus on improving the lives of people with learning
disabilities and/or autism (Transforming Care) has been led jointly by NHS England,
the Association of Adult Social Services, the Care Quality Commission, Local
Government Association, Health Education England and the Department of Health.

In November 2016 the national LeDeR Programme has been established following
the Confidential Enquiry into the Premature Deaths of People with Learning
Disabilities (CIPOLD). LeDeR involves reviewing the deaths of all people with
learning disabilities aged 4 to 74, identifying the potentially avoidable contributory
factors related to their deaths. It also looks at best practice and develops actions to
make any necessary changes to Health and Social Care Service delivery for people
with learning disabilities.

A national database has been developed and anonymised reports will be submitted.
This will allow, for the first time, a national picture of the care and treatment that
people with learning disabilities receive. Good practice examples will be written up
and shared nationally.

The LeDeR Programme is not a formal investigation or a complaints process and will
work alongside any statutory review processes that may be required. In Kirklees,
we’ve ensured the right links are made with Safeguarding Adults Review.

Working with The Police and Crime Commissioner — supporting our approach
to joint work

Safeguarding is a theme that runs throughout the West Yorkshire Police and Crime
Plan (refreshed 2017). The Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) sees that whilst
there are distinct differences between Adult and Children’s Boards and also
Community Safety Partnerships, there are also increasing opportunities for improved
working together, shared strategies and problem solving. The PCC'’s office continues
to actively support our work with the other partnerships here in Kirklees.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 27

16



Working with elected members

The board’s leadership role involves demonstrating that there is recognised and
active leadership by the Local Authority on Adult Safeguarding and that elected
members and officers are knowledgeable about safeguarding and keep abreast of
local and national developments.

Our Independent Chair meets quarterly with the local authority Chief Executive and
in addition, the Cabinet Member for Health, Wellbeing and Communities receives
regular briefings around safeguarding performance, current safeguarding issues and
challenges in Health and Social Care. She also receives a regular update report on
key board activities and local and national developments. Cabinet members played a
key leadership in our launch of Safeguarding Week

As in previous years, the KSAB Annual Report was presented to the Health and
Wellbeing Board and The Health and Social Care Scrutiny Panel.

Safeguarding issues have continued to be an important part of development
opportunities for Councillors. Core Safeguarding training on the role of Councillors
was offered to all new Councillors in 2016. This will continue to be part of induction
packages to ensure that all new Councillors have an early introduction to
Safeguarding issues and understand their role and how to respond appropriately. A
core session was also held in March 2017, targeted at the few Councillors who had
been unable to attend previous sessions. A further core session is timetabled for July
2017. A series of factsheets on cross cutting themes, such as Human Trafficking and
Female Genital Mutilation are being developed on a range of subjects for elected
members.

Work is now underway planning for the annual Safeguarding Refresher training to
take place in October 2017. It will take the form of a roadshow with Councillors
receiving an introductory update followed by attending thematic workshops on
Safeguarding issues relevant to the Kirklees District.

Continuing our Links with NHS England

NHS England has been a member of the Kirklees Safeguarding Adults Board for
some years. It is the policy lead for NHS Safeguarding, working across Health and
Social Care, leading and defining improvement in Safeguarding practice and
outcomes. It has an assurance role for Safeguarding in healthcare and also in
sharing and promoting best practice. The Government sets out a number of
objectives relating to safeguarding which NHS England is legally obliged to pursue.

These are set out in the revised Safeguarding Vulnerable People Accountability and
Assurance Framework published by NHS England in July 2015.
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/safeqguarding-
accountability-assurance-framework.pdf

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 28

17


https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/safeguarding-accountability-assurance-framework.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/07/safeguarding-accountability-assurance-framework.pdf

2) Assurance that adults are safeguarded and supported to
have choice

Feedback from adults at risk:

‘My experience was much better with this concern that it was 7 years ago. The
system has undoubtedly improved. | was involved at the right time’.

‘It is important to have the information you require, not what they think you
need to know”.

Making Safeguarding Personal (MSP) is the key driver in making sure adults are
supported to have a choice. It is about making sure that people are at the centre of
and are better informed about what Safeguarding is. The Care Act reinforced the key
principles of MSP, by requiring person centred practice.

A part of national work underpinning this is “The Making Safeguarding Personal
(MSP) Temperature Check’ which was commissioned by the Association of Directors
of Adult Social Services. This was undertaken in the form of a ‘coaching
conversation. Kirklees, along with many other Local Authorities, participated in this
project.

The conversation covered a range of areas including where MSP fits into
organisational strategies and ways of hearing service users' voices. It also covered
staff training and development. The conversation asked for a self-assessed rating on
each of the above areas. The MSP Temperature Check indicated that whilst we have
good Board leadership and a partnership engagement, we have more work to do.

In Kirklees a small Task-and-Finish Group, led by the Local Authority has been

working on the following areas identified:

» Asking adults at risk and /or their advocates about what they want to happen
about a Safeguarding concern.

* Promoting multi-agency training which emphasises Making Safeguarding
Personal.

* Promoting the use of advocacy

« Providing information in easily accessible language

» Obtaining feedback from people who have experienced Safeguarding to help us
improve our practice.

Evidence from a range of audit activities indicate that progress has been made and
practice influenced by MSP in all the above areas, but we still have some way to go.
We need to be routinely measuring how we make a difference across the partnership
to peoples’ lives, and undertaking this in a sensitive and effective way. While the
Local Authority is the lead agency for this area of work, the Board needs to have
continued oversight of this.

The Board has a responsibility to assure itself that an effective and accountable
Safeguarding system operates within Kirklees. This includes having an assurance

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 29

18



that the partnership complies with the implementation of government guidance and
legislation and implements recommendations from major national reviews.

The Local Authority is the lead partner agency for undertaking Safeguarding
enquiries (as defined in the Care Act) and has undertaken a significant piece of
remodelling this year. The impetus to change the existing Adult Safeguarding
operating model came from a need to ensure outcomes for individuals, families and
carers that are positive, personal and where necessary, reduce risk.

In order to achieve meaningful change and transformation in a high pressure service
a systems thinking approach was utilised. This supported a review of the model and
included workers from every level of the service in resolving challenges en route to
designing an outcomes led, personal and safe new model. The central role of
workers in designing and testing the new model was essential to its success since
they maintain expertise and intimate knowledge of how the system works.

The initial development phase, which benefitted from great support from Key
Partners of the new operational model demonstrated:

Person centred design.

Responses to individuals, carers and families using a personal approach.
Proportionate response and by the right service.

Focus on risk and decision making, developing a Skilled Professional workforce.
Management focuses on support, enabling, challenge and driving improvement.
Greater adherence to principles of Making Safeguarding Personal (MSP) and
positive service user feedback (individuals contacted; felt their experience was
outcome focused).

Work is currently progressing to review the whole Safeguarding Pathway within the
Local Authority from end to end. This reflects the challenge offered by the review
mentioned above and ensures the whole service users journey is Care Act and
Making Safeguarding Personal compliant, in the best possible way.

Our auditing activity

The Safeguarding Adults Board monitors numbers of concerns, outcomes and
themes; ensuring action is taken to address identified practice concerns (more
information is found at Appendix 1) and quality assures the response to the Mental
Capacity Act (MCA) across the partnership.

The board has had for a number of years, a schedule for auditing Safeguarding
cases. This audit schedule was jointly linked to run by the Local Authority as a result
of a previous inspection regime. Last year the Local Authority refreshed its own
approach and developed its ‘Achieving Excellence in Adult Social Care Programme’.
Although the Board has always undertaken some independent audit activity, we
have used this as an opportunity to totally separate out this former joint audit
function, and to this year redesign its own independent, multi-agency audit
framework, which we will be doing from now on.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 30

19



While this separation has been underway, audit activity has continued to ensure the
Board remains assured about the adherence to policy and procedures and that
adults are safeguarded in a way that gives them choice. Over the year we have
looked at appropriate decision making about safeguarding concerns and follow on
action. We’ve also looked at Case Conferences records and use of advocacy. In
addition we have also observed Case Conference practice and undertaken
telephone questionnaires with a sample of service users.

The key themes examined included, adherence to Making Safeguarding Personal,
within the current policy and procedures, managing risk, consideration of Mental
Capacity and evidence of clear rational decision making.

Below is a summary of the themes and findings:
Our audit findings

e Overall the audits indicated that Making Safeguarding Personal is continually
being embedded into practice and the audits evidenced that once a case followed
a formal safeguarding process, (as our current policy and procedures require),
practitioners worked hard to ensure the focus remained on the wishes, beliefs
and outcomes that the adult at risk wants.

e All the audits showed that the support needs for the adult at risk are being
considered and the adult was being appropriately supported. The uptake of
independent advocacy was lower than anticipated by changes brought about by
the Care Act 2014. But in most cases the adult at risk was supported by family,
but where required an Independent Mental Capacity Advocate (IMCA) or other
advocates were appointed.

e All audits identified that Mental Capacity was considered and where required,
assessed throughout the Safeguarding process.

e The audits demonstrated that risk was considered and managed at all stages of
the process.

e All audits showed that decision making by practitioners was clearly recorded and
appropriate.

¢ The audits are showing that recording of cases in the main was of good quality.

Key Areas for improvement included:

e Supporting adults at risk to attend meetings if they wish.

e There needs to be more evidence to support the lack of capacity recorded.

e Continued work on ensuring good quality of recording and good use of protection
planning.

For the future

As our Strategic Plan outlines, we have plans to ensure our practice will become
more person centred. As we develop and embed our engagement strategy, we will
be able to have better mechanisms for ensuring we get better feedback and that
people who have experienced harm are empowered and feel outcomes are
improved for them.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 31

20


http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/adult-social-care-providers/pdf/kirklees-safeguarding-adults-board-strategic-plan.pdfhttp:/www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/adult-social-care-providers/pdf/kirklees-safeguarding-adults-board-strategic-plan.pdf

3) Preventative strategies

‘l just wanted to say a big ‘Thank you’ for having us as guest speakers. As a
result of the event we gathered 13 contacts on the day, we are in the process
of arranging 4 Partner Training sessions with various teams, had one request
to attend a home visit with a social worker who believes one of her elderly
clients is responding to scam mail. And | have been contacted by Huddersfield
University about the possibility of giving a lecture / developing a training
package for Social Workers —which will have far-reaching results’. - Catherine
Chadwick-Rayner from West Yorkshire Joint Services, — feedback from our network
event on Preventing Financial Abuse.

The board has continued to give high profile to work on preventing abuse and
neglect. By developing a series of strategies to prevent abuse or neglect, and by
supporting a number of initiatives, including learning from Safeguarding Adults
Reviews, we aim to improve the quality of care and prevent safeguarding issues
arising in the first place.

Learning from our Safeguarding Adults Reviews

When an adult who needs care and support either dies or suffers serious harm, and
when abuse or neglect is thought to have been a factor, Kirklees Safeguarding
Adults Board needs to undertake a Safeguarding Adults Review.

Sometimes Safeguarding Adult Boards will also arrange for a SAR to take place in
other situations where they feel there need to be lessons learnt about the way
organisations worked together to support the person who suffered harm.

We undertook a SAR into the circumstances surrounding a very sudden Care Home
closure which was upsetting for residents and relatives, and staff working in the
home, because of the speed of the closure, and was challenging for the
professionals working to support them. The board is still monitoring some
recommended actions from this review. The report can be found: The Closure of
Oxford Care Home

A number of recommendations arose, one was that the Local Authority, Health
Commissioners and the Care Quality Commission jointly review their approach to the
management of quality in the care provider market so that the best possible
standards are maintained, and early preventative action can be taken.

Work was already underway on updating the strategy for residential and nursing
homes in Kirklees. This was developed out of a recognition that Care Homes in
Kirklees, in common with the rest of the country, are facing very real difficulties — in
recruiting and retaining the right workforce; in being able to support older people with
increasingly complex needs; in having enough resources to remain viable as
businesses; and in creating and sustaining a suitable environment to meet these
changing needs.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge

21

32


http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/adult-social-care-providers/pdf/ksab-safeguarding-review-closure-oxford-grange.pdf
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/adult-social-care-providers/pdf/ksab-safeguarding-review-closure-oxford-grange.pdf

The Safeguarding Adults Board has been kept appraised of this piece of work
because of the crossover with the Safeguarding Adults Review. A number of other
actions have been undertaken by partner agencies and the board is still monitoring
improvements made. They include multi-agency actions to improve coordination of
all the different services there are to support Care Homes, to prevent issues of
abuse in care settings arise in the first place, and to provide a better coordinated
response if a Care Home sadly closes.

The board is still maintaining an oversight of a recommendation from a Serious Case
Review published in 2014, where an elderly man with dementia (Mr F) died in tragic
circumstances.

The Dementia Challenge in Kirklees: A joint dementia strategy, (2015 - 2020)
incorporates a comprehensive action plan, which sets out the actions required to
improve the health, wellbeing and experience of services by individuals living with
dementia and of the people who care for someone living with dementia and the
recommendations identified following this Serious Case Review.

Continuing to support a partnership approach to Early Intervention and
Prevention

Last year we committed, through the work across the 3 Boards, to ensure the KSAB
supports the work of the council’s Early Intervention and Prevention Programme
(EIP).

EIP aims to address problems at the earliest opportunity before they escalate, to
work in partnership to improve outcomes for everyone, and help more people in the
most appropriate way with the limited amount of money available to public bodies. It
involves doing things differently; focusing more on prevention as well ensuring
people are kept safe.

The board continues to receive regular updates on the Early Intervention and
Prevention approach and to work to support and influence this work programme.

Refreshing the ‘See ME and Care’ campaign

Kirklees Safeguarding Adults Board began the first ‘See ME and Care’ campaign in
2013, with phase 2 following soon after in 2014.

A key prevention approach - The campaign (targeted at health and social care
workers) is about challenging poor practice in care and promoting a message for
staff about treating people how you would want your own family and friends to be
treated. It is part of the continuing work to promote dignity in care and to prevent
adults at risk being abused. In 2014 the campaign focused on sharing good practice
and was widened to include other partner agencies, re-enforced by training and
awareness programmes for staff.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 33

22



Following a positive evaluation of the most recent campaign, the board decided to
refresh the campaign and the brief was to make it relevant to everyone.

Everyone has their own part to play in the lives of others, be they; care workers, the
police, mobile library staff, boiler repair men, Kirklees Council Housing Services staff,
people coming to read the utility meter, neighbours - everyone.

With this in mind, KSAB teamed up with Curtain Up Players (a local community
drama group) and Huddersfield based media company, Quickfoot Films, to produce
a short film.

Written and performed by members of Curtain Up Players, the film highlights a very
real situation that could, and does happen every day in family life.

The powerful message “Little things make a difference” can be viewed at
www.kirklees.gov.uk/seemeandcare

The Board extends special thanks to Curtain Up Players for taking time to be part of
this campaign.

Many issues can be dealt with quickly and resolved immediately. The ‘See ME and
Care’ campaign encourages staff to take responsibility for their actions, noticing
when things are not quite right, challenging others and taking action, and if
necessary raising the issue with their manager.

As part of this campaign the board has a checklist ‘Early Indicators of Concern Form’
to be used by professionals across the Safeguard Partnership when visiting care
settings within Kirklees.

The information from these forms is collated by partner agencies and used to form
an overview of practices within care settings. This is a really useful way of
addressing and recording concerns about poor practice before it becomes abusive.

Highlighting work on preventing financial abuse

Through our close working relationship with the Kirklees Financial Inclusion Steering
Group we have been able over a number of years to support work to improve the
awareness of financial abuse. This year we worked jointly with them to plan our
multi-agency network event looked at preventing financial abuse. Over 120 people
attended from a range of partner organisations.

A range of speakers from West Yorkshire Joint Services, Kirklees Adult Social Care,
Pennine Domestic Violence Group and Kirklees Victim Support all delivered
presentations at this event, which provided valuable information and insight into what
each of the organisations provide to help prevent financial abuse and the support
they offer when it occurs. The feedback and evaluation of the event was extremely
positive both from the attendees and speakers.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 34

23


http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/seemeandcare

Promoting good practice in end of life care

‘I thought the presentation was absolutely outstanding and would like to thank
her for taking the time to share her devastating experience in order to
enlighten others’ - Our Dignity in Care and Dementia network event this year
focused on promoting dignity at end of life. The event, which attracted over 100
speakers, heard a presentation from a local carer, who bravely spoke of her own
experience, and from local professionals showcasing good practice.

Embedding our approach to self-neglect and hoarding

A key area of work linked to prevention has been the development of our
approaches to situations of self-neglect and hoarding, which we undertook last year,
when we approved guidance for managing self-neglect and a framework for
hoarding. Situations where someone appears to be self-neglecting are complex and
challenging and this year we have delivered training to underpin these protocols and
monitored their use. We have also revised them on the basis of some feedback from
the partnership.

Promoting safety — expansion of the Safe Places Scheme

1f you need help you might not know who to ask or trust. You might feel
scared and alone. A ‘Safe Place’is somewhere you can go to for help if this
ever happens to you.’

‘Safe Places’ are designated venues in the community where people can go if they
are feeling unsafe or are experiencing what might be described as a hate crime.
The scheme is partnership arrangement delivered by Mencap in Kirklees, with
support from the Learning Disability Partnership Board, Metro Travel, the Kirklees
Dementia Action Alliance, Alzheimer’s Society and Making Space.

The board has actively supported this scheme for a number of years as part of its
prevention agenda. The ‘Safe Places’ scheme originally focused on individuals with
learning disabilities, but is for people who are over 16 and who might be vulnerable
when they go out. At present it is for people who may have a learning disability,
autism, dementia, or a physical disability. New partnerships have also been
encouraged; it currently has 520 Members and 113 venues.

Monitoring Deprivation of Liberty pressures

Deprivations of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) are part of the Mental Capacity Act 2005.
The aim of DoLS is to ensure that if a person’s life is being so restricted that their
liberty is taken from them, there should be an independent assessment and
authorisation process for the deprivation.

DoLS is a lengthy and complex process which if not followed precisely can lead to

individuals, particularly in care home and hospitals, being unlawfully deprived of their
liberty. This is a breach of Article 5 of the Human Rights Act.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 35

24



The board has had an approach for a number of years now where any work around
Mental Capacity has been integrated into the work of its sub-groups, and any activity
around Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) has been reported as part of the
Annual Report.

There continues to be a significant national increase as a result of a Supreme Court
Judgement which widened the pool of those who might be considered to be deprived
of their liberty. The Local Authority, who leads on this process, has undertaken
specific actions to monitor activity and risk assess the demand. The board has
ensured it is regularly updated about the impact of the continuing increase in the
number of Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) applications being received by
the Council and the risks associated with this increase.

Producing Guidance on the Administration of Covert Medication

New guidance has been produced by the KSAB, based on a recent legal judgement
and National Institute for Clinical Excellence (NICE) guidance.

The administration of covert medicines is a complex issue and involves the
administration of a medicine in a disguised form to someone without their knowledge
or consent. Failing to respect a competent adult’s refusal to take a prescribed
medication may breach a person’s human rights and may amount to a criminal
offence.

Individuals, who are competent to make their own decisions, are entitled to refuse
treatment even when this decision may adversely affect their health. Care staff
should not administer medicines to a resident without their knowledge, if they have
the capacity to make a decision.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge

25

36



4) Multi-agency workforce development and specialist
training

Feedback from practitioners who have attended our training:

“l want to feel more confident about asking the right questions particularly
around finance, consent to sexual relationships and medication”

“I now take time to assess what the situation is; | plan appropriate questions
to get to know their side of the story. It helps to build up the relationship by
listening to theirs and other’s accounts”

“I really understand that people have the right to make unwise decisions”

Training in 2016 — 2017

The Training Sub Group aims to deliver and implement a strategic approach to
learning and development, support partner agencies in raising the skills and
competencies of staff and volunteers, and promotes inter agency collaboration.

It also contributes to the implementation of multi-agency policy, procedures and
guidance to safeguard adults at risk from abuse or neglect in Kirklees, and help them
to live a life free from abuse and neglect.

The sub group oversees the development of the board’s training plan and ensures all
training it commissions or delivers is consistent with policy and promotes best
practice. It also ensures that Mental Capacity Act (MCA) and Making Safeguarding
Personal are integral to the delivery of all safeguarding learning events. It links to
other areas of training, for example Dignity in Care and Deprivation of Liberty and
also focuses on learning from our Safeguarding Adults Reviews.

It works in partnership with the Kirklees Safeguarding Children Board training work
stream and Kirklees Community Safety Partnership on shared agenda/delivery
where appropriate.

Multi-agency learning is complex, and the Care Act enables Boards to rethink the
approach laid down in ‘No secrets’ statutory guidance of 2009. This year the sub
group has commenced a major piece of work on evaluating the whole multi-agency
approach to learning, and to develop a learning framework to help the Board have a
more up to date approach.

The next section summarises key safeguarding training activity for 2016 — 2017.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 37

26



Key training achievements 2016 — 2017

In 2015 we made sure all training that the board commissioned incorporated the key
messages of Making Safeguarding Personal. In 2016 we wanted to see what that
meant in practice. We took an independent look by auditing some of the training
courses that were currently being delivered. The audit evidenced that the delivery of
the courses contained the key messages and the principles of MSP. A further audit
took place in 2016 to find out whether the people who attended the training were
now applying MSP messages and principles into their work practice. The report
highlighted some barriers to putting MSP into work practice and some positive
examples where this is happening. Recommendations from the reports have been
implemented into 2017/18 Adult Safeguarding Training Plan.

See ME and Care - Preventing Abuse

A Framework for Compassionate Care continues to be delivered to underpin the key
messages to the See Me and Care campaign and the impact of the training was
included as part of the overall evaluation of the campaign.

The Safeguarding and Dignity in Care Networks

The Safeguarding and Dignity in Care Networks, mentioned elsewhere in the report
are now well established with regular attendees and a wide range of representation
from organisations across Kirklees. The events continue to attract over 100
attendees, who enjoy the opportunity of new learning and to reflect upon their own
practice. These events always evaluate very well. The board is grateful to all those
who give freely of their time to speak and on occasions, travel considerable distance,
to ensure the continued success of our Network Events.

Developing a Learning Culture from Safeguarding Adults Reviews

The Board’'s Safeguarding Adults Review Framework sets out the criteria for when
Kirklees SAB must or may commission a SAR; a menu of options for conducting
SARs, guidance on how adults at risk and their families and staff involved will be
supported in SARs; how learning from our SARs and from other SARs nationally will
be acted on in Kirklees.

The importance of sharing learning from SARs in order to improve practice continues
to be highlighted. The board recognises the need to share learning on a regular
basis across all partner agencies, and although we have done this by a series of
events and newsletters, and by attending training events arranged for the Yorkshire
and Humber Region we continue to work on how to embed learning effectively.

The Oxford Grange Review found that partners worked well together given the
complex set of circumstances, however, there were challenges in ensuring clear,
consistent and timely communication. This resulted in people experiencing mixed
messages which compromised the ability to plan alternative care home placements
effectively.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 38

27



There is a series of recommendations which are contained in the report and the
board is currently monitoring the agency responses to those recommendations and
sharing the lessons learned. Overall the picture was that the majority of residents
had settled well in their new homes, and the board arranged for the Social Care
Institute of Excellence (SCIE) to undertake some specific training for staff involved in
such difficult circumstances. During the training the participants worked to identify
the strengths and challenges in current practice. The group then went on to draw out
specific strategic questions relevant to organisational improvement and development
— these are being taken forward.

The board has also shared relevant learning from a Serious Case Review from the
Children’s Board, and considered a recommendation from a recent Domestic
Homicide Review.

Evaluating our existing training

The KSAB training plan specifically includes training focused on desired outcomes
for the service user - making sure Making Safeguarding Personal is a thread which
runs through all training.

This year the Training Sub-Group arranged for an audit of a number of training
courses to see if the messages and principles of MSP were being delivered
throughout the training.

A follow up evaluation took place to see if the people who attended the training were
now actually putting MSP messages and principles into their work practice. The
report highlighted some positive examples where this is happening, and identified
some barriers preventing putting MSP into work practice.

Recommendations from the reports have been implemented into 2017/18 Adult
Safeguarding Training Plan.

5) Oversight of the effectiveness of partners’ safeguarding
arrangements and improvement plans.

Our Independent Chair says:

“We recognise that this is core to our purpose, and strengthened Assurance
Framework will help us focus on this key area over the next year.”

Our Independent Chair

In accordance with Care Act guidance, the Independent Chair reports quarterly to
the Local Authority Chief Executive and will also report on the work of the board,
including through the Annual Report to the Health and Wellbeing Board and to
Scrutiny Panel.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 39

28



Our challenge event

This year the Board Challenge Event involved 2 panels, one chaired by Mike
Houghton-Evans (MHE) and the other by Hazel Wigmore, Lay Member. Additional
independence and transparency had been provided this year by the Director of
Healthwatch Kirklees, and through the presence of our new lay member. At this
event board members are asked to account for performance in their own agencies.
Feedback is then included in a number of activities for the board to take forward.

Lay membership

As outlined earlier in this report, we have had active lay membership on the board for
a number of years and this is fundamental to how the board works effectively.

A lay member is a member of the public, who is also a resident in Kirklees, with an
interest in safeguarding who participates in and scrutinises decisions made by the
board. This year we have strengthened our lay membership to provide additional
scrutiny and challenge.

The Delivery Group

This year we have implemented arrangements for oversees the priorities outlined in

the strategic plan, implementing lessons learned from Safeguarding Adults Reviews

and driving the development of good practice. The Delivery Group coordinates these
arrangements.

Working with our new Quality Assurance Framework —work in progress

The refreshed framework, approved this year, is designed to enable the board to
check that Safeguarding arrangements are effective and are delivering the outcomes
that people want. The framework is the mechanism by which the board will gain
assurance of the effectiveness of the Safeguarding work of statutory and other
partner agencies, and that the board is meeting its key priorities.

The Quality Assurance Framework consists of a rolling programme of activity,
assessments and reports into the quality and effectiveness of systems, and
arrangements. It enables the board to triangulate a variety of information, both about
quantity and quality, from different sources to objectively evaluate the effectiveness
of arrangements, rather than relying on a single means of assessment.

The Framework consists of 4 key areas which are all interlinked.

The aim is to assist the Board answer three key questions:

e How safe are those adults at risk of abuse or neglect in Kirklees?

e Are local agencies working effectively internally and together to safeguard
people?

e Are adults safeguarded in a way that supports them to make choices and have
control about how they want to live?

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 40

29



The Board will use information from the following to determine this:

¢ Information from Integrated Performance Dashboard — currently under
development.

e Information that Safeguarding arrangements deliver the outcomes that people
want — assisted by our engagement strategy. Learning from Safeguarding Adults
Reviews and our audit schedule — also refreshed this year.

e Evidence of Effectiveness of Partners of the Board — by continuing to hold regular
Annual Challenge events.

e Performance of the KSAB — for example by peer review arrangements.

Audit Schedule

The board has had an audit schedule for a number of years. In previous years this
schedule and associated actions was currently owned jointly by the Quality and
Performance Sub-Group (Q&P) and Adult Social Care. This was as a result of a
recommendation from a previous inspection regime, and had many strengths.

However, now the board is independent, it needed to demonstrate more clearly that
it undertakes independent audit activity on a multi-agency basis and the schedule
and approach has been revised.

During the year a range of audit activity will now take place which will give
assurances that the board is meeting its statutory obligation. Multi-agency
independent audit activity will be undertaken by the board regardless of what audit
activity each agency may be already undertaking themselves.

The integrated performance dashboard will be analysed and scrutinised by the
Quality and Performance Sub-Group (Q&P) of the KSAB.

From this analysis if any themes are identified for an audit, the Quality and
Performance Sub-Group (Q&P) will seek to commission audit activity.

The Quality and Performance Sub-Group (Q&P) will lead on ensuring audit activity
takes place around themes including:

Proportionate and appropriate intervention.

Appropriate involvement of agencies.

Appropriate use of procedures.

Use of Mental Capacity assessments.

Use of advocacy and provision of appropriate support.

The Adult at risk was the focus of the intervention following principles of the
Making Safeguarding Personal.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge a1

30



Audits to be carried out may include:
e Case file audits
e Questionnaires to adult at risk

The Delivery Group is the key lever in ensuring the Quality Assurance Framework is
implemented, and to support board members deliver this work in a spirit of
openness, transparency, and challenge.

Sometimes the board will decide to Commission totally independent pieces of work,
particularly to see how effective any changes have been following Safeguarding
Adults Reviews. This year we asked the Social Care Institute of Excellence (SCIE) to
undertake a workshop with front line practitioners and managers, to see how the
learning from the Oxford Grange Care Home closure can be taken forward. The
board is currently looking at its recommendations.

Back to cont(i:lg'gge 42

31



Agency Achievements

The Safeguarding Children Policy and
the Domestic Abuse Policy has been
reviewed and updated

Developed and implemented a robust
safeguarding dashboard that is
presented at our internal
Safeguarding Committee meeting

Sharing key Safeguarding messages
with staff is though the Safeguarding
Newsletter twice yearly and the
monthly virtual notice Board

A Trust Wide Audit relating to DoLS
has identified improved picture from
2015-2016 audits

Our Matrons have attended Multi-
agency MCA DolS training

FGM eLearning is now an essential
skill for targeted groups of staff

Appraisal documentation has been
amended so staff can include the
number of hours safeguarding
training undertaken

Reviewed all trust staff who require
Safeguarding Adults training at levels
1,2 and 3 in line with the draft
intercollegiate document for
Safeguarding Adults

Reviewed and restructured the
Safeguarding Committee meeting
which now reports directly to the
Quality Committee, which reports

directly to the Trust Board of
Directors

We have developed a suite of Safe ding
Policies for CCG staff including:
* A combined adults and children’s policy

(which includes Making Safeguarding
Personal)

* MCA/ Dols policy
* Domestic abuse policy
* Prevent policy

We have developed two Safeguarding Standards

self-assessment documents for CCG

Commissioned health providers (includes MSP) —

for GP’s and for main health providers. Both
standards documents were implemented and
completed by providers and actions plans are in
place to address areas of development

We were audited by NHS England on our
Safeguarding arrangements — the results
were that almost all requirements were
green, with amber areas addressed within
days

We’ve employed a named GP
Safeguarding Adults to work with CCG
Safeguarding Team supporting GPs

CCG staff have undertaken the
required level of Prevent WRAP
training and basic awareness
dependant on their role

We've delivered Combined Safeguarding Adults
and Safeguarding Children Training to GP
practices in two planned training sessions for
General Practice staff in North Kirklees and
another for Greater Huddersfield. Over 130
attendees at each of the training events

We’ve delivered Domestic Abuse
masterclasses for GPs in both areas
along with Prevent Wrap for each

We Chair and participate in the
Delivery Group, and have continued
engagement with all the main
subgroups of Board

32

SWYPFT have further embedded the
MARAC forum across SWYPFT

A Safeguarding Adults forum has
been developed across the
organisation to support practitioners,
promote good practice and share
learning

Prevent remains a key priority within
the organisation

The Adult and Children Safeguarding
Team have amalgamated in order to
strengthen the ‘Think Family’
approach

The Trust has been invited to speak
internationally at the Forensic Mental
Health Conference in Croatia, in
relation to the Prevent agenda and
lessons learned from a Serious Case
Review

The CQC have identified that a good
safeguarding culture was evident
from Board to ward and that robust
systems and processes for
safeguarding were in place

Back to cont?:gtgge

43



We've developed a 3 year Integrated
Safeguarding Children and Adult’s strategy
and implementation plan to progress the
Joint Safeguarding Agendas across all Locala
services.

The implementation plan incorporates key
priorities of both Safeguarding Boards in
Kirklees

All safeguarding policies, including MCA and
Dols, Domestic Abuse and Safeguarding
Adults were fully reviewed and updated, and
a new policy ‘Managing safeguarding
allegations against staff’ was developed to
support and inform frontline practice

31 face to face briefings on MCA and Dols to
support the application of Mental Capacity
Act into everyday business were delivered

and attended by 495 colleagues

Work commenced on clinical recording
keeping templates within electronic health
records to support colleagues to apply and
embed Making Safeguarding Personal and

Best Interest Decisions in practice

An increased emphasis on risk assessment in
health assessments was introduced into
frontline clinical practice

Flow charts and procedures on safeguarding
adult issues e.g. what to do if you are worried
about an adult at risk, DoLS, Forced marriage
etc. were developed and are readily available

to all colleagues on the staff intranet

There are Dignity champions in most services

NHS England North has developed a Safeguarding Assurance Tool for use with
CCGs across the North Region. This was used to review all action plans and to
identify key themes and trends across the North Region with a view to identifying
common areas requiring support

NHS England North hosted safeguarding conferences in December 2016 which
included presentations on forced marriage, honour based abuse, FGM and
domestic abuse and adult safeguarding for healthcare professionals and leads in
the North region. The Safeguarding Adults pocket book has been updated and
the NHS Safeguarding Guide App has been launched

'React to Red' a bespoke training package for pressure ulcer prevention
designed for care home staff and care providers was launched on 1%t February
2016 at the Pressure Ulcer Summit in Leeds

Learning Disabilities Mortatility Review (LeDeR) Programme:

Over the last 2 years a focus on improving the lives of people with a Learning
Disabilities and/or autism (Transforming Care) has been led jointly by NHS
England, the Association of Adult Social Services, the Care Quality Commission,
Local Government Association, Health Education England and the Department
of Health. In November 2016 the national LeDeR Programme has been
established following the Confidential Enquiry into the Premature Deaths of
People with Learning Disabilities (CIPOLD)

LeDeR involves:

* Reviewing the deaths of all people aged 4 to 74 (inclusive)

¢ Identify the potentially avoidable contributory factors related to deaths of
people with learning disabilities

o |dentify variation in practice

o |dentify best practice

* Develop action plans to make any necessary changes to health and social care
service delivery for people with learning disabilities

A national database has been developed and anonymised reports will be
submitted. This will allow, for the first time, a national picture of the care and
treatment that people with learning disabilities receive. The LeDeR Programme
is not a formal investigation or a complaints process and will work alongside
any statutory review processes that may be required. The LeDeR Programme
recognises it is important to capture the extent of personalised services,
including the use of reasonable adjustments, choice and control and the well-
being of people with learning disabilities. Good practice examples will be
written up and shared nationally

Prevent

Across NHS England North there are a number of priority areas which are
designated and supported by the Home Office, to ensure that Health embeds
the requirements of the Contest strategy and Prevent into normal
safeguarding processes. In December 2016, a North Regional Prevent
conference was held to raise awareness of Prevent, delegates found this
event a good opportunity to increase their knowledge and confidence in the
role of the health sector in Prevent. Feedback received, supported that there
was an overall improvement in understanding the requirements of health
organisations e.g.: CCGs under the new statutory duty

Back to cont?:gtas_ge

33



We have a fully staffed, integrated
safeguarding team

We have started to embed principles
of MSP but recognise we have more

work to do

We offer bespoke training and
support services to specific staff
groups and ward and departments

We have undertaken an audit of

MCA/ DOLS case files to establish

baseline of current practice with
resulting action plan

We are fully engaged with the

safeguarding agenda across Kirklees

We continue to embed knowledge
and understanding of Safeguarding,
with over 200 front line staff from
both the Kirklees Council Housing
Services Solutions and Kirklees
Neighbourhood Housing (KNH)
attended bespoke training delivered
by PDVG around Domestic Abuse

A new programme is being
developed specifically for the 500
KNH Property Services (ex Building

Services) operatives within KNH,

which will cover all basic elements of

Safeguarding

Over 40 Safeguarding “Champions”
have been identified across both
KNH Kirklees Council Housing
Services to take forward the
safeguarding agenda, each of whom
has, or is developing specialist
knowledge about a wide range of
safeguarding issues and contribute
to ongoing training and awareness
raising for our sector

KNH and Kirklees Council
Housing Services
representatives sit on the
Partnership Hoarding Panel, and
also contribute to the
Partnership Self Neglect
arrangements as appropriate

34

Redesign of the Adult Safeguarding
model with safeguarding specialists in
a single point of access and specialists

consultants to advise and support

across the partnership

The new safeguarding model has
improved quality of referrals through
working with information officers,
partners and members of the public.
Safeguarding audits for the
Safeguarding Board, largely
demonstrate good practice in multi-
agency safeguarding

Adult Social Care have launched
Achieving Excellence in Social Care
Practice (Quality Assurance
Framework) for adults which includes
safeguarding and MSP

We have led the development of a
protocol on Self Neglect and
Hoarding to support multi-agency
practice is this complex area of work

Strengthened across Safeguarding
Partnerships addressing cross cutting
issues such as Prevent, Domestic
Abuse, CSE, FGM, Forced Marriage
and Human Trafficking

A Lead Professional for Social Work
Practice is supporting professional
practice in Adult Social Care

Back to cont?:gtgge 45



West Yorkshire Fire &
Rescue Service Chair the
Kirklees Hoarding Panel

The safeguarding alert form
has been changed to make it
more user friendly

A small group has been set
up and is now in place for
internal safeguarding audits

Our safeguarding policy is
undergoing internal review

A 'Safe and Well' public
consultation took place to
gather opinions of how our
resources should be used
and how we can better meet
the needs of our
communities.

Kirklees Police District has an established Safeguarding Unit that consists of the following specialisms:

Adult Safeguarding Child Safeguarding
CSE Hub Domestic Abuse Hub
Public Protection Unit Integrated Offender Management

There is a dedicated Superintendent and Detective Chief Inspector overseeing the work of the
Safeguarding Unit along with a Detective Inspector, a number of Detective Sergeants and Detective
Constables, Police Constables and Police Staff.

All Police Constables have been put forward to qualify for detective status which will not only enhance our
capability for investigations but to equip staff with the skill set they need for complex matters.

All safeguarding matters within the District are referred to the Police Adult Safeguarding Unit for further
assessment and dissemination

We work towards the protecting and safeguarding the vulnerable as a key priority as well as
supporting victims and witnesses by tackling crime and making sure offenders are dealt with
appropriately

As the Police Safeguarding team are all based together at Dewsbury Police Station, we have
developed clear links with the other specialisms within the police especially around domestic
abuse, CSE and missing people

All front line officers have been trained domestic abuse and vulnerability and this is a rolling
training programme

Every call that is transferred to Kirklees District undergoes a THRIVE assessment. This means we assess for Threat,
Harm, Risk, Investigation (opportunities), Vulnerability and Engagement whilst utilising the National Decision Model

All our call takers and dispatchers within the district have been given group training on this matter as have front
line officers. This allows for calls that have a vulnerability marker being prioritised

As part of our work with Domestic abuse we have achieved the white ribbon status, which is a charitable
organisation and is a movement of males working towards ending male violence against females

We have also attained wellbeing charter status which shows that we are committed at looking after our people and
are working towards the carers charter again to highlight individuals who have caring responsibilities

The work of our Adult Safeguarding Teams are varied:
We concentrate on any domestic abuse and any other crime where the vulnerability around the victim is an issue.
This could be from rapes to ‘mate crime’ to fraud. If further specialism in investigations are required then we will
link in with our reactive CID teams also.

The unit also addresses issues of FGM, Human Trafficking and forced marriage.
The units misper coordinators have worked hard to embed the Herbert Protocol and this continues apace

When it comes to domestic abuse, we have been early adopters of DVPN and DVPO (Domestic Violence Protection
Notices or Orders) but recognise that these are only one way to deal with offenders and therefore utilise non
molestation orders more as they offer greater protection for the vulnerable

We are represented at DHRs and SARs and are ably assisted by our Force’s Protective Services
Crime Department who, in the main, will investigate homicides and Stranger 1 rapes

We also attend all MARAC meetings and have set up the DRAMM. The DRAMM is a daily meeting taking place
Monday to Friday due to partner commitments, albeit it should be spread out to 7 day cover. The DRAMM assess
all medium and high risk DV incidents and is in effect a strategy meeting to address the action that should be taken

We have just set up regular performance review meetings which will complement the already established
Tactical Assessment meetings we have been running for a while. These performance review meetings will
review referrals to adult social services, DASH Assessments and Mispers to name but a few

The Police Safeguarding Unit is in a healthy place at the present time to protect the vulnerable and
provides cover 7 days a week which going forward some of our partners may wish to replicate

Back to contT._gts
age
35

46



Appendix 1 — Safeguarding and Deprivation of Liberty
information

Safeguarding concerns 2016 / 2017

Concerns & Formal Enquiry Trends 2012 - 2017
2 500 - 320 2,830 - 350
- ] 2,616 -
3000 - 2,314 2,003 [ ¥
2,500 - _ - 250
2000 { 2,715 etenan,, | 200
Py I-.I--" -
1,500 - 210 182 e g - 150
l.:':.-: = 12; II.--". - ::
B0 23 L 50

O T T T T C

2012/13  2013/14  2014/15  2015/16  2016/17

A concern is a sign of suspected abuse or neglect that is reported to the council or identified by the
council. As per 2015/16, we have seen a slight reduction in safeguarding concerns during 2016/17
compared with previous years. While continuing to make sure people are safe, we are beginning to
move away from encouraging our wider partners ‘to refer if in doubt’ to thinking more about the
reason why they may wish to raise a concern with the local authority, and to consider consent of the
adult at risk and the best way of achieving their desired outcomes. The local authority worked
intensively on reshaping the Safeguarding Front Door through our systems thinking approach. This
led to the following benefits:

e Less waste in the work that comes through so the system is “clean”. Placing safeguarding
expertise at the front door has meant that relevant safeguarding concerns are better
identified. A significant volume of safeguarding concerns, once screened, are not deemed to
be safeguarding are sign posted to the most appropriate information point.

e Proportionate response to concerns which are less serious (Managed Concerns) and where
the safeguarding concerns have already been addressed e.g. by a provider service.

e Consistency of recording of these concerns across the system, strengthened interface with
Gateway to Care and the Safeguarding Single Point of Access has supported this work.

We have also seen a decline in concerns which required a formal enquiry (previously known as
investigated referral) and which concluded with a case conference. This continues a trend seen in
previous years. Reasons for this include the changes brought about by the Care Act 2014 and Making
Safeguarding Personal, which require Councils to ask the person at risk about how they wish the
situation they are in resolved. Their concern may not conclude without the need to have a formal
enquiry which leads to a case conference and may be resolved earlier and in a proportionate way.
Although there is a general regressive trend in Safeguarding Concerns as presented in the extract
above, some caution must be exercised in comparing data over time, due to changes in the definition
and requirements of national returns.

Back to cont?rjl'gge 47

36



A formal enquiry (this used to be known as an investigated referral) is the action taken or
instigated by the local authority in response to a concern that abuse or neglect may be taking
place. The information below is where a formal safeguarding process has been used to deal with
the concern.

Location of where risk was identified Ethnicity Profile
Care Home 72% White Others
Own Home 20%
Other 5%
Hospital 3% 84% 16%
Community Services 0%
Safeguarding Enquiries - Gender Profile Safeguarding Enquiries - Age Profile
Under 65 Over 65
\/
22%
47% 53%

Concluded Formal Enquiries -
Type of Abuse (Top 4)
Neglect Physical Psychological Financial

37

Back to cont(i._ggge 48



Risk Outcome for the 95 concluded Formal Enquiries

Risk Removed 39%

This refers to cases where, after action has been taken to support management of risk,
the circumstances which made the person vulnerable have been fully addressed and
the individual is no longer subject to that specific risk

Risk Reduced 56%

This refers to cases where, after action has been taken to support management of risk,
the level of risk has reduced or the circumstances which made the individual vulnerable
have been mitigated. Again, there may be valid reasons why a risk is reduced rather

than removed

Risk Remains 2%
This refers to cases where, after action has been taken to support management of risk,

the circumstances causing the risk are unchanged and the same degree of risk remains.

There may be valid reasons why a risk remains, one of these being individual choice

No Further Action Taken under Safeguarding 3%
This will usually refer to those cases where the formal conclusion recorded was

unfounded, there insufficient evidence or the enquiry ceased at individuals request.

Back to cont(i._ggge

38

49



Deprivation of Liberty 2016/2017:

Authorisation

Not

Total of

vear Granted Granted 'Other’ Total
2010/11 20 24 - 44
2011/12 28 46 - 74
2012/13 11 27 - 38
2013/14 13 33 - 46
2014/15 247 73 320 382
2015/16 973 59 240 1272
2016/17 1127 42 323 1492
1600 -
1400 -
1200 -
1000 -
800 -
600 -
400 -
200 -
0 : ; .

2010/11  2011/12

41.4%

2012/13

\/

/ \

58.6%

NB: ‘Other’ refers to requests that
were either withdrawn due to
change of circumstance or where
request that were awaiting sign off
at the end of the reporting period.
(This information has only been
recorded since 2014).The total
number of request received was
1928. The figure on the table is for
allocated applications.

Total

== Authorisati

on Granted
== Not

Granted

2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

2016/17

Requests for Deprivation of Liberty
authorisations received by the Local
Authority have increased over the year.
All Local authorities have significant
challenges in meeting demand caused by
changes in legislation.

39

Back to cont?_g'gge 50



Male Female Overall

B 18-64 m65-74 m75-84 1 85+ M 18-64 WM 65-74 W 75-84 1 85+ W 18-64 mM65-74 m75-84 1 85+

Male Female All
18-64 213 146 359
65-74 92 66 158
75-84 171 221 392
85+ 142 441 583
618 874 1492
41.4% 58.6%

The figures reflect national trends — In the main most requests come from care homes and in line with
national trends, there are more females who have a Deprivation of Liberty authorised, as well as those
people who are older than 85. Generally there tend to be more females than males living in care
homes.

Back to contegts
?gage ol
40



800 -

722
700 -
600 -
500 -
DOFemale
400 -+
B Male
300 o 239
200
100
0
Physical:  Physical:  Physical: Physical: ~ Mental Mental  Learning Other No
Hearing Visual Dual Other Health Health  Disability Disability Disability
Sensory needs: needs:
Loss Dementia  Other
Male Female All
Physical: Hearing 8 8 16
Physical: Visual 8 28 36
Physical: Dual Sensory Loss 12 16 28
Physical: Other 91 85 176
Mental Health needs: Dementia 234 488 722
Mental Health needs: Other 63 80 143
Learning Disability 144 95 239
Other Disability 19 38 57
No Disability 39 36 75
618 874 1492

These figures follow the same patterns nationally.

Back to cont?:l;'gge 52

41



€g obed

Appendix 2 — Work programme for 2017 20

Strategic
leadership
and effective
collaborative
working
across
Kirklees in
safeguarding
adults

Statutory This will be Continue to develop the role of the deputy chair Board Chair Throughout
Safeguarding reflected in Further strengthen the contribution from lay the period of
. members .
Adults.Board 'S Board _ Ensure board meetings enable sufficient challenge this 3-year
consolidated membership and our recording/minutes demonstrate this plan
arrangements,
participation and Develop infrastructure to support the work of the Board Chair Achieved
attendance Board with partner’s engagement and leadership at
record all levels.
ecords Continue to engage with Police and Crime
Commissioner
Throughout
the period of
this 3-year
plan
The Board and The Board will Implement our engagement strategy ensuring we Board Throughout
its members are | have an take into account of the views of adults who have Members the period of
tabl N needs for care and support, their families, this 3
a.cgoun aple, engagemen advocates and carer representatives. IS o-year
visible and strategy fully The Boards work effectively reflects the needs of plan
operational by the ethnically diverse community of Kirklees

42

Back to contents



G abed

outward facing

2017

Continue to engage with third sector Board Chair Throughout
Proactively report on the work of the Safeguarding the period of
Adults Board, highlighting areas of good practice this 3-vear
(including use of social media). y
plan
Revise our communications strategy Communication | September
work stream 2017
The Board promotes a learning culture by Safeguarding Throughout
undertaking Safeguarding Adults Reviews, and Adults Review | the period of
sharing the learning from them .
sub group this 3-year
plan
The Board We will refresh Refine strategic priorities _ All Board June 2017
maintains a our 3-year Develop and publish a strategic plan Members
longer term strategic plan

strategic view

43

Back to contents




Appendix 3

KIRKLEES SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD

Board members June 2017

Name

Job title

Service/Organisation

Mike Houghton-Evans

INDEPENDENT CHAIR

Kim Brear Assistant Director Kirklees Council Housing Services
S . Calderdale and Huddersfield NHS

Victoria Thersby Head of Safeguarding Foundation Trust

Penny Woodhead Head of Quality vice chair Greater Huddersfield Clinical

Commissioning Group

Clive Barrett

Head of Safeguarding

The Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS

Julie Warren Sykes

Assistant Director of Nursing and Quality

South West Yorkshire Partnership
NHS Foundation Trust

Lee Thompson

Head of Safeguarding and Quality
Assurance

Kirklees Council

Hazel Wigmore

Lay Member — sadly during the final
production of this report, Hazel passed
away. Her contribution to the work of
the Board was immense, and she is
sadly missed.

Penny Renwick

Lay Member

Superintendent Khan

West Yorkshire Police

Richard Parry

Director for Commissioning, Public Health
and Adult Social Care

Kirklees Council

Mohammed Ali District Prevention Manager West Yorkshire Fire Service
Claire Jones Interim Quality and Safety Lead
Kerry Warhurst

(Yorkshire & Humber)

Senior Nurse — NHS England — North

NHS England (West Yorkshire)

Sarah Carlile

Safeguarding Adults Partnership Team
Manager

Kirklees Council

Razia Riaz

Senior Legal Officer

Kirklees Legal Services

Nikki Gibson

Head of Safeguarding

Yorkshire Ambulance Service NHS

44

Back to contgltasge

55



Kirklees Council

Gateway to care
First point of contact for making an alert:
Tel: 01484 414933

For policy advice and information contact:

Kirklees Safeguarding Adults Partnership Team

4th Floor, Civic Centre 1, High Street, Huddersfield, HD1 4NF
Tel: 01484 221717

Email: protection(dkirklees.gov.uk
www.kirklees.gov.uk/safeguarding

Police

Emergencies:

Always dial 999 in an emergency where there is a danger to life, or a

crime is in progress.

This number is available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

From a mobile phone, please dial 999 or 112.

Non-Emergencies:

Telephone 101 (24 hours a day, 7 days a week] for non-emergencies where:

* police attendance is required
e to report a crime
* to report other incidents

West Yorkshire Police Safeguarding Unit

The team of specialist police officers have expertise in supporting

the vulnerable and in partnership working.

Tel: 01924 335075

Where possible please use the email address below which is checked daily:
ea.safeguarding(dwestyorkshire.pnn.police.uk

WY West Yorkshire
LICE &

& Fire & Rescue Service

s GKirklees

ge




Agenda Item 8:

KIRKLEES HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

MEETING DATE: 14 December 2017
TITLE OF PAPER: CAMHS Local Transformation Plan Refresh
1. Purpose of paper

The Kirklees Health and Wellbeing Board are requested to approve the draft 2017 Kirklees CAMHS
Local Transformation Plan Refresh which NHS England specified had to be published by 31%
October 2017. This deadline did not naturally align with the Health and Wellbeing Board
scheduled meetings so an initial sign off of the draft was approved by the Chair and Deputy Chair
of the Board. The published refresh document remains a draft until the full approval has been
made.

2. Background

In 2015, Kirklees developed a co-produced a five year Transformation Plan to improve local Child
and Adolescent Mental Health Services and other services for children, young people and families
by 2020. The plan included 49 ambitious local priorities which were quality assured by NHS
England.

There is a requirement to publish quarterly progress reports and a refresh of the plan annually in
October of each year. This refresh adheres to the NHS England’s Key Lines of Enquiry
recommendations to inform on progress since 2015, identify commitment and local engagement
in 2017/2018 to planning commitments to improve access, capacity and capability by making
necessary preparations for future years.

In 2015 and 2016 we continued to report on our original 49 local priorities, some have progressed
well and are now beginning to support expected changes by 2020. The 2017 document reflects
systematic changes over time where we have been able to reduce and refine our original 49 local
priorities down to 25 concentrated priority areas which can begin to respond to changing local
services and need.

Implementation of the Kirklees Integrated 0 -19 Healthy Child Programmes began on the 1st April
2017. Commissioned services are working in partnership with Locala CIC under a delivery
umbrella title of Thriving Kirklees. This includes a number of previously independent local delivery
elements all of which are expected to support achievement of many of our revised local priorities.

The refresh also draws together a number of regional and national programmes which integrate
across our local systems and population, for example the Transforming Care Programme, SEND
requirements, the Five Year Forward View for Mental Health, the local NHS Sustainability and
Transformation Plan, the emerging Kirklees Early Intervention and Prevention model and the
Kirklees Early Help offer.

3. Proposal

The accompanying refresh plan considers the Q2 period July to September 2017 and our
intentions over the next twelve months from October 2017. There are 106 pages to the report
and the draft has been published on line at www.kirklees.gov.uk/futureinmind. The Board are
asked to endorse the refresh and support ongoing proposed progress from a strategic level.

4. Financial Implications

Greater Huddersfield CCG £577,000
North Kirklees CCG £469,000
Total allocation £1,046,000

Page 57


http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/futureinmind

5. Sign off

Rachel Spencer-Henshall. Strategic Director. Corporate Strategy and Public Health.
Approved draft report on 31° October 2017.

6. Next Steps

Once formal sign off has been agreed, first paragraph of the foreword on page 3 will be revised,
the draft watermark removed, formal signatures applied and the final document re-published,
together with an easy read version which is currently being revised by our local parents group
(PCAN). Both documents will be accessible to the public at www.kirklees.gov.uk/futureinmind

7. Recommendations
The Health and Wellbeing Board are asked to :

1. Approve the Kirklees CAMHS Local Transformation Plan refresh (2017).
2. Maintain a strategic oversight of the plan.

8. Contact Officer

Tom Brailsford

Joint Commissioning Manager
Tom.Brailsford@northkirkleesccg.nhs.uk

Page 58


http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/futureinmind

2017 Refresh
Draft

Children and Young
People’s Mental Health
and Wellbeing

s o e ¥ Kirkiees

Clinical Commissioning Group

&



Contents

Section Contents Page(s)
Foreword 3
1. Executive Summary 4-7
2. Introduction 4 8-11
3. Baseline Needs and Current Services 11-14
4. Service Provision Update 14 - 25
5. Key Engagement I\‘/Iessages.‘ , 25-30
6. Theme 1 - Promoting resilience, prevention and early
intervention for the mental wellbeing of children and 31-37
young people.
7. Theme 2 - Improving access to effective support —a 38 - 47
system without tiers.
8. Theme 3 - Caring for the most vulnerable. 48 - 51
0. Theme 4 - To be accountable and transparent. 52 -57
10. Theme 5 - Developing the workforce. 58 - 65
Appendix A Key Lines of Enquiry Timeline mapping. 66 -71
Appendix B 2017 Kirklees Transformation Plan Refresh Priorities. 72 -81
Appendix C  Kirklees Children’s and Young People Plan 2017 - 2020. 82
Appendix D  Issues and risks to delivery. 83
Appendix E 2016 Learning Skills Annual Report - Community Hubs. 84 — 85
Appendix F  Transforming Care Plans — Self Assessments. 86 - 97
Appendix G Thriving Kirklees — Provisional Implementation Plan 98
Appendix H  Kirklees Baseline Data Tables:
) ;i:'[i/?ti/e 99 — 104
— Workforce
11. References 105
12. Glossary and Acronyms 106

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017
2

Page 60



Foreword

Lead members of the Kirklees Health and Wellbeing Board have approved the
publication of the principles and priorities of this refresh. This draft will be presented
for formal sign off at the Health and Wellbeing Board in December 2017. An agreed
finalised version will be published via this link.

In 2015, Kirklees developed a co-produced a five year transformational plan to
improve children and young people’s mental health service in Kirklees. The plan
included ambitious targets which are quality.assured by NHS England.

As a collaborative working partnership we recognise that-if we want to make
changes that matter, our policies, strategiC documents and processes need to
change. With this in mind, our long term vision has two main aims:

e Firstly, to provide consistent.and practical early intervention approaches - to
identify, support.and promote emotional wellbeing and resilience for children,
young people and their families.

e Secondly, to build frontline capacity - to provide a range of treatment and
support options for children and young people experiencing mental health
problems.

Since April 2017 we have been working on mobilising the new Thriving Kirklees
service, drawing together a number of provisions and services to deliver an
integrated model to improve outcomes for children, young people and families. We
envisage the impact of this new provision will soon begin to deliver a much improved
experience of emotional health and wellbeing services for all that use them. This will
ensure that services are delivered in the right place, the right time and in the right
way for all our service users.

This document aims to reflect on our progress so far, celebrate our successes and
consider our future delivery challenges. We now look to the future by aligning our
intentions for 2018 to 2020 with the NHS England Five Year Forward View.

Awaiting formal sign off approval

Steve Walker David Sheard

Director of Children’s Services Chair of Health and Wellbeing Board
Kirklees Council

David Kelly Carol McKenna
Deputy Chair of Health and Wellbeing Board Chief Officer - Greater Huddersfield CCG

Richard Parry
Director of Commissioning
Public Health, Adult Social Care

31 October 2017

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
3

Page 61


http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/working-with-children/future-in-mind.aspx

1. Executive Summary

This report updates and summarises our original 2015 Kirklees Future in Mind
Transformation Plan for Children and Young People’s Mental Health and Wellbeing
and outlines our continuing long term transformation priorities for 2018.

CAMHS stands for Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services.

This term is used for all services that work with children and young people who have
difficulties with their emotional or behavioural wellbeing.

Visit the NHS England Choices web pages for more information.

)

This refresh reflects systematic chénges since’2015; we have reduced and refined
our original 49 local priorities down to 25 concentrated priority areas outlined below.
To maintain clarity, our eriginal local priorities continue to be referred to under the
five Future in Mind headings presented below.

Theme 1 Promoting resilience, prevention and early intervention for the

mental wellbeing of children and young people.

We will;

e Implement clear joint working arrangements between schools and emotional
health and wellbeing provision. This will include:

o A CAMHS school link model supporting schools, primary care and
other universal provisions.

o Implement a joint training programme to support the link roles within
primary care, schools, CAMHS provisions and to support joined up
working across services.

LPS 2 (1.2),LPS 8 (2.4) and LPS 9 (2.5)

e Have emotional health and wellbeing provision collaboratively commissioned
with educational settings. LPS 3 (1.3)

e Ensure our 0-19 practitioners and peer supporters are intervening earlier
around emotional health and wellbeing. LPS 1.12

e Co-produce with young people, peer education programmes for children and
young people that promote resilience, and assist with early identification of
emotional health and wellbeing issues. LPS 4 (1.4)

e Develop an early help offer in conjunction with children’s social care, ensuring
Thriving Kirklees fits in the proposed model to help deliver a common set of
outcomes improving emotional health and wellbeing. LPS 1.5

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
4

Page 62


https://www.nhs.uk/NHSEngland/AboutNHSservices/mental-health-services-explained/Pages/about-childrens-mental-health-services.aspx

e Ensure the nurturing parent programme is be delivered throughout early help
services, children’s centres and voluntary sector provision, to improve
maternal bonding and attachment, having an increased focus on supporting
and improving perinatal mental health provision. LPS 1.6 and 1.7

e Implement a comprehensive training programme to develop children and
young people’s resilience, and raise their awareness of emotional health and
wellbeing issues. LPS 1.8

e Continue to develop a range of innovative secial media based interventions to
provide support to children and young people, helping to build resilience and
improve health and wellbeing. LPS 1.9 and 1.10

Theme 2 Improving access to effective support —a system without tiers

We will:
e Implement Thrive Elaborated across our local CAMHS provision. LPS 5 (2.1)

e Continue to increase front line capacity within CAMHS provision to reduce
waiting times and improve access for children and young people in line with
the new national access standard. LPS 6 (2.2)

e Deliver a 24/7 Single Point of Contact model, one stop shop approach for
advice, support, signposting, consultation and assessment and co-ordination
of Thriving Kirklees provision delivery. LPS 10 (2.6) and LPS 11 (2.7)

¢ In North Kirklees, provide a local crisis model that ensures assessment within
4 hours in line with the Crisis Care Concordat, and utilises our re-designed all
age psychiatric liaison service. LPS 12 (2.8) and LPS 29 (2.9)

e Further strengthen the assertive outreach Intensive Home Treatment model in
partnership with West Yorkshire New Care Models. Preventing admission to
Tier 4, assisting with transition back to a community setting with clear
comprehensive pathways including an assertive community outreach model
through our CAMHS provision that actively engages with children, young
people and families. LPS 2.10 and 3.7

e Support a regional case management and care navigation function that co-
ordinates care and discharge for those young people in Tier 4 settings and
those requiring a “step down” placement. Collaboratively commission with
NHS England to ensure clear and smooth care pathways are in place in
relation to Tier 4 provision. LPS 2.12 and 4.9

e Deliver an integrated team for children with learning disabilities between
specialist CAMHS and Kirklees Council Children with a Disability Team.
LPS 2.14

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
5

Page 63



Implement the recommendations from the Lenahan review, “Building the right
support” and the recent NHS England Guidance “Developing support and
services for children and young people with a learning disability, autism or
both”. LPS 2.15

Theme 3  Caring for the most vulnerable

We will:

>

Continue to provide and further enhanpeﬁ CAMHS link and consultation
model for the most vulnerable chlldren’includlng looked after children,
children in the youth offending teammhﬂdren experiencing sexual exploitation,
care leavers and children onc child prete}ctlon plans across Kirklees.

LPS 13 (3.1) and LPS 14 (3 )

y /_\\
Jointly develop thé K|rklees Councn Sufficiency Strategy for Looked after
Children and to ehsure that the Looked after Children CAMHS provision

meets locally |dent|f|edﬂeeds LPS 3.10

Ensure rapid access to CAMHS interventions for those children who are part
of the Stronger Families programme. LPS 15 (3.3)

Theme 4 To be accountable and transparent

We will;

Continue to provide single set of quality, performance and outcomes
measures across the whole emotional health and wellbeing provision. This
will report to relevant bodies including our local Health and Wellbeing Board.
LPS 4.11

Theme 5 Developing the workforce

We will:

Develop a comprehensive workforce strategy for CAMHS across Kirklees.
The strategy will inform and direct how workforce development will be
supported and implemented across all providers involved in the delivery of a
tier less service. LPS 28 (5.4)

Ensure CAMHS providers are fully participating in Children and Young People
Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (CYP IAPT) programme core
curriculum in 2017/18. LPS 25 (5.1)

Support school based staff, parents and other providers to deliver
interventions at a universal level to increase resilience in children and young
people and families. LPS 5.6

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017

6

Page 64



e Support workforce development and transformation across the emotional
health and wellbeing provision. LPS 5.7

e Ensure that where required staff can access appropriate training and
continuing development opportunities to enable them to deliver relevant
evidence based interventions. Access to appropriate training should be made
available for those who need help to support children and young people
LPS 27 (5.3)

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
7

Page 65



2. Introduction

Our 2015 Transformation Plan included our first year priorities which shaped the
foundations of our longer term vison to improve local Child and Adolescent Mental
Health Services and other services for children, young people and families by 2020.

Our refreshed plan published in October 2016 reported on progress in the first twelve
months and our intentions to continue the improvement journey. This 2017 refresh
should be read in conjunction with the original and.réfreshed plans, which can be
found with other supporting information at www.Kirklees.gov.uk/futureinmind.

The 2015 Kirklees Transformation Plan is a’living document which is reviewed and
updated to say what we have achieved and what we intend to do next. Achievement
of many of our local priorities is inter-dependent with other priorities under the five
Future in Mind theme headings.

Once the 2017 draft refresh has been formally signed off, we will publish an easy
read accessible format version of the key headlines for children and young people,
parents, carers, those with a learning disability and those from other sectors and
services beyond health. We will continue to publish our online newsletter which
provides the public with headline updates on progress.

Since 2015, we have been reporting on our original 49 local priorities, some have
progressed well and are beginning to support expected changes by 2020. This
refresh retains the spirit of our 2015 plan, while combining priorities into updated
sections.

This refresh adheres to the NHS England’s Key Lines of Enquiry recommendations
to inform on progress since 2015 and identify commitment and local engagement in
2017/2018 to deliver planning commitments to improve access, capacity and
capability by making necessary preparations for future years.

The refresh also draws together a number of regional and national programmes
which integrate across our local systems and population, for example the
Transforming Care Programme and SEND requirements, the Five Year Forward
View for Mental Health, the local NHS Sustainability and Transformation Plan, the
emerging Kirklees Early Intervention and Prevention model and the Kirklees Early
Help offer.

Appendix A, details our annual progression as a timeline to demonstrate our journey
since 2015 in relation to our original 49 priorities and the subsequent adaptations
made to begin to respond to changing local services and need.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
8

Page 66


http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/futureinmind
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/working-with-children/pdf/future-in-mind/2017-18/camhs-e-bulletin-april-june-2017.pdf
http://www.nhsconfed.org/news/2016/07/implementing-the-five-year-forward-view-for-mental-health
http://www.nhsconfed.org/news/2016/07/implementing-the-five-year-forward-view-for-mental-health
https://www.wakefieldccg.nhs.uk/fileadmin/STP/Publications/Final-draft-submission-plan.pdf

To maintain descriptive consistency this refresh is based around the five Future in
Mind theme headings, summarising our achievements and priorities which continue
to be addressed to ensure that we achieve our original ambitions.

Appendix B, provides additional referencing to identify progress towards our revised
Kirklees Transformation Plan Priority Themes and the services which contribute to
the process. This appendix also identifies original priorities that have been achieved
and whilst they are archived they remain in sight for review as required.

Appendix H, provides the 2016/17 baseline information on Finance, Activity and
workforce. Missing activity data will up updated prior to formal sign off.

West Yorkshire and Harrogate Sustainability’and Transformation Plan

Since the development of the Kirklees CAMHS Transformation Plan, Clinical
Commissioning Groups Sustainability and Transformation Plans have become more
established to include developed and detailed priorities for their local populations.

The West Yorkshire and Harrogate Sustainability and Transformation Plan include
key overarching themes including mental health. The mental health proposals
states:
“The providers of mental health services, working with commissioners and
partners, are developing a Shared Outcomes Model to reduce variation in
quality, improve outcomes and drive efficiency to ensure the sustainability of
services”.

Work is ongoing to cross reference and map the CAMHS Transformation Plan
refreshed outcomes with the Kirklees Sustainability and Transformation Plan high
level aims which include:

e The development of the Early Intervention and Prevention Programme
including a thriving voluntary and community sector.

e Implementing and building on the Thriving Kirklees Healthy Child
Programme.

e Improving the capacity and quality of primary care (including GP Forward
View).

e Making social care provision more sustainable and more effective, including
the development of vibrant and diverse independent sector.

¢ Implementation of the Transforming Care Programme for people with learning
disabilities.

e Changes to the commissioner landscape, including more integrated
approaches.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
9

Page 67


https://www.wakefieldccg.nhs.uk/fileadmin/STP/Publications/Final-draft-submission-plan.pdf

It has been important to ensure the CAMHS Transformation Plan is closely aligned
to the Sustainability and Transformation Plan as a key driver in supporting shared
outcomes for the population of Kirklees.

A recent review of both plans shows that they are closely aligned and have the
underpinning ethos of the Future in Mind report. The Sustainability and
Transformation Plans originally published as a draft are currently being revisited to
incorporate an implementation plan which will have-a.greater emphasis on their
relationship with the CAMHS Transformation Rlan~ From the development dialogue
so far we are confident that both plans look tox

e Develop robust connections between commissioners and workforce
development leads.

e Ensure that every child and young person enjoys a happy and healthy
childhood, become confident adults who can cope with the demands of
everyday life and contribute to their community.

e Contribute to the children’s agenda and meeting the changing needs of local
populations.

e Compliment strategic visions and approaches to improve the efficiency,
quality and New Models of Care.

e Provide visible accountability, improving existing partnerships and formulating
new partnerships and collaboration with key stakeholders.

e Deliver local visions in addressing gaps in health and quality of care,
efficiency and finance.

e Provide frameworks for overall delivery of improved support around emotional
wellbeing and mental health.

e Ensure the Local Digital Roadmaps further advances partnerships and
supports the enablement of joined up actions to meet local priorities.

e Across our local footprint and at a West Yorkshire level collaboration and a
joined up approach exists in joint commissioning initiatives and delivery of
accessible support.

e To have shared visions around their whole workforce development plans.

The West Yorkshire Sustainability and Transformation Plan has been developed
from the 6 local ‘place based’ plans. The Kirklees Health and Wellbeing Plan was
approved by the Health and Wellbeing Board in June 2017. Transformation of
CAMHS is a local challenge and as such is central to the Improving Services for
Children priority and associated Changes to the Commissioner and Provider
Landscape priority.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
10

Page 68


http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/working-with-children/pdf/future-in-mind/2017-18/KirkleesHealthWellbeingPlan.pdf

Reference to inter-relating CAMHS priorities are made in the Kirklees Health and
Wellbeing Plan on pages 13, 14, 27, 32, 33, 36, 37 and 53. A condensed summary
overview of the full plan is included as Appendix C.

3. Baseline Needs and Current Services

Kirklees has developed a new online Kirklees Joint Strategic Analysis resource
which is accessible to the public and provides a picture of the health and wellbeing of
Kirklees people which is used to inform the commissioning strategies and plans of
the council, Greater Huddersfield CCG, North Akirklees CCG and the local voluntary
and community sector.

>

It includes information about health needs and assets across Kirklees. Health assets
help people and communities to maintain and sustain their health and well-being,
such as skills, knowledge, their networks and connections and community spaces.
From 2017 every section will be reviewed and updated on a 2 yearly cycle.

Infant mortality rates in Kirklees are amongst the Kirklees has one of the highest rates of low
highest in the region birth weight term babies in the region
However rates have reduced by a third in the last decade: Rates in 2015/16 are higher for South Asian
2004-06 | 2013-15 mothers compared with White British mothers:
15 || 5.0 South Asian | White British
deaths per 1000 live births 4.8% 2.8%
Rates are highest in the most deprived areas
Healthy weight ¢ & % % ¥ V¢ 2 © R:most deprived
Reception age: ¥ ¥ %W W vear 6 children; W ¥ W W& % OR (cact deprived
23 t ? ? ! ! ! 19 OUt ¥ ? ! ! ! 20 Yr6: most deprived
0Ut & o o o ¥ & 0 o o

© Yr6: least deprived
¥ G0 G O O W 0 G G0 O
of30 & % ¥ 0 FTTee
Obesity levels amongst pupils living in the most deprived decile are >

dﬂllb|e those in the least deprived decile (Reception and Year 6)

2007‘200‘8 J 2|01‘||~201IZ J ;015‘2016
% children achieving good level of 609 achieve 5+ GCSE (A*-C)
development at end of reception is

Q/o/’oé@ < improving, but below England value Girls outperform boys
: 67% | 53%
Pupil absence levels ) : )
® are better than the Least deprived outperform most deprived
> 2ol 2o ok o onal 1% | 45°%
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 regional average o o

The content uses a life course approach to explain who is affected and where and
outlines what actions commissioners and service planners can consider and reflects
our ambition to balance information about health needs with information about
available services and resources.

-O- England  -O- Kirklees

~
v

% children
v
o

We will continue to find ways to engage with local communities, councillors, the
voluntary and community sector and Kirklees partner organisations to develop the
format and content of the KJSA to make it as easy as possible for people to
understand the full picture of health and wellbeing needs and assets in Kirklees.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
11

Page 69


https://observatory.kirklees.gov.uk/jsna

This includes providing mental health and emotional wellbeing information around

the needs of children and young people and their families.

Good physical health
o Good mental health is vital for {
The fulfilment of potential

Positive relationships & friendships

Factors supporting
good mental

et q.g
health include:
L by’

Five ways to wellbeing

The story in Kirklees...

- 87% are happy with what they have (money & things they own)

#

v
- ’ 290/0 lose sleep at least 1-2 days/week
1in3 230/0: Low <-- Wellbeing score --> High :170/0 of Yr 9 & 11 pupils
n

adults have a mental
health condition
(up from1in 5 in 2012)

) Poor mental health is more common in carers,
younger adults and those living in more
deprived areas or social rented housing

Almost half of people
9= that never exercise have
" 7 amental health condition

3%

most/all of the time:  of those with.

[ Feeling lonely/isolated 17% vs

of those without

e J

a mental health condition

health condition rate their
happiness level as high

25% of those with a long-term
(compared with 41% without a LTC)

Kirklees has one of the lowest suicide rates in the region (' The rate is significantly higher for males than females

To keep up to date with the latest information a blog is available. The blog highlights
key pieces of insight and signposts to newly published updated information.

The innovative approach to presenting content via the new KJSA web site recently
received a glowing endorsement by LARIA (Local Area Research and Intelligence
Association). The KJSA was shortlisted for its annual 2017 Research Impact
Awards in the category of ‘Most Engaging Presentation of Local Area Research’, and

was given a highly commended rating.

In July 2017, we updated the vulnerable children section which is a really important
part of the commissioning cycle in making sure our current provision is based on
local intelligence about needs, available services and resources and allows us to see
if our current commissioning is addressing identified issues of need.

Children

Adults

68,395 Pupils
5,838 Sorere >

‘ Have SEN
1 ’789 statement

people provide
unpaid care

20010212 1in 6 acus

are carers

‘ 598 Looked after

children

N EEEEER Children
P88 s1in12:000,

311

Young people (under 18 yrs) supervised
by Youth Offending Team (2015/16)

892

working age people
are disabled

including 7,500-8,300 adults
with a learning disability

People with community orders or suspended
sentences supervised by Kirklees Community
Rehabilitation Company

Women Men Estimated number of -” 1
victims of domestic
C 12’020 I 8’501 ’ abuse in Kirklees 131

An estimated 2 in 3

Asylum seekers in Kirklees \J

People will be housed through Syrian
resettlement programme

refugees are suffering from
anxiety & depression

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017
12

Page 70


https://observatory.kirklees.gov.uk/jsna/kirklees_overview
http://observatory.kirklees.gov.uk/jsna/blog
https://observatory.kirklees.gov.uk/jsna/specific-groups-life-events/vulnerable_children

There are around

naneen: 2

o 13

542

UNDER-18s i

inKirklees s Mt
i Children requiring... 5 k ;" Children with a...
| Early Help i Child Protection Plan
- ] 6 % 5 ; %

% 50% ;i 52% 48%
{CriLorRen 2% 2% Ghiloren 2% A8% CHIL REN 50 | CHILDREN
[ [ . iRoe e inge
i - |mu«;-m|m_n_:;_ W | T e n»’;i o \
Location z& Location f&a Location AAA Location Location

; | 288 [ |y QU v i

FAMILIES U o ARta i, 29% ouror antade, 25% ouros ana H conepmatn, 7% v anea g, 12%
[ Eanty ER fesperienceg X NEGLECT oo i F FOSTER N EDHCATIoN '
i HELP w1 REESE % siim 1"_% - 9% i CARERS 0% /L ETRAINING 2%
i i HE [ i H
:_“Elhmm!v. :E_,'f,\‘ i nxmlv ey bmny =i

0 he MOST COMMON res

)
H 53% 47% go missing
| SLpREN 21158 4 s “m“ﬁ

The vulnerable children content describes the wide range of problems this group
faces which helps us think more broadly as commissioners about how we support
vulnerable children and their families. The content also provides really useful insights
and intelligence about specific cohorts of children within our vulnerable population,
such as levels of emotional wellbeing amongst our local looked after population.

Implementation of our CAMHS Transformation Plan and the Healthy Child
Programme has been identified in The Kirklees Sustainability and Transformation
Plan as a high level intervention to help respond and address these challenges. This
is in line with Recommendation 1 of The Five Year Forward View for Mental Health

report from the independent Mental Health Taskforce to NHS England in February
2016.

This refresh takes account of identified mental health and emotional wellbeing needs
which were updated in November 2016.

Health Inequalities

A ‘healthy’ child or young person is one who: “Enjoys a positive state of physical,
mental and social wellbeing, not merely the absence of disease, and is able to

identify and realise their aspirations, satisfy their needs and change or (at least) cope
with their environment.” (WHO,1986).

This means working together to:
« Give every child the best start in life (‘Starting Well’ Life course stage);

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
13
Page 71



* Ensure that all children, young people and adults are able to make the best
use of their strengths and abilities and to have control over their lives.
(Marmot, 2010).

To improve health inequalities locally, ensuring children and young people receive
the right care, at the right time and in the right place, delivery of the Thriving Kirklees
model includes:

o Afive year Section 75 pooled funding agreement, with management oversight
by the Integrated Commissioning Group, both Clinical Commissioning Groups
and the Health and Wellbeing Board.

e Directing and targeting services to'where there is greatest need, differentiating
between universal services and targeted services to overcome access
barriers. ‘

e Re-orient health and care services towards primary prevention and
improvement in health, especially emotional health.

e Prioritising child and adolescent mental health to ensure timely access to
services to meet levels of need through a single point of contact.

e Implement strategies to reduce waiting times which ensure children and
young people access appropriate levels of care and treatment.

¢ Providing safe appropriate mental health facilities for crisis and in-patient care.

e Strengthening public health responses to children, young people, their parents
and carers.

e Co-production is central to strengthening community action, focussing on
assets and strengths.

4. Service Provision Update

Implementation of the Kirklees Integrated 0 -19 Healthy Child Programmes began on
the 1% April 2017. The commissioned services work in partnership with Locala CIC
under a delivery umbrella title of Thriving Kirklees which includes a number of
previously independent local delivery elements of:

a. ASK CAMHS - a single point of access telephone number.
b. ChEWS - Children’s Emotional Wellbeing Service,
c. Specialist CAMHS.

Under Thriving Kirklees, services report that working practices between ChEWS and
Specialist CAMHS have already begun to develop best practice approaches based
on the Thrive Elaborated model as an early step towards change where they are no
longer being referred to as tiers of service in our delivery model and local priorities.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
14

Page 72


http://www.annafreud.org/media/3214/thrive-elaborated-2nd-edition29042016.pdf

4.1 Single Point of Contact

Delivery of a 24/7 single point of contact as a one stop shop approach for advice,
support, signposting, consultation, assessment and co-ordination was included in the
Thriving Kirklees specification and Transformation Plan Priorities.

A Single Point of Access provision continued to be provided by Northorpe Hall Child
and Family Trust under the working title of ASK CAMHS between April and October
2017 whilst a new single point of contact was planned and developed. During this
period ASK CAMHS provided extended opening-hours to provide quicker responses
to telephone assessments and increased access to support and advice.

Between April 2016 and March 2017, ASK CAMHS received 3,175 phone calls
where callers received immediate advice and support or the case was assessed as
in need of onward referral'to a CAMHS provision.

Between July and September 2017, ASK CAMHS received 729 support requests;
this is an increase of 59 compared to the same period in 2016. 558 of these
requests were received by telephone. 40.9% of calls were from a parent or carer and
22.6% from GP Practices.

57.3% of the new support requests related to children and young people aged
between 11 and 19 years. 910 telephone assessments were completed during the
period of July to September 2017 with an average waiting time of 25.9 days between
the support request date and telephone assessment. However, this was due to a
higher wait at the start of July 2017. The wait times reported for September 2017
were an average of 1.3 days.

A new single point of contact telephone number was established on the 2™ October
2017 when it superseded the pre-existing ASK CAMHS referral pathway and now
provides access to help and advice 24 hours a day, seven days a week for all the
following 0 — 19 services functioning under Thriving Kirklees which includes:

* Health visiting and School nursing

* Specialist Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services

* Children’s Emotional Health and Wellbeing Service (ChEWS)
» Autistic Spectrum Condition assessment and diagnosis

* Children and Young People with Learning Disabilities Team

* Home-Start

* Healthy Start Vitamin Scheme

+ Safety in the Home

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
15

Page 73



+ Safety Rangers

By providing a single front door and triage approach, service users are now directed
to the relevant and appropriate professionals from the outset. This includes onward
referrals to the ASK CAMHS pathway processes through Northorpe Hall Child and
Family Trust.

To compliment the new Single Point of Contact a Thriving Kirklees website is under
development to provide information about Thriving Kirklees services, health advice
and an online referral form for practitioners and the public to request support for
children, young people and families — this includes young people themselves who
can access help and support directly.

It is too early to evaluate or identify any impé‘ct the new process will have in terms of
advice and support and CAMHS waiting times./Commissioners and providers will
monitor progress over the.coming months to implement improvement changes were
necessary.

4.2 ChEWS - Children’s Emotional Wellbeing Service

Northorpe Hall Child and Family Trust continues to provide short term direct
interventions for those aged 5 to 19 whose emotional needs are impacting on their
day to day lives but does not provide an immediate response service. The service is
a Thriving Kirklees partner and functions under the working title of ChEWS.

Between April 2016 and March 2017, ChEWS received 2,160 referrals, 475 of these
were referrals directly made by schools or school nurses. 1,408 of all the referrals
went on to receive direct support from the CAMHS service.

Whilst children and young people may be referred to CAMHS with a single issue
once seen by the service many are identified as having several presenting issues
which all need to be addressed to improve their emotional health and wellbeing.

April 2016 to March 2017
Top Presenting Issues

14.30%

11.90% 12.10%

430% 460%
3.30%

2.70% 2.70%
1.60% 2:00% 2.10%

& & ; &) ) 4
£ & & N N 3 > & & & i€ o
& O & Qooo ?}KR‘ & e & -s‘é\ &
¥ & o < AQ’ 2 .z?fQ N “\\Q" \(P N3 %59
R & ,00:"7 ) .(,\6 & &*
& ® 3 N &
Q © & & &
¥ X
L)?‘
\,°$
Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017

16
Page 74


http://www.thrivingkirklees.org.uk/

The above chart shows similar trends (of the 9,489 issues recorded) between April
2016 and March 2017.

Since April 2017, referral rates into ChEWS have continued to increase. Average
waiting times for April to June 2017 were reported at 18.6 weeks with 194 children
and young people on a waiting list. At the end of August 2017, there were 292
children and young people waiting for treatment and this had increased to 323 at the
end of September 2017. The average wait time for-first appointments were at 20.5
weeks, had increased to an average of 22.7 weeks.in September 2017.

The following chart shows some of the most common presenting issues (of the 5,121
issues recorded) for those children and young people seen between April 2017 and
August 2017. ! '

54%

April to August 2017 - Presenting Issues

The average length of interventions also increased from 62.1 days (or 8.9 weeks) in
April 2017 to 83.8 days (or 10.46 weeks) by August 2017. By September 2017 the
average time in intervention was 78.1 days. August tends to be high due to holidays
meaning they remain in service longer and September again high as catching up
from impact of holidays over summer.

Of the 292 on the waiting list in August 2017, 43 were waiting for counselling, 142 to
see a Senior Practitioner, 103 for an Emotional Health Worker and 4 for group work.
The below table provides a monthly breakdown.

Waiting Lists
Apr-17 | May-17 | Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17
Counselling 21 25 33 52 43
Senior Practitioner 51 o1 113 129 142
Emotional Health Worker 79 77 43 52 103
Group Work & 6 5 14 4
Total 157 199 194 247 292
Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017

17
Page 75



Care needs to be taken when analysing data which can vary month by month and
the responses based on referral rates and identified need. The volume of referrals
continues to put pressure on the service managing waiting times. The numbers on
the list remains a priority focus with commissioners and providers who are working
together to effect change.

The service continues to experience a demand on their delivery as monthly referrals
increase. This will need changes to be made in existing delivery practices across
the CAMHS provision and partner services.  ChEWS have agreed to work towards a
trajectory target of reducing waiting times to 10 weeks from referral to first
appointment by August 2018.

Whilst this will begin to align with national waiting time standards proposals, the
challenges involved to achieve the trajectory target is included as a risk in Appendix
D as these are viewed as stretch targets against existing budgets and service
capacity.

4.3 Specialist Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS)

Specialist CAMHS is a Thriving Kirklees partner delivered by South West Yorkshire
NHS Foundation Trust. The service works with children and young people up to the
age of 18, and offers a range of assessments and treatment options.

Service activity here covers the months following implementation of Thriving Kirklees
between April 2017 and August 2017. The average wait to first treatment contact for
those seen by the service was just under 14 weeks. Of the 577 referrals into service
during this period were seen by Generic CAMHS with 17 young people waiting
access to treatment at the end of August 2017.

At the end of September 2017, a total 430 young people were waiting for treatment
across the Generic CAMHS provision. 337 of these were for Autism Spectrum
Disorder assessments and 21 for Generic Core CAMHS.

The average waiting times from referral to treatment for those starting treatment in
September for Generic Core CAMHS was 43 days and for Autism Spectrum
Disorder assessments 103 weeks.

Inappropriate referrals to the service remain low having progressively reduced into
Generic CAMHS since referrals were routed through the ASK CAMHS single point of
access in April 2016, to an average of 23 young people a month.

The average length of episodes for Generic CAMHS in August 2017 was 21 months
which involved an average of 25 contacts per referral for those entering treatment.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
18

Page 76



As with ChEWS, waiting times remain a priority with commissioners and providers
working together to effect changes in delivery practices across the Generic CAMHS
provision and partner services. We have agreed a target to reduce waiting times by
August 2018 to 10 weeks from referral to treatment for the specialist Core CAMHS
provision. The challenges involved to achieve this target is included as a risk in
Appendix D.

In terms of our access target for the whole of the CAMHS system we planned to
increase access to NHS community funded CAMHS provision for children and young
people across Kirklees by 30% by April 2018. .

This target is based on the total number of children-and young people accessing
treatment locally, with 1,393 being from the Nofth Kirklees Clinical Commissioning
Group geographical area and-1,440 from the Greater Huddersfield Clinical
Commissioning Group'geographical area. Based on currently referral and treatment
figures to date, we anticipate meeting the 30% target in 2017/18.

In October 2018, the ChEWS CAMHS service had seen 1,066 children and young
people and Specialist CAMHS had seen 1,337 children and young people.

4.4 Autism Spectrum Condition (ASC)

We continue to invest a significant amount in our Autism Spectrum Condition
provision which provides a multidisciplinary team model that is compliant with
National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) and managed within
Thriving Kirklees.

We have invested in the new Autism Spectrum Disorder provision as part of the
Thriving Kirklees model which increases the number of assessments undertaken for
children and young people to 23 a month. We have also invested non-recurrent
funding into the service in its first year to provide additional assessments in an
attempt to reduce the assessment waiting times to an agreed trajectory of 12
months.

Service activity monitoring here covers the months following implementation of
Thriving Kirklees, from April 2017 to August 2017. Of the 577 referrals into Generic
CAMHS service during this period 81 were for an ASD assessment with only one
young person being deemed an inappropriate referral.

As reported in 2016, we continue to see a maintained increase in referral numbers
for Autism Spectrum Conditions; referrals have increased from an average of 13 a
month to an average of 20 a month.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
19
Page 77



There were 267 young people waiting for an assessment at the end of October 2017,
113 of those young people had been waiting between 6- 12 months, 113 had been
waiting between 12 and 24 months and 21 had been waiting more than 2 years. The
service has agreed a trajectory target to reduce waiting times to 12 months by
August 2018. We are currently working with the provider to review why referral rates
have increased, and exploring different models of pre-assessment and triage to
understand and meet need and manage demand.

4.5 Community Eating Disorder Service

The South West Yorkshire NHS Foundation Trust wide . Community Eating Disorder
Service was originally commissioned in 2016 to cover the geographical areas of
Barnsley, Calderdale, Kirklees and Wakefield;

A Regional Commissioning Group co-produced a service delivery model and
agreement for the existing service to continue until 2020. Both North Kirklees and
Greater Huddersfield Clinical Commissioning Groups are partners in the eating
disorder cluster with the other areas involved.

The Community Eating Disorders Team for Barnsley, Wakefield, Calderdale and
Kirklees have recently produced a service pathways document which once ratified
will be shared with GPs and local networks to bring into line published information
with other CAMHS pathways.

The area wide Specialist Community Eating Disorder team operates a network of
smaller teams of eating disorder clinicians in neighbouring areas, via a ‘hub and
spoke model’ which is described in the Access and Waiting Time Standard for
Children with an Eating Disorder (National Collaborating Centre for Mental Health,
2015) and is in line with the model recommended in NHS England’s commissioning
guidance.

The area wide team are members of the Quality Network for Community CAMHS
(QNCC) which is a members’ network working with professionals from health, social
services, education and the voluntary sector to improve the quality of CAMHS
services. The team are also members of the National Training Group and participate
in QNCC peer reviews to ensure the service meets operational and service user
needs. The team currently undertakes internal peer reviews but from November
2017, are arranging to have independent peer reviews in place.

The ‘hub’ performs a professional leadership and learning network role across the
full service to ensure robust and consistent approaches to staff development and
quality assurance.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
20
Page 78



The services functions within three local teams/areas (Barnsley, Wakefield,
Calderdale/ Kirklees) and is integrated within the Generic Child and Adolescent
Mental Health Service (CAMHS) management arrangements.

The ‘hub’ comprises of a lead Consultant Psychiatrist and the Eating Disorder
pathway leads (specialist clinicians) from each local team alongside the CAMHS

Operational Lead and Practice Governance Coaches who are co-opted as required.

The following flow chart shows the current structural format.

BARNSLEY, WAKEFIELD, CALDERDALE & KIRKLEES
EATING DISORDER SERVICE

[ Director of Forensic & Specialist Services ]
[ Deputy Director of Operations ]
| |
General Manager — Barnsley CAMHS .
Trust Wide Exting Disorder Service Operational Lead General Manager - Wakefield, Calderdale & Kirklees CAMHS

___________ ‘

Trust Wide Esting Disorder Service |

1 Portfolic Lead 1 Chinical Lead 1
e o o o o o o o = "
SPECIALIST BARMSLEY CAMHS SPECIALIST WAKEFIELD CAMHS SPECIALIST CALDERDALE &
Team Manager Team Manager KIRKLESS CAMHS
Consultant Psychistrist Consultant Psychiatrist Team Manager
SMHP: Pathway Lead Trurst Wide Exting Disorder Service Consultant Peychiat rist

Clinical Lead SMHF: Pathway Lead
SMHP: Pathway Lead

Outcome monitoring aims to inform, quantify and demonstrate how treatment
interventions impact on the lives of the children and young people using the services.
Routine Outcome Monitoring (ROM) is embedded across clinical pathways being
established in accordance with Access and Waiting Time Standard for Children with
an Eating Disorder. To ensure data quality the monitoring process includes
individual case file audits. Whilst successes are being achieved, the full impact of
the Eating Disorder Service has yet to be evaluated.

The service offers a training programme to universal services which is subject to
ongoing development with the potential in the future to include:

o schools, targeting year 10s and 11s

o Healthy eating — all ages

o Primary care — contribute to GP training programme, or ad hoc in house

training
J Paediatrics
o Adult mental health

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
21

Page 79



Referrals received between January 2017 and August 2017 were for an assessment
for those with a suspected eating disorder:

Greater

Huddersfield North Kirklees Totals

Routine 5 10 15
Urgent/Serious 2 11 13
Emergency 0 1 1

7 22 29

Both the urgent or serious referrals from Greater Huddersfield and two from North
Kirklees did not meet the access to service criteria which readjusts the total number
of referrals during the period to 25, who were predominantly female. Any referral not
meeting the access criteria were redirected back to the referral source.

Children and young people with . a presenting issue of ‘eating difficulties’ as opposed
to eating disorders or conditions are supported by the Thriving Kirklees ChEWS
provision. Between April and August 2017, eating difficulty presenting issues related
to 152 (11%) children and young people. Between April 2016 and March 2017 this
related to 288 (2.7%) of the top presenting issues for children and young people see
Section 4.2 for more detail.

The service shares data nationally by quarterly submissions using Unify which is a
secure system, used across the NHS for collection of patient data. Commissioners
have agreed a number of key local performance indicators. These relate to children
and young people (up to the age of 19) referred for assessment or treatment for an
eating disorder who should receive NICE-approved treatment with a designated
healthcare professional within one week (7 days) for urgent cases and within four
weeks (28 days) for routine cases.

Due to the rolling nature of appointments, monthly reporting data only provides a
snapshot of clients waiting for treatment, were clients may have an appointment
booked but have not yet attended their appointment in that period.

Greater . Kirklees
Huddersfield North Kirklees Totals

Routine

Within 4 weeks 12 6 18
Over 4 weeks 2 3 5
Urgent/Emergency

Within 1 week 4 7 11
Over 1 week 5 5 10

During the reviewed period the average for those who did not attend across Kirklees
was 10%. The service pro-actively follows up non-attendance for initial assessments

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
22

Page 80



and appointments and data for missed appointments is recorded. This is carried out
at a service level to identify where engagement difficulties could be resolved.

4.6 Crisis Provision and Home Treatment Provision

The service activity monitoring reported here covers the months following
implementation of Thriving Kirklees, from April 2017 to August 2017. Of the 577
referrals into the service during this period 155 (an average 31 a month) were seen
as a Crisis Intervention. Four were subsequently,deemed inappropriate for the
provision. In August 2017 all of these referrals were being responded to within 4
hours.

The development of our intensive and home tréatment provision has ensured that
children and young people-who may have previously needed admitting to hospital
are able to have close monitoring and support in the community. This has been
particularly utilised in cases subject to Care Education Treatment Reviews and
cases of self-harm.

South West Partnership NHS Foundation Trust is included within the West Yorkshire
and Harrogate Sustainability and Transformation Plans and West Yorkshire Mental
Health Trust Collaborative which recently submitted a CAMHS-related New Models
of Care proposal to NHS England.

The New Models of Care proposal focuses on developing robust and consistent
approaches by reducing the need for inpatient stays through strengthening the
capacity of crisis and intensive home based treatment teams offering flexible 24/7
support and establishing care navigation roles. The care navigator will play a key
role in supporting safe and timely discharge planning.

4.7 Tier 4

Between July 2016 and June 2017, North of England Commissioning Support data
shows there were 24 CAMHS patient admissions from Kirklees. 21 of these referrals
were from the Greater Huddersfield Clinical Commissioning Group catchment area
which is much higher than the 3 referrals made from the North Kirklees Clinical
Commissioning Group catchment area. Further work is needed to understand any
rationale for the differences in area referral rates. Actions to address this are set out
in Theme 2.

During the period of April to June 2017, 9 were still shown as being inpatients.
Of the 24 referrals 15 were female and 9 were males. 5 related to eating disorders,

with 13 being supported within general in-patient admissions, 3 in Psychiatric

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
23

Page 81



Intensive Care Unit, 2 in CAMHS mental health assessments and 1 in a low secure
unit. The Tier 4 budget allocation from NHS England is outlined below

North Kirklees CCG Greater Huddersfield CCG
14/15 309,220 121,874
15/16 95,048 1,098,627
16/17 184,071 1,485,572

We are working closely with the West Yorkshire New Models of Care to prevent
admission and facilitate timely discharge. We still have local issues in terms of
accessing Tier 4 provision in a timely manner and this year have had 6 young people
aged 16 to 17 years who were placed on‘adult wards due to delays in finding
appropriate beds. We also have issues where children and young people are being
held on paediatric wards until beds can be found. We know NHS England is
beginning to try to address this issue as outlined in Theme 2.

4.8 Vulnerable Children

The Vulnerable Children’s Service offers a discrete provision for the most vulnerable
children and young people and is embedded within children’s social care settings.
This involves looked after children, care leavers, children in need, those at risk of
child sexual exploitation and young offenders. The service offers consultation to
professionals, carers, social workers and foster cares as well as one to one
interventions for children and young people.

Between April and August 2017, the service received 32 referrals for 1 to 1
interventions. The average waiting time from referral to first intervention at the end
of March 2017 was 4 weeks. In August 2017 the average waiting period had
increased to 5.2 weeks with the shortest wait time being 16 days, and the longest
being 58 days. By September 2017 the average waiting time was 3.9 weeks; with
the being longest wait 35 days and shortest wait being 14 days.

For those vulnerable children referred into Specialist CAMHS at the end of
September 2017, there were 10 children and young people waiting for treatment.
Three of these had interventions with a carer rather than other professionals. This
reduced the waiting list to 7 children/ young people. The average waiting times from
referral to treatment between July and September 2017 was 15 days.

In respect of the August 2017 waiting times, 1 young person was offered an earlier
appointment but declined it, which resulted in a longer waiting time. 1 young person
waited longer than the looked after children average as they had not initially been
identified as being looked after. Both of these waits were removed from the overall
average analysis, had they been included the average would have increased to 7.1

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
24

Page 82



weeks. Overall waiting times between April 2017 and September 2017 averaged at
4 weeks.

The vulnerable nature of the children and young people and their support needs
when they access the service is reflected in the average length of intervention of
14.5 weeks when compared against the 10.46 weeks average for those accessing
ChEWS with the monthly variables shown in the below table.

Average Length of Intervention (LAC)

Apr-17 | May-17 | Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17
Average Intervention (Days) 82.8 104.2 102.3 1237 926

Average Intervention {Weeks) 11.8 149 146 17.7 13.2

In terms of consultation, 184 appointment slots,where made available to social
workers and foster carers and other staff, of which 168 were utilised. The
consultation model allows a wide range of professional advice and support to be
offered to a number of different groups of staff and carers. It also allows children
and young people with emational-health and wellbeing needs to be met by the most
appropriate person in their life:

5. Key Engagement Messages

In 2016 we undertook a variety of engagement activities with children, young people
and families in relation to their experience of current service provision and their
vision for what a transformed provision should look like. The process engaged with
over 1,200 young people and 147 parents and carers as part of the process which
informed the Thriving Kirklees specification. Further details on the consultation can
be found in the various Transformation Plan Refresh reports which can be accessed
at www.kirklees.gov.uk/futureinmind.

The ‘Childs Journey’ Safeguarding commissioned report referred to in the 2016
Transformation Refresh is now overseen by Kirklees Safeguarding Children Board
with actions embedded into our local provision and Thriving Kirklees model. Kirklees
Council Scrutiny recommendations are also being implemented having been agreed
by Kirklees Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Panel.

An integral element of mobilising Thriving Kirklees has involved extensive co-
production and consultation approaches with a diverse range of ages and groups,
this has included:

Umbrella Branding
Umbrella branding (also known as family branding) is a marketing practice involving
the use of a single brand name for a number of related services.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
25

Page 83


www.kirklees.gov.uk/futureinmind
http://www.kirkleessafeguardingchildren.co.uk/managed/File/Info%20for%20Professionals/20170515%20-%20KCSB%20CAMHS%20Review%20October%202016.pdf

Young people and parents met to discuss marketing and the design of a single
branding logo for the service. Wording and

description was the focus and various websites . 0 0o _
that appealed to the attendees were shared, HR] v
viewed and discussed. a o0 A B

Once the draft logos were received from
designers, parents and young people along with
third sector members and the wider workforce
were able to vote for their favourite, which was then adopted. This design and co-
production approach has also been undertaken with other resources to be used with
families at future events. p

Working together for healthy
children, young people and families

Single Point of Contact

A parent’s session was organised in Huddersfield. This explored the existing and
established Adult Single Point of Contact available for adult services and how the
service functioned. Parents were able to share their experiences of using the
service as some of their children were accessing therapy services. Parents had the
opportunity to raise any concern and ask questions. Their views were considered in
the design and implementation of the young person’s element of the new Thriving
Kirklees single point of contact which went live in October 2017.

Schools Information and Engagement session

Teachers from Kirklees schools met to understand how the school nurse service
functioned. Teachers and head teachers shared their ideas of how the school nurse
service could do things differently and also shared their expectations of the service.
It was clear from this session that there are a number of areas of activity that can be
shared to address and improve capacity in the future.

Thriving Kirklees Online Referral form

A referral form was designed with the aim of offering service users and professionals
an opportunity to self-refer electronically without having to contact the single point of
contact over the telephone. Feedback has been shared with the business
development team from parents, young people and parents that have children with a
disability and colleagues that deliver services. The form has been amended and
developed following this feedback.

Patient experience

New patient experience surveys have been developed to allow colleagues to collect
data to demonstrate a number of patient experience key performance indicators. The
survey questions ask if service users are aware of the Thriving Kirklees partnership,
have they thought about the use of digital resources to maximise their independence
around health care and the services, do they feel valued and included in their care

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
26

Page 84



and support and were they listened too. The surveys will be launched in November
2017 and analysed monthly by services and team leaders, with partners and
commissioners being informed of relevant results.

Thrive Elaborated

A recent workshop took place supported by commissioning leads to gain a
consistent understanding of the Thrive Elaborated model around the four concepts of
getting advice, getting help, getting risk support and getting more help. Future
workshops are planned to map out Thriving Kirklees services and partner functions.

Autism Spectrum Condition

On the 31% October 2017, an information and engagement event has been arranged.
This will involve parents and parents with children on the Autism Spectrum Condition
waiting list, community groups, GPs, Education, Paediatricians, CAMHS, Therapy
and Thriving Kirklees colleagues. The session will run throughout the day and cover
topics including how you can help and support whilst on the waiting list,
understanding the referral process and many more areas that work alongside this
subject. Information will be given on referral into the service, the pathways,
screening, waiting lists, assessments, reports, discharge and clinics.

Healthy Child Programme Transition to Adult Services

Locala are to deliver a Kirklees event to promote dental services which will also look
to recruit young people interested in creating a focus group/mailing list that can be
utilised throughout the Thriving Kirklees programme. This group will ensure that the
young patient voice is heard when transitioning from young people’s services to adult
services. The event organised by the local authority will provide young people with
an opportunity to discuss their futures and explore facilities and projects that may
help them prepare for the next stage in their journey to adulthood. Accessing
services is a large part of this journey. To recognise their contribution all those
involved will be able to draw reference and personal statement detail for their
Curriculum Vitae.

Planned consultation event from January 2018 include:

e Journey Log engagement with parents, colleagues and young people.

e A schools engagement event to gather ongoing feedback and identify
improvement opportunities.

e 2 year development reviews — Exploring joint assessment with the local
authority.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
27

Page 85



5.1 What are Children, Young People, their Families and professionals telling
us about local service provision?

Our transformation plans have been developed and shaped through extensive
consultation with children, young people and parents/carers, as well as a wide range
of stakeholders.

This has been an on-going process since 2015 and has included interviews with
young people, parents, schools and other professionals who supported the design
and development of the Thriving Kirklees delivery model. Five video examples of co-
production consultation and engagement around emotional health and wellbeing in
Kirklees can be viewed via this link on You Tube. This includes a mother and a
daughter’s views of their negative experiences though the CAMHS pathways, which
Thriving Kirklees partners need to.consider as’part of their transformational
approaches.

Children, young people and their parents/carers are invited to be involved with
service delivery and evaluation.” Their views will be further embedded as the
Improving Access to Psychological Therapies Programme is embedded within
services as one of its primary principles to focus on improving user participation in
treatment, service design and delivery.

A public feedback survey is ongoing to further inform the continuing development of
Thriving Kirklees and asks specific questions on;

e What is missing that matters to you?
e What still needs to change or be improved?
e What are we getting right?

This consultation was intentionally delayed to allow time for service users who may
still be engaging with the services to comment on recent experiences since the
Thriving Kirklees contract began in April 2017. Commissioners are looking to include
face to face discussions with parent groups and young people, with the process
being completed in the early 2018.

The outcomes from the consultation will be collated and shared with partners to
consider improvement opportunities that consider the voice of the public and
enhance co-production approaches. One early response to these questions from a
parent is shown below in full has been shared by commissioners.

What is missing that matters to you?

“The children’s voice is not heard enough. | am upset, angry, disgusted and
dismayed that recently my daughter was promised help if her ASD
assessment showed that she was not autistic. However this offer was later

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
28

Page 86


https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLwU8eV939ETTctfqQmCXYOHTJwVHYco2s

withdrawn as it was felt that she had received enough support...... this
decision has left me with a traumatised young woman who is in a worse
mental state than she has ever been before”.

What still needs to change or be improved?

“Support has to be ongoing when required. Saying that they had had x
amount of sessions is not acceptable in mental health. Do you expect all
children to suddenly recover? Unfortunately some are going to continue to
require support going into adulthood. Having a 17% year old cry and scream
in a meeting that she is not ok and that she wants-more help is disgusting
when the response is you have family therapy in place......... family therapy is
not going to help with her mental health. You have left me with a child you is
struggling every single day: She was up all night crying, asking if she will ever
be ‘normal’ wantsdo know why her, isn’t it someone else’s turn, | am sick of
feeling like this, something needs to change, they cannot leave me like this,
how can | expect tolive a life feeling like this, I just feel sad, | have no tears
lefttocry...... this is a girl who has self-harmed for several years, attempted
suicide little over a year ago and has been unable to get out of bed today as
she is not functioning.

Staff turnover is a joke, the constant moving on of staff impacts the child and
from where | am sat ends the support a child in receiving before they are
ready for it to end!

That the outcome of an assessment runs into further work. We had to wait 3
% years for family therapy after you had recommended that we had family
therapy.

It has taken over 4 years to say she is not autistic. Have agreed it is probably
attachment, this does not give a child answers when they have spent years
asking what it wrong with them!

What are we getting right?

“The assessment process was full and thorough, the support offered to me as
a parent was great”.

An Eating Disorder Service Trust wide anonymous survey asking for experiences
from those engaging with the Regional Eating Disorder Service was recently
completed and feedback analysis is ongoing. The next steps will involve the service
operational lead producing a full report for review by the leadership team to agree
recommendations and produce a responsive action plan with timescales.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017

29
Page 87



CAMHS provisions continually provide opportunities for service users, their families
and professionals to feedback by face to face contact or electronic submissions.
This includes the view of children and young people. In summary, the majority of
comments show that once people eventually access the services they are generally
happy with what is offered, a few of the many examples were:

Young People

‘it helps me with 99.9% life fears and arguments in the past and it feels good.”
Female, aged 11

“She helped me make decisions that made my life a lot easier. She helped me
cope with thing | couldn't before” /Female, aged 16

“It's nice to have somewheré to come to'for help.” Male, aged 9

“I found the sessians to be helpful and | liked the regular weekly time rather
than it changing from week to week. However, it would have been useful for
sessions to have been slightly longer or to have a few more sessions as | feel
we didn't really have time to get deeper into the problem.” Female, aged 16

“The sessions were helpful and staff were very friendly.” Male, aged 18

Parent/Carers

“Because my daughter has improved since the counselling began. The
counselling was a significant factor in this improvement. My daughter is much
happier and how has the right tools to deal with her anxiety.”

“It has taken some time to get help from the service but it has been a great
help. Feel it would have been more helpful at the start of issues but
understand that due to demand it isn't possible.”

“Confident, supportive and reassuring staff.”

Professionals

“One point of contact - you know who to call and it’s easy to pass on
leaflet/details to parents to use t00.”

“A simple referral service and also lovely to speak with someone at the end of
the phone”

“l generally advise families to self-refer now that | am aware they can do this”

“What we offer a child, young person or family should not fall sort of what we
would expect ourselves during difficult times when we need help or support. If
what we can offer doesn't fit, we need to find ways to change things together
to try and make it happen” CAMHS Commissioner.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
30

Page 88



6. Theme 1. Promoting resilience, prevention and early intervention for
the mental wellbeing of children and young people.

Chapter 4 Future in Mind

What will our transformed provision look like?

“Our aim is to act early to prevent harm, by investing in the early years,
supporting families and those who care for children and building resilience
through to adulthood. Strategies should be developed in partnership with
children and young people to support }sejf\-éare. This will reduce the burden of
mental and physical ill health over the Whole life course”

Kirklees CAMHS Transformation Plan-2015

6.1 What have we achieved so farf’in 2017 )

Prevention, early intervention and resilience building in children and young people are
critical aspects of our whole system redesign to realise our original 2015 CAMHS
Transformation Plan ambitions.

This section articulates aspects of the system we have started re-designing towards early
intervention and prevention, but recognises that we still have work to do in the long term.

The Children’s Commissioner Briefing in Children’s Mental Healthcare makes a number of
recommendations relating to strengthening early intervention and prevention whilst
highlighting potential system savings that could be made by moving more resource to
prevention and early intervention. In terms of financial cost, it costs £5.08 per student to
deliver an emotional resilience programme in school, £229 per child to deliver six
counselling or group Cognitive Behavioural Therapy sessions in a school, on average
£2,338 for referral to a community CAMHS service and £61,000 for an admission to an in-
patient CAMHS unit.

In the same report the Department of Health estimates that a targeted therapeutic
intervention delivered in a school costs about £229 but derives an average lifetime benefit
of £72,525. Therefore, if we are to reduce waiting times, combined with providing high
quality evidence based interventions and the right care at the right time in the right place,
we need to understand the impact of the whole resource and which part of the system
investment will have most impact.

The specification and early service delivery in relation to Thriving Kirklees has been a
major step forward in the re-designing of service delivery to focus more on early
intervention and prevention. The utilisation of the whole Thriving Kirklees workforce in
delivering the Health Child Programme is beginning to ensure our 0 -19 practitioners and
peer supporters are intervening earlier around emotional health and wellbeing.

For example school nursing, CHEWS and CAMHS, practitioners are currently based
together within the Single Point of Contact allowing case discussions and agreed

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
31

Page 89


https://www.childrenscommissioner.gov.uk/publication/briefing-childrens-mental-healthcare-in-england/

approaches with escalation and de-escalation to be seamless for the child and young
person. We also recognise the importance of physical exercise and maintaining a healthy
weight in improving emotional health and wellbeing. START, the children’s weight
management programme is to be incorporated into Thriving Kirklees to further support
emotional health and wellbeing of children and young people.

We have seen progress in three main areas under this theme which are; work with
schools, social media and development of early help.

Work with Schools

The Thriving Kirklees contract was awarded in April 2017 and brings together a number of
services including School Nursing, Health Visiting, the new Autism Spectrum Disorder
provision, our traditional Tier 2 and Tier 3 CAMHS, the Learning Disability provision, peer
education and support programmes with a Public Health focus, for example the Nurturing
Parent Programme. '

We have already begun to see the benefits of bringing together a diverse range of services
for children, young people, their families and the wider community. This has included the
Thriving Kirklees provision which is mirroring our Community Hub Programme based
around school clusters working as area teams to support the emotional health and
wellbeing needs in each of the eight hub areas. For more information on Community Hubs
see the 2016 Kirklees Learning Skills Annual Report at Appendix E.

Public Health Intelligence Leads (PHILs) Team Leaders have been put in place across the
Hubs working with communities, attending children and family joint working co-ordination
meetings to highlight specific needs of their area. The next steps will develop links with
Community Co-ordinators from the local authority Early Health Service to understand what
additional assets are needed or what is already available in the area.

This approach is supported by the creation of 9 new skill mix 0 — 19s practitioner teams,
compromising of Health Visitors, School Nurses, Nursery Nurses and Assistant
Practitioners, co-ordinating with the eight Community Hub areas and CAMHS workers.
This is aims to ensure our 0 -19 practitioners and peer supporters can get involved much
earlier around emotional health and wellbeing.

At a strategic commissioning level we have strengthened our focus on early intervention
and prevention by formalising a commissioning link with Community Hub leaders. There
are 4 representatives across Kirklees who are now members on our local Integrated
Commissioning Group for children and young people and therefore have a voice in shaping
the strategic direction of our commissioning intentions.

The first practical example of our collaborative commissioning with schools was in 2017
with the use of NHS England non recurrent money to fund two pilots across Kirklees, which
involved training and support for school staff to identify and better support children and
young people in their schools.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
32

Page 90



The Thriving Kirklees model has the CAMHS school link model integrated into its service
delivery and the local approach continues to be developed. As a result, Thriving Kirklees
has employed a CAMHS Education Links Worker to drive local and national priorities. This
includes asking all Kirklees Schools in October 2017 to provide details of their suitable
named lead points of contact. The leads will form an important communication link with
CAMHS provisions to support the ongoing mental health needs of students in their schools
and hubs.

Work is also underway with schools identified(as having higher than average referrals into
services to increase the knowledge and skills of<school staff regarding emotional health
and wellbeing to ensure that needs are met early by offering alternative methods of
support. Also we are exploring the development of an emotionally healthy school award.

Work still needs to take place on uhderstanding future CAMHS relationships with
Community Hub developments.as these continue to develop themselves by providing a link
to provisions for expertise and support-and to discuss concerns about individual children
and young people, identify. issues and make appropriate referrals. To further support and
develop this approach, locally we are applying for Wave 2 of the National Schools Link
Programme, which will provide opportunities to offer ongoing support to children and young
people in schools whilst waiting to be seen by a CAMHS provision.

We are working closely with local schools to ensure they access the Department of Health
funded Mental Health First Aid course. Three Kirklees secondary schools have elected to
accommodate a one day’s course within their schools with additional attendees being
invited from other secondary schools in Kirklees. This will provide the potential for up to 47
teachers to be involved in the nationally supported Mental Health First Aid training.

Social Media

In 2017/18 we are using NHS England funding to improve early intervention and prevention
approaches by developing a children and young people’s section on the SilverCloud
website as a self-care approach. Development of social media approaches and better self-
care is included in the Thriving Kirklees model together with website resources, with a
more cohesive self-help offer are currently in development.

We are also piloting a Brain in Hand application which is an assistive cloud based solution
designed to help adults and young people diagnosed with autism or traits of autism without
a diagnosis, or have general mental health issues.

Users, support staff, parents/carers are trained to use the phone app to support users
access individual customised support and where necessary get help from a parent, carer
or named trained professionals. So far, 7 Kirklees College students have been identified to
take part in the pilot with the first student trained in early October 2017.

An additional 4 College students will be trained to use the app by early November 2017
with all 10 students trained by December 2017. The students have been chosen from
Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
33
Page 91


http://braininhand.co.uk/

those with an ability to use the mobile app and met the eligibility criteria requirements to
help them begin their transition journeys into adulthood.

Development of Early Help

Development of cohesive early help is a priority for Kirklees which is being overseen
through the Ofsted Improvement Action Plan. Improving our offer needs to involve a range
of agencies throughout Kirklees, this involves Thriving Kirklees which includes their
responding to the Kirklees Early Help offer and ongaing independent reporting by the
Children’s Services Commissioner in Kirklees.-Updated progress in September 2017 can
be found here. '

Our structural and philosophical framework of early-help and interventions is based on the
Thriving Kirklees model and geographical working with Community Hubs. The full Early
Help offer will be articulated-by December 2017. This will involve a continuum of
integrated provision for. children young people and families. Clear pathways will ensure
children young people and families are able to access the provision required at the earliest
possible opportunity and preventescalation of issues requiring further intensive
intervention.

6.2 What are our local challenges in relation to this theme?

There are a number of challenges relating to this theme and re-designing services towards
early intervention approaches, whilst maintaining focus on the provision of high quality,
more intensive interventions. This can bring tensions into the commissioning system as
we use our resources in upstream activities while at the same time still having to meet the
needs of those requiring more specialist interventions. However, bringing together
commissioning arrangements across both Clinical Commissioning Groups and the Council
together with embedding the lead commissioning arrangement within the Public Health
Directorate is starting to support this cultural shift to prevention.

It also remains a challenge to develop educational settings and schools as a cohesive
whole that can be influenced or engaged as a single system. We need to continue our
approaches in engaging and developing our education provision in line with local
established structures. We also need to recognise clear links between emotional health
and wellbeing and educational attainment to fully support educational settings to embrace
enhanced support roles. We need to further develop peer led approaches in line with the
co-production aspect of the Thriving Kirklees programme, and ensure resilience based
programmes continue to be cohesively delivered.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
34
Page 92


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/kirklees-childrens-services-report-to-the-secretary-of-state

6.3 What priorities will we begin to achieve over the next twelve months?

We will;

a.

Have emotional health and wellbeing provision collaboratively commissioned with
educational settings. LPS 3 (1.3)

Ensure our 0 -19 practitioners and peer supporters are intervening earlier around
emotional health and wellbeing. LPS 1.5

Collaboratively co-produce with young people peer education programmes for
children and young people that promote resilience, and assist with early
identification of emotional health and wellbeing issues. LPS 4 (1.4)

Ensure the nurturing parent programme is delivered throughout early help services,
children’s centres and voluntary sector/provision, to improve maternal bonding and
attachment, having an increased focus‘on supporting and improving perinatal
mental health provision."LRS'1.6 and 1.7

Develop an early help offer in conjunction with children’s social care, ensuring
Thriving Kirklees fits.in the proposed model to help deliver a common set of
outcomes improving emotional health and wellbeing. LPS 1.5

Implement clear joint working arrangements between schools and emotional health
and wellbeing provision. This will include:

o A CAMHS school link model supporting schools, primary care and other
universal provisions.

o Implement a joint training programme to support the link roles within primary
care, schools, CAMHS provisions and to support joined up working across
services. LPS 2 (1.2), LPS 8 (2.4) and LPS 9 (2.5)

Implement a comprehensive training programme to develop children and young
people’s resilience, and raise their awareness of emotional health and wellbeing
issues. LPS 1.8

Continue to develop a range of innovative social media based interventions to
provide support to children and young people, helping to build resilience and
improve health and wellbeing. LPS 1.9 and 1.10

6.4 What outcomes will this impact on?

1.

Improved public awareness and understanding, where people think and feel
differently about mental health issues for children and young people, where there is
less fear and where stigma and discrimination are tackled.

Children and young people will have timely access to clinically effective mental
health support, when they need it.

Improved access for parents to evidence-based programmes of intervention and
support to strengthen attachment between parent and child, avoid early trauma,
build resilience and improve behaviour.

Mental health support will be more visible and easily accessible for children and
young people.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017

35
Page 93



5. Professionals who work with children and young people are trained in child
development and mental health, and understand what can be done to provide help
and support for those when and where they need it.

6.5 Theme 1 - Measurement of Impact

Through the Thriving Kirklees contract monitoring process a number of performance
indicators will be provided to commissioners to help demonstrate impact against each of
the above five theme outcomes:

1 % of children and young people who feel that they are supported by:
a. Thriving Kirklees Partnership

b. Family

c. School

d. Community and wider/networks

to have good emational wellbeing and can easily get help and support whenever they
may have worries or.concerns, by life course stage.

% of children, young people and families reporting they feel included in community life, by
life course stage.

2 % of Thriving Kirklees users who report feeling they were supported in a timely and
appropriate manner.

% of children and young people who are receiving the following groups of the Thrive
Elaborate Model:

a. Signposting, self-management and one off intervention (Getting Help)
b. Goal focused, evidence informed and outcome focused intervention (Coping).
c. Extensive treatment (Getting more help).
d. Risk management and crisis response (Getting Risk Support).
to support them to have good mental and emotional wellbeing, by life course stage

3 % eligible parents-to-be attending antenatal parent education programme.

% parents attending antenatal parent education programme who report feeling more
confident about parenting, keeping their child safe.

% of mothers who received a Maternal Mood assessment in a timely manner.

% children and parents assessed as having good relationship/attachment (using
evidence-based assessment tools).

% of children, young people or families using self-help resources for support, to be able to
help themselves without needing specialist support.

4 % of Thriving Kirklees users who report:

a. They have appropriate access to resources, information and materials to support
them with their identified issue.

b. Feeling they were supported in a timely and appropriate manner.

% of children, young people or families:
a. Using Self-Help resources for support to be able to help themselves without needing
specialist support.
b. Who access support via approaches based on use of technology and assistive

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
36

Page 94



technology.
c. Reporting that they receive appropriate, supportive and a timely response to their
needs. ............... by life course stage.

5 % of Thriving Kirklees workforce:

a. Who feel they have the confidence, skills and knowledge to be able to promote good
emotional wellbeing to children, young people and their families and be able to
identify and support low level mental health problems should they arise (for example,
in schools).

b. Who feel that the Thriving Kirklees plays a clear and integral role within larger
evidence based multi-agency pathway of support for Children and Young People.

c. Able to demonstrate awareness of and understand of the importance of the parent-
infant relationship. '

d. Who report they have the appropriaté knowledge, skills and expertise to carry out
their role. ‘

e. That report they feel that knowledge, skills and expertise are shared and
disseminated appropriately throughout the workforce and with those that interact with
it.

f. Who feel that Thriving Kirklees plays a clear and integral role within larger evidence
based multi-agency pathway of support for Children and Young People.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
37
Page 95



7. Theme 2. Improving access to effective support —a system without
tiers.

Chapter 5 Future in Mind

What our transformed provision will look like?

“Our aim is to change how care is delivered and build it around the needs of
children and young people and fami(l,ies.}Tbis means moving away from a
system of care defined in terms of the setvices organisations provide to
ensure that children and young peoblé have easy access to the right support
from the right service at the righttime”

Kirklees CAMHS Transformatlon PlanA2015

7.1 What have we achieved so far in 2017
Implementing Thrive Elfaborated

The Thrive Elaborated model has been written into the service specification for the Thriving
Kirklees Partnership. The whole service provision is being built around Thrive Elaborated
functions.

We are undertaking a focused piece of work to support the partnership in implementing the
Thrive functions and model in 2017/18.

This will ensure that regardless of the level of need from children, young people and
families, their needs will be met at the right time, at the right place, at the lowest possible
and earliest level of intervention.

Although our Thrive Elaborated model is not yet fully implemented, what we have already
achieved a number of system changes to ensure that care has been built and delivered
around the needs of children, young people and families we have:

e Specified and awarded the Thriving Kirklees model based on national and local
good practice and transformation of provision moving away from traditional
organisation boundaries to a new integrated care model based on presenting need
and principles of restorative practice.

e Continued to utilise increased resource in front line capacity in specialist CAMHS
provision. Including investment to reduce waiting times in relation to Generic
CAMHS, Autism Spectrum Disorder and looked after children.

e Waiting time trajectory targets have been agreed with providers to reduce waiting
times for specialist CAMHS to 10 weeks for the first appointment and for Autism
Spectrum Disorder assessment waiting times to be reduced to 12 months.

e Mainstreaming the CAMHS school link concepts into the Thriving Kirklees
specification and delivery.

e Implementing a new Single point of contact multi-disciplinary arrangement that
augments the existing ASK CAMHS provision and provides further support and
resource to meet the needs of children young people and families quickly, in a

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
38

Page 96


https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjXo734pf_WAhULHxoKHbtBBOMQFggmMAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.annafreud.org%2Fmedia%2F3214%2Fthrive-elaborated-2nd-edition29042016.pdf&usg=AOvVaw0tPyw_780aMW5mHj-C4Wmt

coordinated way.

e Continue to ensure the local crisis model guarantees children and young people
are assessed within four hours. This includes a home treatment provision and
utilises the all age Psychiatric Liaison Service to achieve this in line with
Recommendation 18 from the NHS England Five Year Forward View for Mental
Health report.

e Begun to develop collaboratively with Leeds and Bradford NHS Trust New Care
Models in relation to a care navigation function to prevent admission to Tier 4
settings and timely discharge from Tier 4} This is alongside the development of
local Tier 3.5 services. p

e Established a process and action.plan to.implement Transforming Care for children
and young people who have a learning disability, autism or both, including access
to Care Education and Treatment Reviews.(CETRS)

o Specified the delivery of children learning disability CAMHS provision moving from
adult mental health provision into the Thriving Kirklees partnership and jointly
collocated with allage disability developments.

Transforming Care for Children and Young People

An area wide Transforming Care Plan partnership involving Kirklees, Calderdale,
Wakefield and Barnsley has recently established a Children and Young people’s
workstream. This work stream will look to implement recommendations from the Lenahan
review, “Building the right support ” and NHS England Guidance “Developing support and
services for children and young people with a learning disability, autism or both.

The nine principles outlined in the NHS England guidance will be embedded across the
partnership led by the Children and Young People work stream. The work stream
comprises of CAMHS transformation plan commissioning leads and representation from
local authorities including Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) leads across
the region.

The children and young people Transforming Care Programme will dovetail and
complement local CAMHS transformation plan priorities and reporting arrangements and
augment existing joint Children and Families Act arrangements for each area.

Therefore, it has been decided not to produce a standalone Transforming Care Strategy or
Plan, but to integrate required actions into existing plans. Each local area has undertaken
a self-assessment against Transforming Care Plan priorities and principles. Identified gaps
form the basis of local action plans and milestone reporting requirements. NHS England is
overseeing implementation of the Transforming Care Plan and regular highlight reporting
takes place against agreed work stream actions. See Appendix F.

We have made good progress in terms of needs assessment, planning and projection for
groups of children and young people affected and also in implementing the Care,
Education and Treatment Reviews process and reviews across the footprint for children
and young people.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
39

Page 97


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/lenehan-review-into-care-of-children-with-learning-disabilities
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/developing-support-and-services-for-children-and-young-people-with-a-learning-disability-autism-or-both/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/developing-support-and-services-for-children-and-young-people-with-a-learning-disability-autism-or-both/

Recent feedback from NHS England has highlighted the following positive aspects in
relation to our local Transforming Care Plan for children and young people:

1. We have an identified Children and Young People’s Lead for Transforming Care
and a comprehensive, multi-agency work stream to focus on the Children’s
agenda across the footprint.

2. Kirklees have lower numbers of under 18s in-patient admissions than the
national average.

3. Discharges of children and young people are timely.

Also highlighted were areas of future focus:

a. Develop the ‘Dynamic Support Register’ and ‘At Risk of Admission Register’ for
children and young people.

b. The views of young people, parents and carers within the local area should be
represented at the Transforming Care Plan Partnership Board

These areas are incorporated into this refresh and will be monitored through the work
stream and quarterly reporting to NHS England.

Tier 4 and New Care Models

The National Specialised Commissioning Oversight Group (SCOG) decided in March
2016, that a single national procurement would not be in the best interest of patients and
the approach taken would need to strengthen the requirement for regional planning and
delivery. It would need to align with, and support the move to population based
commissioning and the outputs of this work would need to be embedded in local systems.

To reflect this, NHS England revised its approach to one of local ownership and delivery
under the umbrella of national co-ordination and oversight and is now referred to as the
Mental Health Service Review (MHSR) programme.

Key factors and drivers in the service review has been a lack of capacity in some areas
that has led to out of area placements. The proposed changes in bed numbers aim to
address this and ensure that for the majority of services, the right numbers of beds are
available to meet local needs in each area. Itis predicated on the principle that there is
regard to patient flows so each local area should “consume its own smoke”.

As these services are specialist in nature, there is national oversight of this process but
with a strong emphasis on local engagement and ownership. The implementation of local
plans will see the re-distribution of beds across the country so patients will be able to
access services closer to home rather than having to travel to access appropriate services,
except for a few particularly specialist services that it is uneconomic to provide in each
area.

NHS England is collaborating with local commissioners on the CAMHS Tier 4 bed changes
in Yorkshire and the Humber to ensure the interdependencies between localities are
managed effectively.

West Yorkshire is a Wave 2 New Care Model site for CAMHS Tier 4 and as such we have
Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
40

Page 98



a shared system ambition and plan for the region with regard to crisis and intensive home
treatment services. The aim of the West Yorkshire New Care Model is to develop
streamlined pathways across the region for community intensive services both to reduce
the need for, and the length of, an inpatient stay, and/or as an alternative, ensuring
children and young people are cared for in West Yorkshire and do not need to travel out of
area unnecessarily.

In West Yorkshire, commissioners and providers passionately believe that our children and
young people with serious mental health problems should be looked after at home or as
close to home as possible. Our ambition is that no matter where you live in West Yorkshire
you should receive the same standard of carewith the-.same outcomes.

We have undertaken detailed work to help us understand the current services, including
variation across the Sustainability and Transformation Plans and also improvements we
would like to make in in services across West Yorkshire for children and young people.
Analysis of historic inpatient data has allowed us to identify the quality and financial
opportunities by avoiding. or shortening in-patient stays.

The joint working with NHS England and the West Yorkshire New Care Models provider
will form the basis for our Kirklees place based plan to develop a local seamless in-patient
pathway. This will include further developing our 24/7 urgent response to children and
families, and implementing Tier 3.5 services which augment our current crisis and home
treatment provision. We also need to keep in sight any additional future workforce
requirements to meet the demands on the 27/7 Crisis Care provision to be able to respond
accordingly.

In October 2017, we implemented a 24/7 Single Point of Contact for all Kirklees children
young people, families and professionals to access. We have also implemented an all age
Psychiatric Liaison model in the Greater Huddersfield Clinical Commissioning Group area
through the acute hospitals. This is recurrently funded from core budgets. A priority is to
develop the model further in the North Kirklees Clinical Commissioning Group area in
2018. The use of these services is monitored through the Thriving Kirklees key
performance indicators and developed using service users feedback and co-production in
line with the Thriving Kirklees service specification.

NHS England and CCG collaboration on Health and Justice

The Health and Justice Children and Young People’s Mental Health Transformation work
stream aims to promote a greater level of collaboration between various commissioners of
services for children and young people who are;

. In the Youth Justice System (or at risk of entering it);
. Presenting at Sexual Assault Referral Centres;
. Being looked after.
. Being seen by Liaison and Diversion services
Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017

41
Page 99



Many of these children and young people are already known to service and it is important
that mental health services for these individuals are not seen as being in isolation to other
services. Rather, they should be viewed as part of an integrated, continuous pathway in
which children and young people are able to receive the care they need on an
uninterrupted basis.

The Health and Justice Commissioners will work collaboratively with commissioning
counterparts in Clinical Commissioning Groups and Local Authorities to where appropriate
co-commission services to improve mental health-outcomes for this group.

Early Intervention in Psychosis

The Kirklees Insight Team is a youth focused commissioned service providing support
across the Kirklees district for people aged between 14 and 35 who are experiencing their
first episode of psychosis or thought(to be at a/potential of risk of developing this. The
team provides psychosocialinterventions (treating and preventing a condition using
educational and behavioural approaches) to improve the long term outcomes for people
experiencing psychosis. The team support people’s treatment and recovery outside of the
mainstream mental health system. Referrals for people under 18 years old, self-referrals
and carer referrals can be made directly to the duty worker in the team. Young people
(aged 14 — 18years) will be seen within 14 days — however, if a referral for this age group
is viewed to be urgent, the referral will be assessed within 4 hours. Referrals for this age
group are made directly to the team.

The service aims to:

e Reduce the stigma associated with psychosis and improve professional and general
public awareness of the symptoms of early psychosis.

e Promoting the need and benefits of an early assessment.
e Reduce the period of time people remain undiagnosed and untreated.

e Develop meaningful engagement, provide evidence-based interventions and
promote recovery during the early stages of psychosis.

¢ Increase the stability of the lives of the young people accessing the service

e Provide a person-centred service that integrates the child, adolescent and adult
mental health services and works in partnership with primary care services, family
services and youth services.

e Work in partnership with other services to ensure that the young people accessing
the service have quick and easy pathways into services appropriate to meet their
needs.

¢ Provide training, advice, and consultation to other service providers who may be
working with this group of service users in order to help them respond in more
efficient ways.

e Provide structure and activities to develop life and employment skills.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
42

Page 100



Early Intervention in Psychosis Service redesign

Nice Guidelines have been re-issued and we are working in collaboration with the provider,
Kirklees Clinical Commissioning Group Commissioners have been re-designing the service
model to ensure that by 2020 the service model and pathway, is fully compliant for people
aged between 14 and 65 years, in-terms of the required workforce, available therapeutic
interventions, access standards and demographic trajectories. There is an agreed year on
year developmental action plan, supported by planned longer term investment.

NICE Concordant Care package redefined

We have taken the following steps to ensure the NICE Concordant Care Package is
redefined for service users:

1. Adults and young adults with psychasis //ARMS are offered Cognitive Behavioural
Therapy for psychosis.. Typically, before an episode of psychosis, many people will
experience a relatively long period of symptoms, which is described as having an ‘at
risk mental state’, often shortened to ARMS.

2. Family members are offered family intervention.

3. Service users that have not responded adequately to treatment with at least 2
antipsychotic drugs are offered clozapine, an antipsychotic medication.

4. Service users who wish to find or return to work are offered supported employment
programmes.

5. Service users have specific comprehensive physical health assessments.

6. Service users are offered combined healthy eating and physical activity
programmes, and help to stop smoking.

7. Carers are offered carer-focused education and support programmes.

We have also put new accesses standards in place to ensure access and quality of service
provision which are:

» Access: More than 50% of people experiencing a first episode of psychosis will be
treated with a NICE approved care package within two weeks of referral (60% by
2020).

* Quality: Services are required to rate ‘good’ overall in quality assessment
(Workforce, Interventions, Service design) (60% by 2020).

This includes a Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) Physical Health check
for 2018/19 which is:

* The body mass index outcome indicator is applicable to Early Intervention in
Psychosis services where 35% or more patients should gain no more than 7% body
weight in the first year of taking antipsychotic medication.

» The smoking outcome indicator is applicable to Early Intervention in Psychosis (EIP)

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
43

Page 101



services where 10% or more patients who were previously identified as in the Red
Zone for smoking on the Lester Tool should have stopped smoking.

* The Early Intervention in Psychosis quality self-assessment will incorporate the
CQUIN physical health questions.

Standards for overall Early Intervention in Psychosis (EIP) will be:
+ Timely access - Referral to Treatment.
» Effective treatment (NICE Quality Standards):

+ Well-managed service (including service design).

As part of the re-design we have are looking at workforce development for the service
basing the needs on:

+ Baseline of the current 2016/17 workforce.

+ Actual incidence'/ level of demand 2016/17.

» 14 to - 65s (changed from‘previous model up to 35years).

* Any Key variables: Population 16-65 and disengagement rates.

* Introduction of new additional workforce — Cognitive Behavioural Therapy for
psychosis therapists; Vocational workers; and family support workers.

7.2 What are our local challenges in relation to this theme?

We need to work over the coming years on areas that present significant challenge. These
include:

e Continuing to reduce waiting times across the system in anticipation of the new
waiting time and access standards.

e Further reduce the Autism Spectrum Disorder assessment waiting list and
understanding the reasons for the recent increase in referrals.

e Re-designing treatment systems towards outward facing prevention and early
intervention helping to manage systematic demand at the right level of intervention.

e Implementing Transforming Care for children and young people who have an
Autism Spectrum Disorder a learning disability or both, and in particular the
requirement to have a Dynamic Risk Register in place.

e Co-produce with West Yorkshire New Care Models further intensive community
support to preventing Tier 4 admissions and better care navigation

¢ Reduction of inpatient admissions from the Greater Huddersfield Clinical
Commissioning Group catchment area.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
44

Page 102


https://www.england.nhs.uk/mentalhealth/wp-content/uploads/sites/29/2016/05/serious-mental-hlth-toolkit-may16.pdf

7.3 What priorities will we begin to achieve over the next twelve months?

We will;

a.
b.

Implement Thrive Elaborated across our local CAMHS provision. LPS 5 (2.1)
Continue to increase front line capacity within CAMHS provision to reduce waiting
times and improve access for children and young people in line with the new
national access standard. LPS 6 (2.2)

Deliver a 24/7 Single Point of Contact model, one stop shop approach for advice,
support, signposting, consultation and assessment and co-ordination of Thriving
Kirklees provision delivery. LPS 10 (2:6)and LPS 11 (2.7)

In North Kirklees , provide a local crisis model that ensures assessment within 4
hours in line with the Crisis Care Concordat, and utilises our re-designed all age
psychiatric liaison service. LPS 12 (2.8),and LPS 29 (2.9)

Further strengthen the assertive outreach Intensive Home Treatment model in
partnership with West Yorkshire New Care Models. Preventing admission to Tier 4,
assisting transition back to a community setting with comprehensive pathways.
Including an assertive community outreach model through our CAMHS provision
that actively engages with children, young people and families.

LPS 2.10 and 3.7

Support a regional case management and care navigation function that co-ordinates
care and discharge for those young people in Tier 4 settings and those requiring a
“step down” placement and collaboratively commission with NHS England to ensure
clear and smooth care pathways are in place in relation to Tier 4 provision.

LPS 2.12 and 4.9

Deliver an integrated team for children with learning disabilities between specialist
CAMHS and Kirklees Council Children with a Disability Team. LPS 2.14
Implement the recommendations from the Transforming Care, the Lenahan review,
“Building the right support” and the NHS England Guidance “Developing support
and services for children and young people with a learning disability, autism or
both”. LPS 2.15

7.4 What outcomes will this impact on?

The above will work towards achievement of the following:

1. Care is built around the needs of children, young people and their families.

2. Children and young people will have timely access to clinically effective mental
health support when they need it.

3. Increased use of evidence-based treatments with services rigorously focused on
outcomes.

4. Improved care for children and young people in crisis so they are treated in the right
place at the right time and as close to home as possible.

5. Mental health support is more visible and easily accessible.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017

45
Page 103



7.5 Theme 2 - Measurement of Impact

Through the Thriving Kirklees contract monitoring process a number of performance
indicators will be provided to commissioners to help demonstrate impact against each of
the above five theme outcomes:

1 % of children and young people receiving specialist support who developed and
implemented their personalised support in partnership, inclusive of the service user, their
family/carers and the Thriving Kirklees workforce, by identified issue
% of parents who feel they have experienced all-of the following when interacting with
Thriving Kirklees: .

a. Developed a trusting relationship with(at least one) Thriving Kirklees worker

b. Asked their opinion and felt listened to

c. Set outcomes they wanted to achieve

d. who feel they have been involved.in the co-production of the support they have
received ...<. by life course stage.

1 % of children and young people who feel they have experienced all of the following when
interacting with Thriving Kirklees:

a. Developed a trusting relationship with (at least one) Thriving Kirklees worker

b. Asked their opinion and felt listened to

c. Set outcomes they wanted to achieve

d. who feel they have been involved in the co-production of the support they have
received, ...... by life course stage.

2 % of Thriving Kirklees users who report feeling they were supported in a timely and
appropriate manner
% of crisis referrals to the specialist element of the Thriving Kirklees who are assessed
within 4 hours, by identified issue.

% of children and young people seen by the specialist element of the Thriving Kirklees
within mandated waiting time targets.
Average waiting time for specialist support from identification of issue to treatment, by
identified issue.
Average waiting time for children and young people who received an Autistic Spectrum
Disorder (ASD) diagnostic assessment.
% of children and young people who are receiving the following groups of the Thrive
Elaborate Model:
a. Signposting, self-management and one off intervention (Getting Help)
b. Goal focused, evidence informed and outcome focused intervention. (Coping)
c. Extensive treatment (Getting more help)
d. Risk management and crisis response (Getting Risk Support)
to support them to have good mental and emotional wellbeing, by life course stage

3 % of children, young people or families using Self-Help resources for support to be able
to help themselves without needing specialist support.

4 % of children and young people who are receiving the following groups of the Thrive
Elaborate Model:

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017

46
Page 104



a. Signposting, self-management and one off intervention (Getting Help)
b. Goal focused, evidence informed and outcome focused intervention. (Coping)
c. Extensive treatment (Getting more help)
d. Risk management and crisis response (Getting Risk Support)
to support them to have good mental and emotional wellbeing, by life course stage

5 % of Thriving Kirklees users who report they have appropriate access to resources,
information and materials to support them with their identified issue.

% of children, young people or families using Self-Help resources for support to be able
to help themselves without needing specialist. support.

% of children, young people and families who access support via approaches based on
use of technology and assistive technology.

% of Thriving Kirklees users whosreport feeling they were supported in a timely and
appropriate manner,

5 % of children, young people.and families reporting that they receive appropriate,
supportive and a timely. response to their needs, by life course stage.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
47

Page 105



8. Theme 3 - Caring for the most vulnerable.

Chapter 6 Future in Mind

Vulnerable children and young people

“The need to provide both targeted and specialist mental health interventions, to
those children most at risk of developing poor mental health is an essential
aspect of any CAMHS system. The need to prowde a flexible approach to this
provision to engage the most vulnerable i is key to engagement and retention of
children and young people in CAMHS provision. These children often experience
multiple vulnerabilities and can lead chaotic lifestyles, and live in families where
there are also multiple parental vulne’rqbilities”

Kirklees CAMHS Transformation Plan 2015

8.1 What have we achieved so far in.2017

We have invested in a discrete provision for the most vulnerable groups to provide support
and interventions that are flexible and meet the needs of looked after children, those at risk
of experiencing Child Sexual Exploitation and those in the Youth Offending Team system.
Historically as outlined in our original transformation plan there has previously been a
significant gap in this area.

We are extremely pleased to say that the multiagency team comprising of a
psychotherapist, psychologist and emotional health and wellbeing practitioner is now fully
embedded with our Children’s Social Care Team.

The team provides consultation, support and training to social workers, foster carers, Youth
Offending Team staff and others in order for them to meet the emotional health and
wellbeing needs of vulnerable children.

As outlined in the needs assessment section 3, it is clear that taking consultative
approaches ensures a wider group of vulnerable young people are having their needs met
than was originally envisaged. For example, work is being undertaken with children in
need as well as looked after children. The waiting time standard for vulnerable groups is
consistently being met by their having treatment provided within 28 days and we are
particularly pleased about this.

Following our local Ofsted inspection and subsequent report published in November 2016
Kirklees’ children’s social care services were judged as inadequate. The report made 27
recommendations needed to improve outcomes for children and young people.

Approaches to address improvement against all the recommendation were included in a
Kirklees Council’s Improvement Plan for Children’s Services subsequently submitted to
Ofsted. Kirklees are now in a formal delivery partnership with Leeds Council to make the
required improvements. Recommendation 25 specifically refers to improving access to

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
48
Page 106



therapeutic and mental health support for looked after children and care leavers.

Our local response is to implement and develop a discrete CAMHS provision for Looked
after Children and Care Leavers, with reference to the needs identified in our Local
Transformation Plan. Additionally we have prioritised further resource to expand the
vulnerable children services by providing another Full Time Equivalent post. We continue
to report progress and monitor waiting times through the Ofsted Improvement Plan.

We continue to work closely with our Local Youth,Offending Team. The CAMHS
Transformation Commissioning lead is a member of the Youth Offending Team Board and
has input and oversight of the Youth Justice Plan.

The CAMHS Transformation Commissioning.lead also commissions the Health input into
the Youth Offending Team as a whole including substance misuse provision, the Nursing
support includes learning disability provision'and CAMHS consultation input. This ensures
that young people at risk of, or involved in the criminal justice system have a
comprehensive holistic assessment of their needs and receive the most appropriate
support.

8.2 What are our local challenges in relation to this theme?

We have made good early progress under this theme by completing and implementing the
priorities outlined in our original and refresh transformation plans.

In terms of impact there has been a significant reduction in waiting times for looked after
children and the most vulnerable children, and a workforce that feels supported to meet the
needs of our most vulnerable children.

A number of systemic challenges remain in terms of future improvements and development
of children’s services these include.

e The production and implementation plan for our looked after children Sufficiency
Strategy will be completed in January 2018. This will ensure over time that we
have sufficient accommodation and provision locally to reduce the number of out of
area placements required which includes those for emotional health and wellbeing
and Autism Spectrum Disorder.

e The development of a cohesive early intervention and early help offer remains a
challenge although through our Ofsted Improvement Plan this will be addressed
over the coming months.

e Ensuring where children have been placed out of area that they receive a cohesive
package of CAMHS interventions.

e Increasing figures for looked after children from 640 last year to 705 presently, with
501 children with a child protection plan, 2,966 children in need and 1,937 children
needing early help.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
49

Page 107



8.3 What priorities will we begin to achieve over the next twelve months?

We will:

a.

Continue to provide and further augment a CAMHS link and consultation model for
the most vulnerable children including looked after children, children in the youth
offending team, children experiencing CSE, care leavers and children on child
protection plans across Kirklees. LPS 13 (3.1) and LPS 14 (3.2)

Jointly develop the Kirklees Council Sufficiency Strategy for Looked after Children
and ensure the Looked after Children CAMHS provision meets locally identified
needs. LPS 3.10 P

Ensure rapid access to CAMHS interventions for those children who are part of the
Stronger Families programme. LPS15(3.3)

8.4 What outcomes will-thisimpact on?

The above priorities will. achieve the following:

1.

2.

An improved offer for the most vulnerable children and young people, making it
easier for them to access the support that they need when, and where they need it.
Increased use of evidence-based treatments with services rigorously focused on
outcomes.

Professionals who work with children and young people are trained in child
development and mental health, and understand what can be done to provide help
and support for those who need it.

8.5 Theme 3 - Measurement of Impact

Through the Thriving Kirklees contract monitoring process a number of performance
indicators will be provided to commissioners to help demonstrate impact against each of
the above three theme outcomes :

1 % of Looked After Children / Youth Offenders / Child Sexual Exploitation cases receiving
a Mental Health intervention within a maximum of 28 days.
% Of Thriving Kirklees workforce working with vulnerable groups receiving consultation
and support from specialists.
No of foster carers and professionals receiving consultation and support "Vulnerable
Young People Team".
% of support for children and young people identified as requiring support with a LD who
experience a seamless transition to Adult Services at the expected time target.
% of children and young people identified as requiring support that have an Education,
Health and Social Care Plan, by identified concern.
% of children and young people who feel that they are supported by:
a. Thriving Kirklees Partnership
a. Family
b. School
Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017

50
Page 108



c. Community and wider networks

to have good emotional wellbeing and can easily get help and support whenever they
may have worries or concerns, by life course stage

1 % of children, young people or families using Self-Help resources for support to be able
to help themselves without needing specialist support

% of those children and young people identified as requiring specialist support who are:

a. Supported by the specialist element of Thriving Kirklees, by identified issue.

b. Waiting for support by the specialist,element of Thriving Kirklees, by identified
issue. ’

c. Supported by the generic workforce of Thriving Kirklees, by identified issue are
supported by other means, including % of other support mechanisms.

% of children and young people seen by.the specialist element of the Thriving Kirklees
within mandated waiting time targets. :

% of crisis referrals to'the specialist element of Thriving Kirklees who are assessed within
4 hours, by identified issue.

Average waiting time for-children and young people who received an Autistic Spectrum
Disorder (ASD) diagnostic assessment.

% of children and young people identified as requiring support with a Learning Disability
(LD) waiting for less than 28 days for first appointment.

2 % of children and young people who demonstrates improvement in their outcomes via the
use of validated experience measuring tools, by life course stage.

3 % of Thriving Kirklees workforce who feel they have the confidence, skills and knowledge
to be able to promote good emotional wellbeing to children, young people and their
families and be able to identify and support low level mental health problems should they
arise (for example, in schools).

% of Thriving Kirklees workforce who feels that Thriving Kirklees plays a clear and
integral role within larger evidence based multi-agency pathway of support for Children
and Young People.

% of Thriving Kirklees workforce able to demonstrate awareness of and understand of the
importance of the parent-infant relationship.

% of Thriving Kirklees workforce who report they have the appropriate knowledge, skills
and expertise to carry out their role.

% of Thriving Kirklees workforce that report they feel that knowledge, skills and expertise
are shared and disseminated appropriately throughout the workforce and with those that
interact with it.

% of Thriving Kirklees workforce who feels that the Thriving Kirklees plays a clear and
integral role within larger evidence based multi-agency pathway of support for Children
and Young People.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
51

Page 109



9. Theme 4. To be accountable and transparent.

Chapter 7 Future in Mind

Clarity of provision and progress

To enable transformation of our service provisions, deliver better quality care, improve
standards and achieve the best outcomes for children and young people, accountability
and transparency is essential.

v

( > <

Commissioning responsibility, budgets, perforrﬁa'nce activity and monitoring, often sit with
different organisations within the commissioning system.~This can cause confusion in
relation to accountability for the whole CAWIl-lS system.

)

The below image shows the goverhe{nce structtres and interdependencies that link into
Kirklees health and wellbeing decision. making landscape.

Health & wellbeing decision making landscape in Kirklees
(Aug 2018)

Huddersfield A&E
Delivery Board

Mid-Yorkshire A&E
Delivery Board

Statutory
body

Key I

established group | |

Locally | Advisory
group

Public Health
I S Engglerid " England I Health & Children & YP Stronger Econom
Wellbeing Partnership ger Y
| Healthy Futures | - Board Communities Partnership
| WY CCG Joint Committee |
GHCCG NKCCG Integration
Governing Governing Programme Cabinet Council
Body Body Board
GHCCG NKCCG Quality, Integration Integration
Finance & Performance & . .
X Steering Group Steering Group
Performance Finance T .
— — (Commissioning) (OOH Provision) I Safeguarding Children Board I
Clinical Strategy Clinical Strategy Integrated P
Group Group COmm%SSiOning I Safeguarding Adults Board I
Executive (BCF Partnership -
Board) I Health Protection Board
I Audit Committee I ICG: ICG: d
ICG: Older Mental clnteglfatg . osc
GHCCG NKCCG CYP & people, Phys | Health and ommissiont (Management Committee)
Management Tearr] [Management Team Families & Sensory Learning ng G”roup.
Impairment Disability Wellness 0osc
_____________________________________ (Health & Adult Social Care)
Planning group Stakeholder Grou
ﬁalgjrdafl.eﬁ Mid-Yorkshire ImmRERII T oo\ --------------p -----
udderstie Transformation Planning group Stakeholder Group
RCRTRP e e Healthwatch
Programme Planning group Stakeholder Group
Calderdale & I CQC

NHS Improvement

Reports and minutes relating to meetings are maintained by relevant groups. The
following provides an overview of the governance structure Kirklees Children and Young

People’s Mental Health Transformation Plan.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017

52
Page 110



Management

" Kirklees Children and Young People’s Mental
Accountability ----------

Health Transformation Plan Governance Structure

North Kirklees CCG Health d Kirklees
Governing Body % L] . 2 Council
WeIIbemg Board Cabinet
Greater Huddersfield :
CCG Governing Body
Integrated Commissioning Executive
Integrated Integrated Integrated Integrated

Commissioning

Commissioning Group

Commissioning

Commissioning

Older People, Physical Group Group Group
and Sensory Children and Continuing Health Mental Health and
Impairment Families Care Wellbeing
Thriving CYP IAPT Community 3rd Sector Parents, Carers Partnership
Kirklees Partnership Hubs Providers and young Planning
Partnership people Groups

Board

The North Kirklees Clinical Commissioning Group Governing Body is the lead organisation
for the Kirklees Transformation Plan being jointly supported by Greater Huddersfield
Clinical Commissioning Group Governing Body and Kirklees Council Cabinet.

The Integrated Commissioning Group has oversight of all aspects of the Transformation
Plan and reports to the Children’s Trust Board, Health and Wellbeing Board, Safeguarding
Children Board and elected members. Together these provide strategic oversight and
ongoing reviews by Scrutiny Panel all provide input into governance and ongoing service
planning.

Other groups are seen as key partners to support co-production and transformation of
services, these include:

The Children and Young People Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (CYP IAPT)
Partnership Board is a regional collaborative consultation group that looks towards
collaborative approaches in delivering IAPT across each of the areas involved. More
information on IAPT is covered in Theme 5 of this refresh.

The Thriving Kirklees Partnership Board was implemented as part of the contract delivery
process from 1st April 2017 and is made up of representatives from the Local Authority,
Clinical Commissioning Groups and this Board together with contract monitoring and
engagement with other groups inform potential actions, progress and information to the

31 October 2017
53

Page 111

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update



Integrated Commissioning Group to the management structures above them.

The following image shows the proposed organisational chart originally submitted for
Thriving Kirklees. Staffing levels continued to be developed and revised as the service
grows into a cohesive Thrive Elaborated partnership delivery model which may involve
redirection of services which differ to the below chart.

LOCALA CENTRE
Draft Potential

LOCALA INTEGRATED CHILDREN BUSINESS UNIT Organisational Chart

KIRKLEES 0-19 PARTNERSHIP BOARD

CENTRAL TEAM

SENIOR ADMINISTRATOR (1) SERVICE MANAGER (1) TRAINING & DEVELOPMENT LEAD (1)

COMMUNITY TEAMS

04/11/2016

1

SINGLE POINT OF ACCESS (SPA)

PUBLIC HEALTH INTELLIGENCE
LEAD (4)

EMOTIONAL AND MENTAL HEALTH

NURSING TEAM LEADER (6} MANAGER (1) 5PoC TEAM LEADER (0.1} =

COMMUNITY PROGRAMMES CO-
ORDINATOR (2)

SCHOOLS-CAMHS DEVELOPMENT

0-19 PUBLIC HEALTH NURSE (42) LEAD (1)

SENIOR CO-ORDINATOR (1} S5PoC CALL HANDLER (3} &

COMMUNITY VOLUNTEER CO-
ORDINATOR (2)

INFANT FEEDING CO-ORDINATOR
]

TELEPHONE SUPPORT MANAGER [l

GROUP / PE CO-ORDINATOR (0.5) 5

SENNOR PRACTITIONERS (3)

|

COMMUNITY VOLUNTEERS &
PEER MENTORS

FAMILY VOLUNTEER CO-
'ORDINATORS (4)

TELEPHONE SUPPORT WORKERS |

0-19 HEALTH PRACTIONERS (22) 82)

HEALTHY START ADMIN
]

INJURY PREVENTION / HEALTHY
START CO-ORDINATOR [1)

FNP SUPERVISOR (0.5)

FNP PRACTITIONER [4)

¥

g
£
g
g
7
:

PRU NURSE [0.9)

PRU NURSE (0.2}

SUPPORTING FAMILIES ASSISTANT
(20}

ADMINISTRATOR (8)

ADMIN TEAM LEADER (1)

ADMIN SUPPORT (5)

OT 15-18 ROLE

;
-
-
§
g

;
.
-
§
3

ADMINISTRATION (1.2)

THERAPISTS / COUNSELLORS
{sessional)

ADMINISTRATOR (1.8)

PUBLIC HEALTH NURSE [1.5] &2

SPA ADMINISTRATOR (2.2) -

CRISIS NURSE (5.2)

CONSULTANT PSYCHIATRIST (3)

PSCHOTHERAPIST (0.5)

PSYCHOTHERAPIST (1)

CBT THERAPIST (1)

FAMILY THERAPIST (1)

5
£
:
:

PSYCHOLOGIST (1.5]

PSYCHOLOGIST (1)

PSYCHOLOGIST (1)

ASSISTANT PSYCHOLOGIST (1)

SUPPORT WORKER (1)

VULNERABLE CHILDREN'S TEAM

PSYCHOLOGIST (1)
Band 8a

PSYCHOTHERAPIST (1)
Ba

SENIOR PRACTITIONER (1]
Band )

Page lof 1

9.1 What have we achieved so far in 2017

As outlined in the 2016 Transformation Plan refresh, we had made significant progress in
relation to our integrated commissioning arrangements. The CAMHS local transformation
plan has been a catalyst for the integration agenda. New and innovative ways of
integrated budgets, commissioning intentions and governance and oversight arrangements
31 October 2017
54
Page 112

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update



have given us a set of arrangements where between commissioning organisations we are
doing things once through a single process.

The Kirklees Healthy Child Programme arrangements through which our Thriving Kirklees
CAMHS provision is now delivered are being used locally and nationally as an example of
innovative new practice. This doesn’t confine itself to traditional organisational boundaries
and is truly transformational in nature.

The process and governance arrangements in-relation to the Healthy Child Programme
within Thriving Kirklees has ensured transparency of budgets across the system, clarity
around where responsibility sits within commissioning'systems, and performance data is
widely shared and understood.

What this has meant locally is that we have implemented the following:

e The Lead Commissioner forthe CAMHS Transformation Plan has the delegated
responsibility for.the Transformation Plan and ongoing monitoring, whole system
CAMHS budget and associated contracts into a single arrangement.

e On a monthly basis, arrangements are overseen and monitored by our local
Integrated Commissioning Group which has whole system membership including
Community Hubs and children’s social care.

e The Health and Wellbeing Board is regularly discussing and overseeing the
Transformation Plan development and monitored progress.

e We have a single CAMHS pooled budget and a lead commissioner arrangement
with Kirklees Council governed by a formal Section 75 pooled fund agreement
under the NHS Act 2006.

e We have a clear dataset within the Thriving Kirklees Healthy Child Programme and
processes to ensure outcomes are clearly monitored and reported to the Integrated
Commissioning Group including the CAMHS minimum data set, the anticipated
new access standard and outcome data for children young people and families.

9.2 What are our local challenges in relation to this theme?

It remains a challenge to have whole CAMHS system oversight in relation to the
commissioning responsibility for Tier 4 provision which remains with NHS England.

This year, we have seen an increase in closer working arrangement with NHS England
mostly in relation to the implementation of Transforming Care and the Care Education
Treatment Review processes.

We still have some challenges in relation to work with NHS England regarding timely notice
of ‘step down’ placements and delays in finding Tier 4 beds for our most vulnerable
children and young people. The work underway with the West Yorkshire New Care Model
will help with better coordination of ‘step down’ placements and admission prevention and
should also support more joined up approaches with the new care navigation role.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
55

Page 113



Mental Health Dataset

Providers of NHS commissioned services are required under the NHS standard contract to
flow data for key national metrics in the Mental Health Services Dataset (MHSDS). The
NHS CAMHS providers submit all mandatory fields and they have processes in place to
ensure data quality. At this stage there is no requirement for a data quality improvement
plan.

Further advice has been sought from NHS England in relation to the requirement to submit
data for services that are commissioned by the-Local Authority but work jointly with NHS
commissioned services. The current commissioned CAMHS provider has the IT
functionality to enable submission of data-if.required; however this is not a contractual
requirement at present. ‘

9.3 What priorities willwe-begin.to.achieve over the next twelve months?

We will:

a. Continue to provide single set of quality, performance and outcomes data
across the whole emotional health and wellbeing provision. This will report to
relevant bodies including our local Health and Wellbeing Board. LPS 4.11

b. Support a regional case management and care navigation function that
coordinates care and discharge for those young people in Tier 4 settings and
those requiring a “step down” placement and collaboratively commission with
NHS England to ensure clear and smooth care pathways in relation to Tier 4
provision. LPS 2.12 and 4.9

9.4 What outcomes will this impact on?

The above priorities will achieve the following:

1. Improved transparency and accountability across the whole system, to drive further
improvements in outcomes.

2. Increased use of evidence-based treatments with services rigorously focused on
outcomes.

3. Children and young people having timely access to clinically effective mental health
support when they need it.

9.5 Theme 4- Measurement of Impact
Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
56

Page 114



Through the Thriving Kirklees contract monitoring process a number of performance
indicators will be provided to commissioners to help demonstrate impact against each of
the above three theme outcomes:

1 % of parents who feel they have experienced all of the following when interacting with
Thriving Kirklees:
a. Developed a trusting relationship with (at least one) Thriving Kirklees worker
b. Asked their opinion and felt listened to
c. Setoutcomes they wanted to achieye ¢
d. who feel they have been involved |n the Co-production of the support they have
received ............... by life course stage \

% of children and young people who feel they have experienced all of the following when
interacting with Thriving Kirklees: P

a. Developed a trusting re]atlonshlp\wnh (at least one) Thriving Kirklees worker

b. Asked their gprnlon and felt listened to

c. Set outcomes they wanted to achieve

d. who feel they-have been involved in the co-production of the support they have

received ...........%.. by life course stage.

% of children, young people and families reporting that they receive appropriate,
supportive and a timely response to their needs, by life course stage.

2 % of children and young people who demonstrates improvement in their outcomes via the
use of validated experience measuring tools, by life course stage.

3 % of Thriving Kirklees users who report feeling they were supported in a timely and
appropriate manner.

10 Theme 5. Developing the workforce.

Chapter 8 Future in Mind

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
57

Page 115



It is our aim that everyone who works with children, young people and their families is fully
committed to ensuring every child and young person achieves goals that are meaningful
and achievable for them. This means being excellent in their professional practice and
able to deliver the best evidenced care, be committed to partnership and integrated
working with children, young people, families and their fellow professionals, and be
respected and valued as professionals themselves.

10.1 What have we achieved so far in 2017

Our ambition in the original and refresh transformation plan was to integrate our workforce
ambitions for the emotional health and wellbeing system-into wider workforce development
plans across the whole Kirklees system.

Progress to date with this intention has been diéappointing, and some of this is due to the
size of the whole system workforce challenge. Therefore, we made the decision to refocus
our workforce ambition to reflect the outcomes we have specified with the Thriving Kirklees
Healthy Child Programme. The Programme scope covers a wide range of professionals
and people including School Nurses, Health Victors, Teachers, Social Workers, Mental
Health Nurses, Psychologists, Psychotherapists, Psychiatrists, Volunteers, GP’s, Early
Help Staff, Children’s and Community Centres.

We feel if the workforce development programme initially concentrates on this wide range
of people and professionals this will facilitate the workforce changes we require to impact
on children and young people’s emotional health and wellbeing in their day to day settings,
as well as impacting on the quality and timeliness of the interventions they may require.

Thrive Elaborated embodies a central philosophy in our new workforce development
strategy. That is to ensure that parents and professional working / living with children and
young people have access to high quality professionalised consultation and support.

We feel that ensuring staff and parents feel confidence to care and support our children
and young people by having rapid access to a consultation and advice mechanism will
ensure the majority of children and young people’s needs can be met in a universal setting,
rather than a specialist setting.

Appendix G is a proposed implementation timetable for Thriving Kirklees. Adaptations are
being made as the programme progresses which will be closely performance managed
through the quality and contracting process.

Children and Young People Improving Access to Psychological Therapies.

The Five Year Forward View for Mental Health: One Year On report identifies the need for
the expansion of services by 2020/21 to have a parallel increase in the number of skilled

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
58

Page 116


https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/03/fyfv-mh-one-year-on.pdf

therapists and supervisors to meet the additional demand and is able to provide care and
treatment for Children and Young People. The report also suggested that all services
should be working within The Children and Young People’s Improving Access to
Psychological Therapies programme (CYP IAPT) by 2018.

The programme is a whole service transformation model delivered by NHS England in
partnership with Health Education England which provides staff training to increase the use
of evidence based interventions and use of routine outcome measures. This is different
from the Adult IAPT model, which looks at setting'up'new services.

Increased workforce engagement in IAPT is included in the Thriving Kirklees delivery
model to help us build a confident, accessible and responsive workforce for young people
with staff who share a common language as‘well as common approaches and strengthen
the development and delivery of ourlocal Transformation Plan priorities.

A CYP IAPT steering group is in.place with key partners across Calderdale and Kirklees as
part of the Northwest CYP IAPT collaborative. An implementation plan being developed to
ensure a continued joined up approach.

The Calderdale and Kirklees partnership has a nominated leadership representative who
attends partnership meetings and a participation lead who attended the CYP-IAPT regional
participation conference in October 2017. The CAMHS service is actively engaged in the
programme and the General Manager from Barnsley CAMHS attends the regional
Collaborative Board and collates partnership returns on behalf of the local services within
the partnership.

Staff from both our local CAMHS provisions have already participated in the programme
with a manager from ChEWS recently completing the IAPT leadership course and a
Specialist CAMHS staff member having completed the Enhanced Evidence Based Practice
course. Another staff member returns to the service in January 2018 having completed the
Evidence Based Psychological Therapies for Children and young people: Cognitive
Behaviour Therapy.

Both services continue to embed transformation, by routinely utilising outcome measures in
the support provided and are looking to widen the measures to include goal based
outcome for their clients.

The partnership have completed and submitted the partnership monitoring report to the
North West Collaborative which will enable the partnership to benefit and embed the
principles of the programme. A collaborative summary of the information provided will be
shared with Health Education England and NHS England.

The partnership has sourced tools and resources that have been developed regarding
workforce design and will be reviewing these and considering how they might be
implemented over the coming months

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
59

Page 117



As part of the programme implementation Specialist CAMHS has undertaken a
participation audit to ensure that children, young people and their families are engaged and
involved in all aspects of the design and delivery of services including staff training,
recruitment, staff appraisals, session monitoring and complaints and advocacy. The
service has appointed a participation worker to ensure effective engagement with service
users and their families.

Kirklees continues to look towards developing and increasing local participation in IAPT
programmes. The regional collaborative submitted an area wide application for Phase 7
training courses which commence in January 2018. "This included applications for 10
Kirklees placements and expressions of interest for proposed courses for existing staff.

Postgraduate Diploma - Evidence Based-Psychglogical Northorpe Hall Child and Family
Therapies for Children and Young People: Trust.

Cognitive Behaviour Therapy 3 workers awaiting interview
Postgraduate Certificate -\Evidence Based Psychological Specialist CAMHS Kirklees

Therapies for Children and Young People:

Interpersonal Therapy for Adolescents with Depression 1 staff member waiting interview

Northorpe Hall Child and Family

Trust
Enhanced Evidence Based Practice 3 workers waiting for
Programme for Children and Young People applications to be opened

2 new Specialist CAMHS
clinicians to apply in 2018

Northorpe Hall Child and Family
Learning Disability/Autistic Spectrum Disorders Trust
2 workers expressed interest

Northorpe Hall Child and Family
Children and Young People’s Well-Being Practitioners. Trust
1 workers expressed interest

Applicant interviews are being held during October and November 2017 so until then we
cannot confirm any course allocations. Participation in the programme has been be
restricted by oversubscription of applicants against the availability of courses being offered
nationally. This restriction combined with uncertain budgetary commitments will impact on
our local priority intention to enable participation in the programme for CAMHS staff and
more especially for staff from other agencies.

Staff retention, recruitment and continued funding in the CYP IAPT training programmes
have been identified as risks in Appendix D.

Workforce development

The Progress and challenges in the transformation of children and young people's mental
health care report highlights the national shortage of mental health professionals and

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
60

Page 118


https://epi.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/progress-and-challenges.pdf
https://epi.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/progress-and-challenges.pdf

training needs that exist and their key findings in one survey included:

e 83 per cent of trusts experienced recruitment difficulties and had to advertise posts
on multiple occasions to fill roles.

e Mental health nurses were the most difficult profession to recruit to, followed by
consultant psychiatrists.

e Recruitment challenges had led to an 82 per cent increase in expenditure on
temporary staffing in the last two years.
According to the Five Year Forward View for Mental Health, between 2013/14 and
2014/15, referral rates for CAMHS services inereased five-times faster than the CAMHS
workforce.

These findings are recognised as a key challenge and included as a risk in Appendix D, for
the ongoing implementation of ourtransformation plan to close the treatment gap and
ensure our children and young people can get the support they need.

Kirklees services recognises the importance of having suitably qualified staff across the
system that have the relevant experience and skills competencies to be able to support the
implementation of the plan and achieve better prevention and early intervention as
envisaged by Future in Mind.

Our Local Priority 28 looks for the development of a comprehensive multi agency
workforce strategy across the Thriving Kirklees services. A learning and development lead
has been appointed within Thriving Kirklees to ascertain the training, development and
staffing requirements required across the partnership.

The implementation of a detailed and meaningful workforce strategy will take time to
develop. Whilst this takes place services continue to offer continuing personal
development opportunities to existing staff and invest in new staff including those now
working with vulnerable groups, the new single point of contact and continued personal
development of staff involved in IAPT training programmes.

Nurturing parenting principles are to be disseminated throughout the workforce coordinated
by the learning and development lead.

Ongoing developments including having a named CAMHS lead in schools, evolving area
based community hubs, increasing school link programmes and Mental Health First Aid
training has already begun to engage with key organisations, including schools and
colleges. These are all seen as being critical in supporting our transformational visons to
increase capacity and capability of the wider system, which need to be accounted for in our
workforce strategy.

Supporting the community

Supporting school staff, parents and other providers to deliver interventions at a universal
level to increase resilience in children and young people and families is incorporated into

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
61

Page 119


https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Mental-Health-Taskforce-FYFV-final.pdf

Thriving Kirklees who have appointed a learning and development lead to ascertain the
training and development requirements across the partnership.

During Year 2 the Kirklees Learning and Skills Service commissioned limited “co-
production in Mental Health” training for a broad range of partners working in Community
Hubs. This has included the show casing of one of the community hub areas to other hubs
regarding their management of emotional health and wellbeing within school. Ongoing
developments to widen out to all Kirklees state aided secondary schools are outlined in
Section 5.5 of this report.

Work is currently underway by CAMHS provision working-with schools identified as having
higher than average referrals into emotional health and wellbeing services to increase the
knowledge and skills of school staff regarding emotional health and wellbeing to ensure
needs are met early and preventative methods offered.

Kirklees Schools have béen provided with membership until June 2018 to the PSHE
Association which enables teachers to gain access to free Personal, Social, Health and
Economic (PSHE) education curriculum resources.

In May 2017, a mix of fourteen Primary, Junior, Middle and High Schools successfully
completed a PSHE Association award. The award recognises their commitment to
developing educational programmes which help build children and young people’s
emotional health, wellbeing and resilience.

Northorpe Hall Child and Family Trust deliver training and information support sessions in
schools to school staff, parents and carers on a range of topics including self-harm,
transition, risk and resilience, anxiety, sleep information, self-esteem and managing
emotions.

A STOP parent training programme to support parents and carers of young people,
presenting with anti-social behaviours, has been delivered by the Specialist CAMHS
provision. The programme involves 10 sessions to raise awareness about parenting and
teach parents and carers the techniques. The programme includes group discussion,
feedback, videos, role play and homework, to help parents find ways to improve their
parenting or sustain their own parenting methods.

Specialist CAMHS have delivered a Dialectical Behaviour Therapy skills training group
sessions to adolescents and parents. The training involved a number of selected middle to
late teen adolescent service users and their parent or carer. Similar groups are being
developed for future delivery.

Under the Thriving Kirklees umbrella Locala are currently exploring emotional health and
wellbeing training options to ensure all practitioners have a standard platform of skills, this
will form part of their workforce plan.

We have taken some important steps towards our workforce ambition which includes:

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
62

Page 120



e Appointment of a Learning and Development lead to begin respond to learning and
workforce development requirements across the Thriving Kirklees partnership.

e Establishing a Workforce Development Group across all the Thriving Kirklees
partners and scheduled meetings every 8 weeks for the next 12 months. With two
meetings having already taken place.

e Gathering individual workforce plans from the Thriving Kirklees partners to enable
comparison and development opportunities between the services.

e Developed a draft training needs survey to,be.used across all Thriving Kirklees
partners to identify baseline training needs and any gaps against key performance
indicators. '

e Some Thriving Kirklees Health Visitors are already carrying out a school nursing
portfolio and vice versa to offer support across the 0 -19 age range. Once current
training has been completed a programrhe with be rolled out to upskill all specialist
community public health nurses.

e Continued participation by CAMHS provision in Children and Young People
Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (CYP IAPT) programme.

e Use of the Calderdale Framework to upskill staff to provide a systematic, objective
method of reviewing skills, roles and service design which ensures safe, effective
and productive patient centred care.

e Delivery of perinatal mental health training to all 0 — 19 practitioners.

e Continuing to develop the school link programme in Kirklees schools

10.2 What are our local challenges in relation to this theme?

Developing the workforce and creating skill mix teams and new consultation models
presents a number of new opportunities, but also challenges, these include:

e Creating consensus and buy in to multi-skilled skill mix teams where in the past
there might have been a named traditional professional role, for example School
Nurse or Health Visitor.

e Ensuring that non-traditional “CAMHS provision” have the capacity and the passion
to see their roles as central to improving emotional health and wellbeing even
though this may not be the primary focus of their job for example teachers.

e Staff and parents feeling that having an intense consultation approach is as valuable
as one to one interventions.

10.3 What priorities will we begin to achieve over the next twelve months?

We will;

e Ensure CAMHS providers are fully participating in Children and Young People

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
63

Page 121


http://www.calderdaleframework.com/

Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (CYP IAPT) programme core
curriculum in 2017/18. LPS 25 (5.1)

Develop a comprehensive workforce strategy for CAMHS across Kirklees. The
strategy will inform and direct how workforce development will be supported and
implemented across all providers involved in the delivery of a tier less service. LPS
28 (5.4)

To support school based staff, parents and other providers to deliver interventions at
a universal level to increase resilience in children and young people and families.
LPS 5.6 '

To support Workforce development and transformation across the emotional health
and wellbeing provision. LPS 5.7

Ensure that when required, staff receive,appropriate training and continuing
development opportunities, to enable them to deliver relevant evidence based
interventions. Aceess to.appropriate training should be made available for those
who need help to'support children and young people LPS 27 (5.3)

10.4 What outcomes will thisimpact on?

The above priorities will achieve the following:

Increased use of evidence-based treatments with services rigorously focused on
outcomes that bring about change.

Professionals who work with children and young people are trained in child
development and mental health, and understand what can be done to provide help
and support for those who need it.

Children and young people having timely access to clinically effective mental health
support when they need it.

Making mental health support more visible and easily accessible for children and
young people.

10.5 Theme 5 - Measurement of Impact

Through the Thriving Kirklees contract monitoring process a number of performance
indicators will be provided to commissioners to help demonstrate impact against
each of the above four theme outcomes:

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017

64
Page 122



% of children and young people who demonstrates improvement in their outcomes via
the use of validated experience measuring tools, by life course stage.

% of Thriving Kirklees workforce who feel they have the confidence, skills and
knowledge to be able to promote good emotional wellbeing to children, young people
and their families and be able to identify and support low level mental health problems
should they arise (for example, in schools).

% of Thriving Kirklees workforce who feel that Thriving Kirklees plays a clear and
integral role within larger evidence based multi-agency pathway of support for Children
and Young People. ‘

% of Thriving Kirklees workforce able to demonstrate-awareness of and understand of
the importance of the parent-infant relationship.

% of Thriving Kirklees workforce who report they have the appropriate knowledge,
skills and expertise to carry out their role.

% of Thriving Kirklees‘workforce that report they feel that knowledge, skills and
expertise are shared and disseminated appropriately throughout the workforce and
with those that interact.with it.

% of Thriving Kirklees users'who report feeling they were supported in a timely and
appropriate manner.

% of crisis referrals to the specialist element of Thriving Kirklees who are assessed
within 4 hours, by identified issue.

% of children and young people seen by the specialist element of Thriving Kirklees
within mandated waiting time targets.

Average waiting time for specialist support from identification of issue to treatment, by
identified issue.

Average waiting time for children and young people who received an Autistic Spectrum
Condition (ASC) diagnostic assessment.

% of Thriving Kirklees users who report they have appropriate access to resources,
information and materials to support them with their identified issue.

% of children, young people or families using Self-Help resources for support to be
able to help themselves without needing specialist support.

% of children, young people and families who access support via approaches based
on use of technology and assistive technology.

% of Thriving Kirklees users who report feeling they were supported in a timely and
appropriate manner.

% of children, young people and families reporting that they receive appropriate,
supportive and a timely response to their needs, by life course stage.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017
65

Page 123



v2T abed

Key Lines of Enquiry Timeline Mapping

Theme 1. Promoting resilience, prevention and early intervention for the mental wellbeing of children and young people

Appendix A

Theme x- 2017 Refresh Ay
LPS ref Priority Summary Priority Oct 15 | Priority Oct 16 | Priority Oct 17 Projection October
ref Comments 2018
1 11 Redes_ign and i_mplemer_lt a school nursing s?rvice tha_t is more focused on emotional health and wellbeing, and provides an Year 1 Archived G
early intervention function across all educational settings.
Implement clear joint working arrangements and clear pathways between schools and emotional health and wellbeing (Revied v;ort':ii:g :
2 1.2 provision. The provision will be based on presenting need and linked to the Social, Emotional and Mental Health Difficulties Year 1 HEIEE L A
) S LPS 8 (2.4) and LPS
(SEMHD) Continuum work that is being developed.
9 (2.5)
Unchanged Long
3 13 We will have emotional health and wellbeing provision that is colIaborativgly'cqmmissioned with educational settings. Year 1 Term achievment A
. by 2020
o Unchanged Lon,
4 14 We will collaboratively design with young people peer education programmes for children and young people that promote Year 1 Term aciievmengt A
: resilience, and assist with early identification of emotional health and wellbeing issues. by 2020
15 We will .integrate our currently commiss?oned slervices ff)r “risky” behaviours thArough our learning and community hubs, to Year 2 Rt wais A
help deliver a common set of outcomes improving emotional health and'wellbeing
The nurturing parent progfamme approach will be delivered throughout early help services, children’s centres and volunta Revised wording
i i \ ices, chi Vi )
1.6 urtu g P \ Preg P \ { ughou vhelp untary Year 2 merged with LPS G
sector provision, to improve the maternal bond 17
. : . - . Revised wording
17 To redesign and implement the healthy child programme 0 - 5, with increased focus on supporting the development of Year 2 merged with LPS G
: improved perinatal mental health provision, and improving attachment. i 16
We will Implement a comprehensive training programme to develop children and young people’s resilience, and raise their Revised wording re
1.8 awareness of emotional health and wellbeing issues. We will embed this within the Personal, Social, Health, Citizenship and PSHE E
Economic education (PSHCE ed) curriculum.
There will b f social media based interventions to provid rt to children and le and help build Revised wording -
19 e_r'e will be a range of social media based interventions to provide support to children and young people and help bui Year 2 merged with LPS A
resilience.
1.10
We will i th f innovative interventi ilable to children and letoi health and Rt e -
110 e wnA increase the range of innovative interventions available to children and young people to improve health an Year 2 merged with LPS A
wellbeing
1.9
111 Develop a training and support component regarding Emotional Health and Wellbeing for School Governors to be part of their Archived
: ongoing training.
1.12 |To ensure our 0-19 practitioners and peer supporters are intervening earlier around emotional health and wellbeing. New Priority G

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017 66




GeT obed

Theme 2. Improving access to effective support — a system without tiers

Th - 2017 Refresh P
LPS ref eme x Priority Summary Priority Oct 15 | Priority Oct 16 | Priority Oct 17 . etres Projection October
ref Comments
2018
. P . . o . . . i ” . Revised wording -
5 21 Redesign the specification for Tier 2 and Tier 3 CAMHS provision transforming services to provide a “tier free” new service Year1 - G
. model that is based on the “thrive” approach achivemint by 2020
Revised wording -
6 22 Increase front line capacity within Tier 2 and Tier 3 provisions in order to reduce waiting times and improve access for children and v 1 medium term A
. ear
young people. achivement by
September 2018
7 23 PrclJvide a lcomprehensive eating disorder service across Kirklees, Calderdale-and Wakefield in line with best practice and Year1 Archived G
guidance issued v
Revised wording -
3 24 Implement Tier 2 and Tier 3 CAMHS Link workers to directly liaise with and support Schools, primary care and other universal Year1 merged with G
} provision. This will be developed in line with SEMHD continuum of support LPS 2 (1.2) and LPS
A 9(2.5)
{ A Revised wording -
9 25 Implement a joint training programme to support the link roles within primary care, schools, Tier 2 and Tier 3 CAMHS Year1 merged with A
i provision and to support joined.up working across services: This will be developed in line with SEMHD continuum of support LPS 2 (1.2) and LPS
< 8(24)
Revised wording -
10 2.6 Have in place a single point of access model for advice, consultation and assessment and coordination of provision Year 1 merged with G
LPS 11 (2.7)
Provid top sh h providing advice and support, that has been collaborativel issioned with th Revised wording -
rovide a one stop shop approach providing advice and support, that has been collaboratively commissioned wi e )
11 2.7 unt y P 2 PP X P g PP v Year 1 merged with G
volun nd communi r.
untary and co y secto LPS 10 (2.6)
. = - o X = . Revised wording -
Provide a local crisis model that ensures assessment within 4 hours and is in line with the Crisis Care Concordat, and utilises .
12 2.8 R o K Year 1 merged with LPS A
our redesigned psychiatric liaison service. 29
Work with local Systems Resilience Group to Design and implement all age psychiatric liaison provision in line with the “ Revised wording -
29 2.9 Core 24” service specification. Where appropriate work on a regional basis across acute footprints to develop collaborative Year 1 merged with LPS A
approaches 2.8
. . . ] . . - . Revised wording -
Implement an Intensive Home Treatment model, preventing admission to Tier 4, assisting with transition back to community )
2.10 R X X Year 2 merged with LPS A
setting and with clear comprehensive pathways. 37
211 Develop our local Tier 4 markets collaboratively with NHS England supporting the development of LD/ CAMHS inpatient Archived

provision.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017 67




9¢T abed

Provide a case management function that coordinates care and discharge for those young people in Tier 4 settings and those

212 i,
requiring a “step down” placement.
2.13  |Establish a CAMHS link role to support Learning Disability, SEND and assessment for the EHC planning process
214 Establish an integrated team for children with learning disabilities between specialist CAMHS and Kirklees Council Children
i with a Disability Team. (v
> P,
215 Implement the recommendations from the Lenahan review, “bui ht support” and the recent NHS England Guidance

“Developing support and services for children and young people wi

ility, autism or both”.

Ratings Key:
Fully confident: Objecti
Partially confide
Not confident: Obje

d and delivered. All requirements in place.
tified some requirements in place or plans/actions require strengthening.

onfidence that actions will result in requirements being achieved.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017 68



/2T abed

Theme 3. Caring for the most vulnerable

Priority Summary Priority Oct 15 | Priority Oct 16 | Priority Oct 17

Th -
PSref | e
ref
13 31 Invest in and implement a flexible multiagency team to address the emotional health and wellbeing needs looked after
. children, children in the youth offending team, children experiencing CSE and children on child protection plans.
14 3.2 Provide the CAMHS link and consultation model within the range of provision across Kirklees for the most vulnerable children.
15 33 Ensure rapid access to CAMHS interventions for those childreniWho are part of the Stronger Families programme
¢ o,
16 34 Provide cohesive CAMHS provision on a regional basis AC who are placed within'the 10 CC (West Yorkshire Clinical
X Commissioning Groups, Commissioning Collaborati W t
£
Work with Kirklees Safeguarding Child Board unde k@ep ive” into the way in which vulnerable children and young
17 3.5 people experience the CAMHS system, and use the learni inform the development of our discrete provision for
vulnerable chlldren
36 Include Specialist provision in,loc IMUHZI -Agency Safeguarding Hubs) arrangement, alongside adult mental
. health service provisi
37 To provide an assertive communi utreach model through our CAMHS provision that actively engages children, young
: people and families.
3.8 Provide CAMHS support to the new Drug and Family Court model in Kirklees.
3.9 To ensure that local provision is available for those children and young people requiring forensic CAMHS provision.
3.10 Jointly develop the Kirklees Council Sufficiency Strategy for Looked after Children and to ensure that the Looked after Children

CAMHS provision meets locally identified needs.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

2017 Refresh | projection October
Comments 2018

31 October 2017 69



8¢T abed

Theme 4. To be accountable and transparent

Priority Summary Priority Oct 15 | Priority Oct 16 | Priority Oct 17

Theme x-
LPS ref
ref
Implement the lead commissioning arrangement for all CAMHS provision covered within the transformation plan, discharged
18 4.1 through the joint commissioning manager jointly funded by North Kirklees CCG, Greater Huddersfield CCG and Kirklees
Council
19 4.2 Use the Transformation plan as the basis for our commissioning priorities over the next 5 years.
Fa
\ v
20 43 Embed the responsibility for overseeing the commissioning intentions within the Health and Wellbeing Boards work plan and
i oversight function.
Ensure the integrated commissioning group is overseei e impleme atiothure in mind detailed operational
21 4.4 commissioning plan. Ensuring that commissioned seryices are evidence based and that NICE guidelines are implemented
throughout the service provision.
Fal
2 45 Ensure the integrated commissioning group closely m nitg-té AMHS minimum dataset and waiting times standards, whilst
. developing a rigorous ?_eb{ dataset to monitol mprove performance across the system
2 46 Implement clear and transparent outcome monitoring supported by membership of CORC, and the implementation of session
. by session outcome monitoring across CAMHS provision
2 47 Receive quarterly service feMm children, young people and families in all performance reporting to the integrated
: commissioning group.
a8 Have a single pooled budget for CAMHS provision across Kirklees, and to publish the investment figures on local offer
) website along with referral rates and waiting times.
4.9 Collaboratively commission with NHS England to ensure clear and smooth care pathways in relation to Tier 4 provision.
410 Be committed to continuous improvement and monitoring of all of our emotional health and wellbeing provision, using the
) commissioning cycle to understand, plan, do and review.
a11 Continue to provide single set of quality, performance and outcomes data across the whole emotional health and wellbeing

provision. This will report to relevant bodies including the local Health and Wellbeing Board.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

2017 Refresh
Comments

Projection October
2018

31 October 2017 70



62T obed

Theme 5. Developing the workforce

years old targeted at post 16 support services, further education and outside of school provisions.

Theme x- i S o i 2017 Refresh
LPS ref X Priority Summary Priority Oct 15 | Priority Oct 16 | Priority Oct 17 Projection October
ref Comments
2018
25 5.1 Ensure Tier 2 and Tier 3 providers are fully participating in CYP IAPT core curriculum in 2016/17 Year 1 Unchanged A
26 5.2 Ensure that Tier 2 and Tier 3 provider managers are involved in the introduction to CYP IAPT in 2015/16. Year1 Archived G
27 53 Ensure that where required staff aﬁd parents reseive appropriate trainfng and continuing development opportunities to Ui A
enable them to deliver relevant evidence based interventions
28 54 Develop a comprehensive worlfforce development sFrategy for CAMHS across Kirklees. The strategy will inform and direct Ravied warding G
how workforce development will be supported, and implemented
{ N
55 Ensure-that hea!th and social care staff.receive appropriatetraining in order for them to deliver the appropriate evidence Year 2 Archived G
based interventions
5.6 To sqpport school based staff, parentf, ?nd Tier 1 providers to deliver interventions at a universal level to increase resilience Year2 UinhEnEcE A
in children and young peopleand families.
57 To support Workforce development programmes that assist in young people’s transition into adulthood before they reach 18 Year 2 UeienEed A

_ Not confident: Objective not identified or no confidence that actions will result in requirements being achieved.

Ratings Key:

Fully confident: Objective clearly identified and delivered. All requirements in place.

Partially confident: Objective not clearly identified some requirements in place or plans/actions require strengthening.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017 71




2017 Kirklees Transformation Plan Refreshed Priorities

2017 — 2018 Priority descriptions, reporting processes and progress

Appendix B

Year 1 or year 2

Priority
Themes 1 and 2. Ve i o
LPS 3 We will have emotional health and wellbeing Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority eLar Tlon ¥
(1.3) provisions that are collaboratively commissioned Progress updates provided by Locala, Schools as community hubs and h'ong ern; .
' with educational settings. commissioners. ac 'e;%r;gn y
Priority also inter-relates with: LPS 1 (1.1) and 5 (2.1)
B A
) o ) ... | Themes1and2. -
LPS 5 Tran’;sform.mg CAMHS provisions, t”o prpwde a “tier”_ Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority Year 1 priority
free” service model based on the “Thrive - ) o Long term
(2.1) ” Progress updates provided by Locala and commissioners. .
Elaborated” approaches. - . ) ) achievement by
,')A, Priority also inter-relates with: LPS 1 (1.1) and 3 (1.3) March 2020
LPS ' V) G
10 - .
(2.6) Deliver a 24/7 Single Point of Contact model, one Themes 1and 2. Year 1 priority
stop shop approach for'advice, support, signposting, | Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority S.hort term
ps consultation and assessment and co‘ordination of | Progress updates provided by Locala, SPoC and ASK CAMHS. a(c)h[ce":m‘;r(‘)tlgy
. ) . N ctober
11 Thriving Kirklees provision delivery. Priority also inter-relates with: LPS 1 (1.1), 2 (1.2) and 6 (2.2)
(2.7)
Implement clear joint working arrangements
LPS 2 | between schools and emotional health and
wellbeing provision. The provision will be based on iority
(1.2) llbei ision. Th isi ill be based Year 1 priorit
the Social, Emotional and Mental Health Difficulties | Themes 1,2 and 5 Short term
LPS 8 (SEMHD) Continuum work. This will include: Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority Achievement
(2.4) e A CAMHS school link model supporting schools, | Progress updates provided by Locala, Northorpe Hall, SWYFT, Community March 2017
primary care and other universal provisions. Hubs and Commissioners. Long term
e Implement a joint training programme to Priority inter-relates with: LPS 2 (1.2), 6 (2.2), 8 (2.4), 9 (2.5) and 27 (5.3) achievement by
LPS 9 support the link roles within primary care, 2020
(2.5) schools, CAMHS provisions and to support
Q joined up working across services.

0¢T o6

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017 72




Themes 1 and 2

Continue to increase front line capacity within Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority Year 1 priority
LPS 6 CAMHS provisions to reduce waiting times and Progress updates provided by Locala, ChEWS, SWYFT, Voluntary Community Short term
(2.2) improve access for children and young people in line | Sector, Autism Spectrum Disorders and Pupil Premium Plus. Thriving Kirklees | achievement by

with the new national access standard. Performance Measure 76 October 2017

Priority inter-relates with: LPS 2 (1.2) and 11 (2.7)

Ensure that where required staff can access Themes 1,2 and 5

appropriate training and continuing development Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority Year 1 priority
LPS 27 | opportunities to enable them to deliver relevant A _ . Short term

. . . . Progress updates provided by Locala and Northorpe Hall and any associated .

(5.3) evidence based interventions. Access to appropriate . . achievement by

training should be made available for those who schools as community Hub activities. March 2018

need help to support children and young people. Priority inter-relates with: LPS 2 (1.2), 6 (2.2), 8 (2.4) and 9 (2.5)

Continue to provide a CAMHS link and consultation
LPS 13 | model flexible multiagency team within the range of
(3.1) provision to address the emotional health and Theme 3 Year 1 priority

wellbeing needs for the most vulnerable children Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority Progressive

including looked after children, children in the youth | Progress updates provided by Locala, SWYFT and Northorpe Hall. changes from
LPS 14 | offending team, children experiencing CSE, care Priority inter-relates with: LPS 17 (3.5) March 2017
(3.2) leavers and children on child protection plans across

Kirklees.

We will coIIaborativ.er co-produce with yo.ung Theme 1 Year 1 priority
LPS 4 people peer education programmes for chlldre.n and Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority Long term
(1L4) | YOUNE peo!ole tha't pr_omote re5|I.|ence, and assist Progress updates provided by Home-Start, Northorpe Hall and achievement by

with early identification of emotional health and > ’

wellbeing issues. Commissioners. MUY

TET abed

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017 73




Develop an early help offer in conjunction with Year 2 priority
children’s social care, ensuring Thriving Kirklees fits Theme 1 ] ;
1.5 in the proposed model-to help deliver a common set | Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority .ong erm
. . . ) achievement by
of outcomes improving emotional health and Progress updates provided by Locala. 2020
wellbeing.
The nurturing parent programme will be delivered
1.6 throughout early help services, children’s centres Theme 1 Year 2 priority
and voluntary sector provision, to improve maternal | Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority Long term
17 bonding and attachment, having an increased focus | Progress updates provided by Locala, SWYFT, Community Hubs and Early achievement by
. on supporting and improving perinatal mental health”| |ntervention and Prevention. 2020
provision. ‘
:jmplelmenl;c'fdcomprzhensive trainlinlg prqﬁramme tg Theme 1
1.8 eye op c iaren and young pgop S PN Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority
raise their awareness of emotional health and _ o
wellbeing issues. Progress updates provided by Locala, ChREWS and Commissioners
1.9 Continue to develop a range of innovative social Theme 1 Year 2 priority
media based interventions to provide support to Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority Long term
1.10 children and young people, helping to build Progress updates provided by Locala, ChEWS, Community Hubs and achievement by
: resilience and improve health and wellbeing. Commissioners. 2020
To ensure our 0-19 practitioners and peer Theme 1 New 2017/18
1.12 | supporters are intervening earlier around emotional | Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority SW et
health and wellbein ; feci T
& Progress updates provided by Commissioners and Locala.
Provide a local crisis model that ensures assessment
LPS 12 | \yithin 4 hours in line with the Crisis Care Concordat, Year 1 priority
(2.8) and utilises our re-designed psychiatric liaison Theme 2 Short term
service. Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority achievement by
LPS 29 | To work with our local Systems Resilience Group to | Progress updates provided by Commissioners, Locala and ChEWS. May 2016 and
_0(2_9) Design and implement all age psychiatric liaison March 2017.
provision in line with the “Core 24” service

2sT ab

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017 74




specification. Where appropriate we will work on a

regional basis across acute footprints to develop

collaborative approaches.

Further strengthen the assertive outreach Intensive

Home Treatment model, preventing admission to .
2.10 Tier 4, assisting with transition back to community Themes 2 and 3 Year 2 priority

setting with clear comprehensive pathways including | Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority L'ong e
3.7 an assertive community outreach model through our | progress updates provided by Lead Commissioners. achle\;z)r;gnt by

CAMHS provision that actively engages with

children, young people and families.

Provide a case management function that

coordinates care and discharge for those young Year 2 priority
2.12 people in Tier 4 settings and those requiring a “step. | Themes 2 and 4

down” placement. AND { | Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority L.ong WETTT
4.9 Collaboratively commission.with NHS England to Progress updates provided by Locala, SWYFT and Commissioners. achle\;%;\gnt by

ensure clear and smoothtcare pathways. are in place

in relation to Tier 4 provision.

Deliver an integrated team for children with learning | Theme 2 Year 2 priority
2.14 disabilities between specialist CAMHS and Kirklees Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority L'ong term

Council Children with a Disability Team. Progress updates provided by Locala and SWYFT. achm;c(a)r;gnt by

Year 1 priority

LPS 15 Ensure rapid access to CAMHS interventions for Theme 3 Short term

those children who are part of the Stronger Families | Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority .
(3.3) achievement by

programme. Progress updates provided by Locala, SWYFT and Commissioners April 2017

ceT obed

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017 75




Theme 5 Year 1 priority
LPS 25 | Ensure CAMHS providers are fully participating in Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority and risk reporting Short term
(5.1) | CYPIAPT core curriculum in 2016/17. Progress updates provided by Locala and SWYFT. achievement by
Priority inter-relates with 26 (5.2), 22 (4.5) and 23 (4.6) September 2017
Theme 5
Develop a comprehensive workforce strategy across | Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority Year 1 priority
LPS 28 | Thriving Kirklees services. The strategy will inform Progress updates provided by Locala. Long term
(5.4) and direct how workforce development will be This priority support activities looking to expand, develop and improve delivery | —achievement by
supported, and implemented. including responding to several Local Priorities including: 2 (1.2), 3 (1.3), 1.8, March 2020
1.9, 110, 6 (2.2), 8 (2.4), 9 (2.5), 27 (5.3) and 28 (5.4)
To support school based staff, parents and other Theme 5 .
. o ; . . . Long term priority
5.6 providers to deliver interventions at a universal level' | Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority N T
' to increase resilience in children and.young peopleé | progress updates provided by Locala and Workforce Development Manager, 2020
and families. Community Hubs and Commissioners.
To support Workforce development programmes Long term priority
that assist in young people’s transition into Theme 5 achievement by
5.7 adulthood before they reach 18 years old targeted at | Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority 2020
post 16 support services, further education and Progress updates provided by Locala and Commissioners.
outside of school provisions.
Implement the recommendations from the Lenahan Theme 2
review, buﬂdmg the ngﬂht suppo.rt and the recent Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority New 2017/18
2.15 NHS England Guidance “Developing support and ) ] ) .
services for children and young people with a Progress updates prowd(?d by (’:halr. of Chlldrc.an.an(.:l Young People TCP priority
learning disability, autism or both.” Workstream. Head of Children’s Joint Commissioning
Jointly develop the Kirklees Council Sufficiency Theme 3
3.10 Strategy for Looked'after Children and to ensure that Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority New ,20%7/18
the Looked after Children CAMHS provision meets ) ) L L priority
locally identified needs. Progress updates provided by Head of Children’s Joint Commissioning

yeT obe

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017 76




4.11

Continue to provide single set of quality,
performance and outcomes data across the whole

emotional health and wellbeing provision. This will
report to relevant bodies including our local Health
and Wellbeing Board.

Archived local transformation priorities

Theme 4
Transformation Plan Refresh 2017/18 priority
Progress updates provided by Head of Children’s Joint Commissioning

New 2017/18
priority

Theme 1
Redesign and implement a school nursing service i Pﬁority completed following commencement of Thriving Kirklees on 1°** April
LPS1 | thatis more focused on emotional health and 2017. Delivery and contract monitoring plan is in place to transform 0-19
(1.1) wellbeing, and provides an early intervention years'services over the length of the 5 year contact.
function across all educational settings. Relevant updates provided by Locala and ChEWS
Priority inter-relates with: LPS 3 (1.3) and 5 (2.1)
Theme 1
L ) Commissioners have limited ability to direct school governor attendance on
Develop a training and support component regarding training
1.11 Emotional Health and Wellbeing for School o L . o .
. . . This is not within the delivery specifications for actual delivery but to support
Governors to be part of their ongoing training. ) ) . o i .
delivery of interventions by Thriving Kirklees and Community Hubs
Relevant updates provided by Community Hubs.
Theme 2
Provide a comprehensive eating disorder service The Beglonal Comm|s§|0n|ng Group co-eroduge(? a service mode! |:->rOV|d|.ng a
LPS 7 . . .| service for 2016/17 with the contract with existing CAMHS provision being
across Kirklees, Calderdale, Wakefield and Barnsley in ) o
(2.3) . . . . . extended by 2 years to enable continuance and for a competitive tender
line with best practice and guidance issued.
process to take place.
Relevant updates provided by SWYFT.

G

Years 1 and 2
priority

Initial early
achievement by
April 2017

R
Year 2 priority

Long term
achievement by
2020

G

Year 1 priority
In place by April
2017

GeT obed

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017 77



Theme 2
. . ) The local markets in Kirklees still require further development to provide in-
Develop our local Tier 4 markets collaboratively with . . . . .
211 . patient provision. NHS England is undertaking a procurement exercise to G
NHS England supporting the development of LD/ . . . . . . .
. . - increase capacity. Is it yet to be seen if process will translate to any provision Year 2 priority
CAMHS inpatient provision. . .
in the Kirklees area.
Relevant updates provided by Lead Commissioners.
Theme 2
Establish a CAMHS link role to support Learning Embedded into Thriving Kirklees from April 2017. The learning disability G
2.13 Disability, SEND and assessment for the EHC planning | nursing services have been incorporated into the mainstream CAMHS service o
Year 2 priority
process. frem the end of June 2017.
Relevant updates provided by Locala and SWYFT.
Theme 3
To provide cohesive CAMHS provision on a regional Th'IS recom.mendatlon has ngt been adopted by 1F)cc asa rgglonal f(?otprlnt.
LPS . I Without this endorsement Kirklees has removed it as a delivery option from
basis for LAC who are placed within the 10 CC (West | .. .. ) o o L G
16 . . .. its original Transformation Plan priorities, until national redirection is o
Yorkshire Clinical Commissioning Groups, . . . Year 1 priority
(3.4) . . . provided. The proposed budget spend was re-profiled to support increased
Commissioning Collaborative) footprints. . . .
front line capacity for priority 2.2.
Relevant as necessary by commissioners and relevant links.
To work with Kirklees Safeguarding Child Board to Theme 3
undertake a “deep dive” into the way in which Independent report subject to Safeguarding Action Plan to evidence oversight
LPS . . . . - ..
17 vulnerable children and young people experience the | and appropriate responses to recommendations within CAMHS provisions of G
(3.5) CAMHS system, and use the learning to inform the Thriving Kirklees, from April 2017. Year 1 priority
) development of our discrete provision for vulnerable | Relevant updates provided by Local, ChREWS and SWYFT.
children. Priority inter-relates with: LPS 13 (3.1)
Theme 3
Include Specialist CAMHS provision in local MASH IncorpQratefj into Thriving Kirklees from April 201'7. Thrlvmg I'<|rklees health G
. . practitioner’s part of the MASH team. Safeguarding supervision has been
3.6 (Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hubs) arrangement, . . ) . . .
aloneside adult mental health service provision established in Locala, with a recruitment model for new supervisors in place -
& P ) across all Thriving Kirklees teams. Year 2 priority
;g Relevant updates provided by Locala.

o¢T ob

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017 78




Theme 3
Provide CAMHS support to the new Drug and Family We have been s.upportlng the I.:amlly and Alcohol C_o.urt by using a dllscrete
3.8 L resource and this has been mainstreamed into Thriving Kirklees delivery from
Court model in Kirklees. . .
April 2017. Year 2 priority
Relevant updates provided by Locala and SWYFT
E hat local ision i ilable for th Theme 3
n.sure that local provision Is ava'n.a efort . ose Included Thriving Kirklees specification top provide initial forensic assessment, G
3.9 children and young people requiring forensic CAMHS . . ..
provision more complex forensic assessment are spot purchased as required. Year 2 priority
' Relevant updates provided by Commissioners.
Implement the lead commissioning arrangement for Theme 4
LPS all CAMHS p.rovmon coyered within the . Lead commissioning arrangements established which will also ensure
Transformation Plan, discharged through the Joint L o . G
18 L . continuing robust monitoring and scrutiny to 2020.
Commissioning Manager jointly funded by North . . .
(4.1) . . , . Relevant updates as necessary by Commissioners and relevant links.
Kirklees, Greater Huddersfield CCG’s and Kirklees o ) Year 1 priority
Council Priority inter-relates with: LPS 19 (4.2), 20 (4.3) and 21 (4.4)
Theme 4
LPS Continuing monitoring and scrutiny by the CAMHS lead commissioner, CCGs
19 Use the Transformation Plan as the basis for our and Integrated Commissioning Group and Children’s Trust Board to ensure G
(4.2) commissioning priorities over the next 5 years. robust and appropriate responses by 2020. Year 1
) Relevant updates as necessary by commissioners and relevant links.
Priority inter-relates with: LPS 18 (4.1), 20 (4.3) and 21 (4.4)
Theme 4
LPS Embed the responsibility for overseeing the Integrated processes in place which will ensure continuing long term G
20 commissioning intentions within the Health and transformation monitoring and scrutiny of this priority.
(4.3) Wellbeing Boards work plan and oversight function. Relevant updates as necessary by commissioners and relevant links. Year 1 priority
Priority inter-relates with: LPS 18 (4.1), 19 (4.2) and 21 (4.4)
LPS Ensure the Integrated Commissioning Group is Theme 4
21 overseeing the implementation of the Future in Mind | Implementation of plan completed. Continuing monitoring and scrutiny by the G
4.4) detailed operational commissioning plan. Ensuring CAMHS lead commissioner, CCGs and Integrated Commissioning Group and TR
_?( ) that commissioned services are evidence based and Children’s Trust Board to ensure robust and appropriate responses by 2020. I L el 15

/€T ab

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017 79




that NICE guidelines are implemented throughout Relevant updates as necessary by Commissioners and relevant links.
the service provision. Priority inter-relates with: LPS 18 (4.1), 19 (4.2) and 21 (4.4)
Theme 4
Outcome based dataset has been incorporated into the performance
Ensure the Integrated Commissioning Group closely monitoring of Incorporated into Thriving Kirklees CAMHS element from April G
LPS monitor the CAMHS minimum dataset and waiting 2017 including participation in CYP IAPT. Key performance indicators have
22 time standards, whilst developing a rigorous been agreed and the partnership in place. Initial data flow and reporting lines Year 1 priority
(4.5) | outcome based dataset to monitor and improve have been established. Assurance work continues around information sharing | Achievement by
performance across the systems. between CAMHS and Locala. April 2017
Relevant updates provided by Locala Data Team and SWYFT.
Priority inter-relates with: LPS 23 (4.6)
Implement clear and transparent outcome Theme 4 G
LPS monitoring supported by membership of CORC, Incorporated into Thriving Kirklees from April 2017. Existing CAMHS services .
. . . . . Year 1 priority
23 (CAMHS Outcomes Research Consortium) and the will provide quarterly outcome monitoring reports to agreed timescales. i
(4.6) | implementation of session by session outcome Relevant updates provided by Locala Data Team and SWYFT. ach|evgment by
monitoring across CAMHS provision. Priority inter-relates with: LPS 22 (4.5) April 2017
LPS Receive quarterly service feedback from children, Theme 4 G
24 young people and families in all performance Incorporated into Thriving Kirklees from April 2017. Existing CAMHS services Year 1 priority
(4.7) reporting to the Integrated Commissioning Group. will provide quarterly outcome monitoring reports Achievement by
LPS 24 Relevant updates provided by Locala Data Team. April 2017
Have a single pooled budget for CAMHS provision Theme 4 G-A
across Kirklees, and to publish the investment figures | Section 75 funding arrangements have been formally agreed and incorporated
4.8 . . . o . .
on local offer website along with referral rates and into Thriving Kirklees from April 2017. -
waiting times. Relevant updates as necessary by commissioners and relevant links. Year 2 priority

8¢T abed

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017 80




Theme 4
Continuing monitoring and scrutiny by the CAMHS lead commissioner, CCGs
Be committed to continuous improvement and and Integrated Commissioning Group and Children’s Trust Board to ensure G
4.10 monitoring of all of our emotional health and robust and appropriate responses by 2020.
) wellbeing provision, using the commissioning cycle | Arrangement made for completion of annual refreshed plan which VNP
to understand, plan, do and review. incorporates feedback from the North of England Commissioning Support Unit P ¥
and Key Lines Of Enquiry guidance.
Relevant updates as necessary by commissioners and relevant links.
Theme 5
LPS Ensure that Tier 2 and Tier 3 CAMHS provider All provider managers have been trained. Incorporated into specification of G
26 managers are involved in the introduction to CYP Thriving Kirklees CAMHS for continuing participation. Response cross refers Year 1 oriorit
(5.2) IAPT in 2015/16. with LPS 25 (5.1) 2 Y
Relevant updates as necessary by commissioners and relevant links.
Theme 5
. ) Incorporated into Thriving Kirklees from April 2017.
Ensure that health and social care staff receive ] ) o o .
) L . Learning and development lead has been appointed within Thriving Kirklees G
5.5 appropriate training in order for them to deliver the . T : .
. . . . to ascertain the training and development requirements across the Year 2 priority
appropriate evidence based interventions. X )
partnership and develop a deliverable workforce strategy.
Relevant updates provided by Locala.

6ST obed

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017 81




Appendix C

Kirklees Children and Young People’s Plan 2017 -2020: Putting children and young people at the heart of everything we do I

Our vision

All children and young people in Kirklees will be nurtured and
supported to achieve their potential.

Our outcomes

Children and young people are very clear about what they want
growing up in Kirklees

¥ To have the best start inlife and be healthy™

¥ To aspire, achieve and enjoy life*

¥ Tofeel safe and live in a strong, loving family and a vibrant
community™

¥ Tofeel valuad and contribute to society

¥ Tolive in a decent home with enough money and confidence in

their future

We know that not all children and young people have the same
opportunities to achieve these outcomes. The inequalities

experienced in childhood lead to lifelong inequalities in income and
health. We are committed to tackling those inegualities and break

that cycle.
We recognise the different stages of the child’s journey from

conception and birth through to becoming an independent adult,

and that at critical points in that journey they may need more
support to make the most of the next stage of their life.

* = Kirklees Qutcome

Our ways of working
*  Put the child or young person at the heart of what we do
* Do things with people rather than to them or for them

*  Use Outcomes Based Accountability to understand whether
children and young people are better off as a result of our
services and interventions

ot T abed

How we will deliver our vision

All-Age Disability
and
SEND Strategy

Children's
Services
Improvement
Programme

Thriving Kirklees

and CAN

transformati

We will make this happen by focussing on the following programmes and supporting the development of the
key supporting environments for children and families

Community Hubs,

Community Plus
inc Kirklees Youth
Alliance and Early

Democracy
Commission,
voice & influence

How will we know if we have made a difference?

To have the best start in life 1. Healthy birth weight
and be healthy 2. Healthy weight (at age 11)
3. Good level of development in Early Years
To aspire, achieve and enjoy 4. Attainment gaps at 5, 11, 16, 19
life 5. School attendance
B. Self-reported wellbeing
To feel safe and live in a 7. Feel loved and cared for (or Free from bullying)
strong, loving family and a 8. First time entrants to the youth justice system
vibrant community 9. Looked after children
10. Children with a child protection plan
To feel valued and contribute | 11. Feel they have positive influence
to society 12. Voter registration (Democracy Commission)*
13. Volunteering*
To live in a decent home with | 14. Children in poverty
enough money and 15. FEfHE participation or employment (current relevance or
confidence in their future 18-24 workl 1t
16. Decent housing*

*-work required to develop relevant indicator

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

Our Priorities

+ Support children and families to become more resilient, identify
and resolve their own problems before crises occur by
developing a comprehensive network of Community Hubs. These
will support prevention and early intervention by providing a
focal point in every community for a wide range of activity,
establishing the new Community Plus approach, including a new
youth offer from the Kirklees Youth Alliance, and an Early
Support offer for children and families (link)

+ Enable all young people, including vulnerable learners, to achieve
their full potential through improving the quality and range of
opportunities for learning and skills development from early
learning to post 16 (link)

+ Enable all children to become active citizens by implementing the
recommendations of the Kirklees Democracy Commission (link)
and ensuring that they have voice and influence

= |mprove the physical health and mental wellbeing of all children
by further developing the Thriving Kirklees (link)approach and
complete the transformation of child and adolescent mental
health services {link)

*  As a partnership we will work together to ensure that there is an
appropriate range of services and coordinated responses to
meet the needs of our most vulnerable children and young
people. Where passible we will integrate previously fragmented
services where it makes sense to enable the delivery of more
effective and efficient support.

+ Improve outcomes for children and young people with special
educational needs and disabilities to enable them to make
choices that lead to successful adult lives by integrating
education, health, social care and voluntary sector provision
(link)

Our enablers

Delivering these priorities and outcomes can only be achieved if we

up our game on those ‘enablers’ that provide the conditions for

suceess

¥ Strong leadership —not just from the Children and Young
People’s Partnership but from committed people across families,
communities and partners

¥ Building a confident and skilled workforce that can turn this plan
into a reality for all our children and young people

¥ Making the most of digital technology to connact people with
available opportunities the wider world

¥ Bringing the services for our communities together in the most
appropriate places through the One Public Estate approach

31 October 2017

82



CAMHS Transformation Plans — Issues and risks to delivery 2017/18

Appendix D

NHS

England

NHS North Kirklees Clinical Commissioning Group and NHS Greater Huddersfield Clinical Commissioning Group.

Description of issue of risk to delivery of

*Date expected

LPS Number Description of Local Priority Scheme 2017/18 plan Mitigating Actions to deliver
Staff accessing appropriate training and Ongoing development of Thriving
development opportunities to enable lmmediate and long term challenges in Kirklees services and workforce
them to deliver evidence based recruiting and training existing, new and development plan towards 2020
LPS 27 (5.3) interventions. Access to training for - | additional staff to deliver our transformation will work towards identifying Ongoing from
those who support children and young ambitions-by 2020, against uncertain Clinical realignment of resources which November 2020
people. , Commissioning Group and Local Authority are best utilised to respond to
Impacts on LPS 2 (1.2), 6 (2.2), 8(2.4) and 9" | future budgets. local need.
(2.5) !
Continue to increase front line capaci . . . . Waiting time trajectories working
pacity Adaptations to meet combined national waiting ds reduci iting tim
within CAMHS provisions to reduce times across CAMHS provision may not initially ]‘Eowar > reducing warting times
waiting times and.improve access for sufficiently reflect NHS England delivery or CAMHS provisions in 2018 as .
LPS6 (2.2) | children and young people‘in line with expectations if assessed as a single component. | ° 5|'n'gle measure. Independent Ongoing from
the new national access standard. Agreed trajectory targets are considered stretch waiting times progress reports October 2018
. - . submitted to commissioners
Impacts on LPS 1 (1.1), 2 (1.2), 3(1.3), 5(2.1), | targets against existing budgets, increased independently of NHS England
6(2.2), 10(2.6)and 11 (2.7) referral rates and service capacity. dataset submissions.
Applications for the CYP IAPT Programme are CYP IAPT applications are being
Ensure CAMHS providers are fully nationally are overs‘ubscrik‘)ed. This i's Iimiting progressed for Phase 7 by'
participating in CYP IAPT core curriculum | 3CCess locally combined with F)otentlal f'|nanC|aI Novgmber 2017b. :jNork will .
LPS 25 (5.1) | in2017/18. challenges for CCGs when national funding continue to embed IAPT outcome | Ongoing from

Impacts on 22 (4.5), 23 (4.6) and
26 (5.2)

ceases in 2018. Current focus being on Thriving
Kirklees provisions involvement as opposed to
other agencies. Continuation by CAMHS staff
in CYP IAPT training programmes

measures into practice.

The Calderdale and Kirklees IAPT
Steering Group works together to
progress this priority.

January 2018

T¥T abed

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017 83




2016 Learning Skills Annual report extract

Appendix E

Schools as Community Hubs

Schools as Commun
geographically ba
working together
Ver arange of
families and the

se:y Hubs are 3
cluster of schools
With key partners to
Sefvices for children,

wider camn‘unny.

As a council, we're changing the way we work,
increasing the focus on health and wellbeing, economic
resilience and strengthening early intervention and
prevention. Securing good outcomes and ensuring the
best start in life for our children and young people is a
key priority for the council, schools and their partners.

Becoming a New Council is about doing things
differently, thinking differently and acting differently. By
changing the way we do things, we are best placed to
meet the challenges of significant reductions in public
spending, changes to the role of local authorities and
changes to the school system.

.................................................................

Next steps and priorities

We will agree a strategic plan with school leaders, the
council and wider partners to deliver on the vision for
Schools as Community Hubs to ensure that

¢ All schools have the opportunity to become part of a
Community Hub by 2018;

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

Schools engage with families and children every day
and they have a unique and hugely valuable position
within our communities. It is therefore critical that the
council, schools and their partners work more closely
together as we begin to shape future services. We are
committed to working differently with communities and
schools in order to make best use of scarce resources.

In the last year we have beenworking with school
leaders and a wide range of partners to develop the
vision and priorities for the ‘Schools as Community
Hubs' concept.

.............................................................

* Partnerships between key organisations, services
and School Community Hubs are strengthened;

e All school hubs have the data and intelligence they
need to be able to set priorities and plan services for
children, families and communities in their area;

¢ School hub representation is established within
wider strategic Kirklees Children’s Service planning
and commissioning activity.

13

31 October 2017
84

Page 142



What's changed?

2015

Many individual schools are working in isolation on this
agenda.

Early Intervention and Prevention activity across Kirklees
is being delivered by individual schools, statutory
services and partners in ways that are not always
co-ordinated.

There is duplication of service provision in some areas.

Schools begin to cluster together on a geographical
basis.

Statutory services and other partners begin to work
in partnership with schools and strongerworking
relationships are forming.

Strong relationships between schools, health, social
care and community based services exist but this is
not consistently true. Sometimes there is a sense of
frustration that children and families cannot access the
services and support they need.

Greater partnership working has led to increased levels
of co-operation, improved understanding aboutwhat
each service does, and stronger working relationships
between services and organisations.

There is imited/low level understanding of the
contribution made by schools to the delivery of wider
children’s services activity beyond the traditional
‘teaching and learning’.

There is a greater understanding and appreciation of the
level of investrnent frorn schools in early intervention
and prevention activity.

Greater understanding of the scale and scope of actvity
within schools and across school hubs which support
children, families and communities.

The appetite and capacity of schools to engage with
partners and deliver on a wider health and social care
agenda is untested and unclear.

A significant proportion of the school community are
clear that they not only want to engage and work in
partnership but alsewant to co-design and

co-deliver integrated services to children, families and
communities.

School collaboratives/hubs start to create capacity
across their partnership to consider ways of
commissioning and co-ordinating area based health
and social care services and strengthen their role in
delivering and co-producing a wider children, family and
community offer.

Health and social care and community roles are

beginning to be created, lent in or integrated into School
Hubs.

There is imited engagement of schools in strategic
children’s service commissioning

A pilot programme to support school hubs to build
expertise in commissioning is underway. Learning from
this will inform proposals for future strategic children’s
SEIViCe COMMIissioning arrangements.

School leaders have been pro-actively engaged in
designing the Healthy Child Prograrnme and the

councils Early Help proposals [both to come into effect
from April 2017,

School staff have difficulty in accessing information/data
about children and families known to social care.

School staff have been involved in the design of a new
information system which will allow them access to
child and family details. [Liguid Logic is expected to be
available from Summer 2017.)

Third sector organisatiens with an offer of services for
children, families and communities are unsure of the
best route to engage with schools

School commmunity hubs are beginning to provide a route
for organisations to widen their offer and improve access
to their services ensuring a wider, broader range of
provision for children, families and communities.

Access to service level and whole population level data
and intelligence re: children, families and cornmunities
in gecgraphically relevant areas is patchy and
inconsistent.

Public Health are developing an integrated data set for

a defined School Hub area which describes key issues
and assets in the area and suggestions for key priorities
which might improve outcomes for children and families.

14

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017
85

Page 143




v T abed

Transforming Care Plans — Self Assessments Appendix F

Self-assessment questionnaire about children and young people with learning disabilities, autism or both. Completed by either: the
Transforming Care Partnership Board chair or the TCPB children and young people’s lead in Calderdale, Kirklees, Wakefield and
Barnsley.
e This self-assessment gives a view of key gaps, opportunities and achievements within each areas children and young
people’s Transforming Care Plans.
e |t will also provide a children and young people overview so that support can be focused to facilitate the achievement of
planned milestones. e
e This information has been extrapolated to form the basis of a position statement for Transforming Care Plans for children
and young people with learning disability ‘and autism across the Northern Region.

1. How would you describe your knowledge and understanding of the numbers of children and young people in your TCP
foot print with learning disabilities, autism or both?

Slightly Confident

Calderdale

e Information on the numbers of children and young people with learning disabilities, autism or both is shared between Health, Social Care
and Education agencies.

o Positive developing working relationships between agencies. Social care and education work in collaboration.

e An All Age Disability Service is proposed which will see Social Care and Education agencies formally working closer together.
e Agencies are already co-located which has helped ensure a shared understanding of need.

e There are strong early-years structures and good mechanisms to identify need from an early stage of development.

e The Autism Spectrum Disorder Team has national accreditation and works closely with health and social care agencies.

e The early years Autism Spectrum Disorder Multi-Disciplinary Assessment (MDA) works successfully.

e There is joint commissioning between the council and the Clinical Commissioning Group and structures to ensure identified gaps in
provision are addressed.

e The Disabled Children’s Team includes health and social care professionals jointly managed — the team is co-located with key education
agencies and works closely together.

e The Disabled Children’s Team manager attends Special Educational Needs and Disability Moderation Panels enabling collaborative
working and shared knowledge of children and young people.

e There is concern around the school age Autism Spectrum Disorder Multi-Disciplinary Assessment pathway and that waiting times are of

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017 86




G T obed

concern — a multi-agency group is working to better manage support for children and families on the waiting list.

More work is required to better align early health visitor and school nursing services with early years and Special Educational Needs
approaches.

Kirklees

Information is gathered through the annual school census which gives information on primary need across Kirklees. This provides us with
data about learning difficulty, whether it is moderate, severe or profound and where a child has Autism Spectrum Condition. However, only
the primary need is recorded so this information doesn’t reflect where a child or young person has both.

Special Educational Needs are collected when a child or young person has an Education Health and Care Plan — this is updated at annual
review. This includes a primary need as well as other.needs/diagnosis.

Through our integrated joint working arrangement\with Education Health and Social Care we work closely to share information on a
population basis and also on an individual child basis to understand the needs of our population. As such we have just completed through
our integrated children’s commissioning group an updated needs assessment in relation to Special Educational Needs and Disability and
others vulnerabilities which give us valuable, insights into those children with Learning Disability and Autism Spectrum Conditions and map
this against other vulnerabilities. ‘

In relation to having a cohesive joint dataset acfross commissioning organisations and providers there is still work to be done, and through
our Special Educational Needs and Disability Self Evaluation Form we have identified this as an action that feeds into our Special
Educational Needs and Disability'commissioning strategy.

Wakefield.

We have systems in place via our Special Educational Needs and Disability and Special Education Needs Assessment and Review Team
teams to collate the data about our children and young people with Autism Spectrum Disorders/ Learning disabilities with an Education
Health and Care Plan. We are able to cross reference this with those moving towards transitions from a social care perspective from
work with our Complex care needs team and future planning with the Adult Social Care team.

A Senior Educational Psychologist works with our partners in the Clinical Commissioning Group to understand the numbers for those that
are within the diagnostic pathway.

Currently looking at our Local risk register for young people who would be in need of a Care, Education and Treatment Review Care
Education and Treatment Reviews with the Clinical Commissioning Group. From discussions at Transforming Care Partnership meetings
we are looking to meet with other areas to discuss how we can support each other regionally.

Although we recognise that there is still work to be done in ensuring that we are better at identification children and young people at the
earliest possible stage, we are confident that we are moving in the right direction. This includes understanding further the numbers who
may have a diagnosis but are not at the thresholds for an Education, Health and Care Plan and those at an early stage of being identified
within the 2-5 age range.

Barnsley

Strong inter-agency governance for complex care cases in place with long-standing joint commissioning structures to support.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017 87




o T abed

e Sharing of information around key individuals to develop at-risk register needs to improve. Single register of children with disabilities is
currently under-developed.

Actions:

Calderdale

e Further develop education, health and social care collaboration with parents and other stakeholders through the multi- agency Autism
Spectrum Disorder group.

e Improve alignment of social care and education agencies through the All Age Disability Service - further work is planned in later phases of
the service development to include stronger formal health agencies.

e Establish stronger links between CAMHS and the Special Educational Needs Team supporting information exchange and developing a
shared understanding of need. '

Kirklees

e SEN Assessment and Commissioning Team to explore more robust data collection through use of more systematic Information and
Communications Technology solutions. /This.will be jointly supported through Clinical Commissioning Groups and Health providers.

e Develop dynamic risk register for ¢hildren and young people.

¢ Interms of case tracking as currently no information shared regularly from NHS England regarding Tier 4 cases we need to urgently
prioritise this data flow jn“order to plan-for individual young people more robustly and track progress.

e Implement improvement plan to\increase parental participation in voluntary additional needs and disability register.

Wakefield

e Partners to continue to work together to further refine and analyse the data and information that is collected so that we understand the
impact this may have on identification and service provision.

o Complete development of a dynamic risk register with partners in Health and Social Care.

Barnsley

o Develop processes to improve ability to identify at-risk individuals and incorporate to all-age register (building on current Adult’s register)

¢ Implement improvement plan to increase parental participation in disability register.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017 88




/T abed

2. How best would you describe your understanding of the range of needs that these children and young people might

have?

Aware of Key issues

Calderdale:

Collaborative working between agencies has enabling a good understanding of need and an increasing awareness of the range of needs.
Parents have a strong voice in developing services and have recently done lots of work with the Short Breaks panel to improve clarity and
understanding for parents.

Development of Education, Health and Care Plans has looked to include stronger health and social care descriptions and a better
understanding of the range of individual needs:

Children and young people have a voice in developing their own plans.

It is recognised that challenging behaviour is an increasing issue locally and that for a small group of children and young people with
complex behaviours and Autism Spectrum Disorderlocal special schools have found it difficult to meet needs - work is underway to develop
appropriate support and services to better meet needs locally.

Cases brought to the Short Breaks panel also help to develop multi-agency understanding of issues families face; there is currently no
health involvement in this process.

Kirklees

¢ Through the needs assessment outlined in section 1 we are aware on a population basis of the needs Children and Young People have.
¢ On an individual level we get this information to Education, Health and Care planning, case discussed and assessments.

e Through our new Healthy Child Programme tender we have brought together a number of provisions including a new Autism Spectrum

Conditions provision and Children’s Learning Disabilities nursing so need is also monitored through contract management and discussions.
The main needs we have locally are in relation to challenging behaviour for those with either a Learning Disability, Autism Spectrum
Condition or both. This presents as families and children and young people in crisis needing high level input to manage behaviour at home,
which often breaks down. This generally tends to be aged 13 upwards.

We also gain intelligence through our engagement with of local parents groups including PCAN (Parents of Children with Additional Needs).

Wakefield

Services work closely together when supporting and identifying needs across Health education and Social Care for those children and
young people that are identified and known to these services.

We have a strong Advisory Service for children and young people who may have a diagnosis or have additional needs relating to social
communication that supports settings and educational partners. This team also works collaboratively with partners in Health and other
organisations such as Wakefield Early Support Advice Information Liaison Service (Wesail) in order to provide advice and programmes for
parents which also secures feedback information to ensure future needs can be analysed.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017 89




81T abed

Barnsley

¢ Recent improvements in Special Educational Needs and Disability system have seen almost all statements of Special Educational Needs
converted to Education, Health and Care Plans. (85%-+). Majority of assessments and plans now undertaken / issued within statutory
timescales.
Links to actions in (question 1) regarding register of at-risk individuals

¢ Implement Special Educational Needs Strategy and Sufficiency Strategy to improve ability to identify need at early stage and ensure most
appropriate, early provision.

e Improved early years pathways, including integrated 0-19 service (Health Visiting / School Nursing) now delivered by local authority should
have positive impact on early identification of need. .

e Aware of key issues identified through Special Educational Needs and Disability strategies i.e. lack of Social, Emotional and Mental Health

and Autism Spectrum Disorder specialist provision locally.
Actions:
Calderdale

e Improved Health input into the shart breaks‘progess to improve the understanding of the range of needs.

Kirklees

e Continue to monitor need through integrated commissioning arrangements and through children and young people and service users
feedback.

e Coproduce solutions toidentified needs across Health, Education and Social Care.

Wakefield

e Continue to review information collated from teams

e The creation of a new specialist Early Years which has brought Early Years specialisms together. This builds on programmes that are
already established E.G. The Future in Mind project and the Autism Spectrum Disorder diagnostic pathway to enable increased early
identification

Barnsley

e Implement Special Educational Needs and Disability strategies
e Improve reporting with CAMHS (and NHS England) to identify at-risk individuals.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017 90




61T obed

3. Do you know which children and young people from this cohort who are most likely to be ‘at risk of admission’to
hospital or residential schools?

Each CCG has an At risk ‘At Risk of Admission Register/s’
of Admission Register’ held elsewhere (please specify)
Wakefield Calderdale/Kirklees and Barnsley
Calderdale

o Services working collaboratively around individual children and young people have an awareness of ‘at risk’ — there is a need to formalise
and quantify this knowledge and understanding. _

o Work is in place with partners in Clinical Commissioning Group and local authority to establish an ‘at risk register’.

Kirklees -

e As stated above we will work to produce an dynamic at risk of admission register, building on the adult register currently in place. This will
involve planning across all agencies in relation to information sharing agreements and data flow including Health, Education Social Care
and NHS England.

Wakefield

¢ We are aware of those that-are currently in/ requesting residential schools and/ or hospital.

¢ We are aware of all children/ young people with Severe Learning Disabilities/ Autism Spectrum Disorder/ Profound Speech, Language and
Communication Needs.combined with Social, Emotional and Mental Health needs (Autism Spectrum Disorder pre-diagnosis).

o We are utilising the Section 31 high needs strategic review to identify the factors that led to the need for admission to hospital/ residential
school.

Barnsley

e At-risk register in development to include hospital / residential schools. Clear inter-agency governance is in place to feed this info through.

Actions:

Calderdale

o Develop Risk Register and identify resources to support and maintain this. Detailed work would need to be done with families.

Kirklees

o Work will NHS England and local partners to develop an at risk of admission register by 31 March 2018.

Wakefield

o Define develop and maintain the register for children/ young people in/ requesting residential schools and/ or hospital and children/ young
people with Severe Learning Disabilities/ Autism Spectrum Disorder / Profound Speech, Language and Communication Needs combined
with Social, Emotional, Mental Health needs (Autism Spectrum Disorder pre-diagnosis).

Barnsley

¢ Join up info regarding schools / residential placements and hospital admission.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017 91




0GT abed

4. How would you describe the appropriate and timely use of community and post-admission CTRs by CCG
Commissioners?

| Slightly Confident | |

Calderdale

o Key health, social care and education agencies have received Care Treatment Review training, therefore our understanding is developing,
still requires on-going work to enhance current systems.

Kirklees

¢ In Kirklees we are using Community Care, Education and Treatment Reviews in an appropriate and timely manner. There have been 3 this
year so far all chaired by the Children’s Clinical Commissioning Group commissioner and all have been appropriate. An expert by
Experience and Clinical input has been gained for.all, as has the input from CYP and Parents. Post admission Care Treatment Reviews
has only had involvement in 1 through NHS England which was last year.

e We have a gap locally in terms of resource within our continuing care team to support Care, Education and Treatment Reviews in those
under 18 years of age and are currently writing a business case to increase that resource to further strengthen the clinical oversight and
arrangements for both community and post admission Care, Education and Treatment Reviews.

Wakefield { '

o We are aware of the plans-the Clinical Commissioning Group are developing with us, which include appropriate and timely use of
community and post-admission, Care Education and Treatment Reviews We have been involved historically with Care Treatment Reviews
when they have been called for young people known to local services.

¢ We are currently working.jointly on the risk register as mentioned previously.

Barnsley '

e One Care Treatment Review to date for a LAC placed out of area. Barnsley services and support from local area worked well.

Actions:

Kirklees

e Clarify arrangements with NHS England in relation to post admission Care, Education and Treatment Reviews.

e To produce and follow up the business case for further clinical oversight and input into Care, Education and Treatment Reviews.
Wakefield

o Implement plans which include appropriate and timely use of community and post-admission Care, Education and Treatment Reviews.
Barnsley

e Joint analysis of need and development of at-risk register will improve service planning.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017 92




TGT abed

5. Are you confident that CCG commissioners are following up on the recommendations and agreed actions arising from
CTRs? Are outcomes quality assured?

Yes, we monitor outcomes but We leave it up to individual
there are no formal processes in commissioners
place
Calderdale/Kirklees and Barnsley Wakefield
Calderdale
o To date we haven’t had that many so further evaluation over time would be required.
Kirklees :

e We are confident given the small numbers of Care, Education and Treatment Reviews that all actions are being followed through
appropriately using the Key Lines of Enquiry témplate and.review processes that are put in place for community Care, Education and
Treatment Reviews. These actions are quality assured through the experts by experience and clinical input, but future plans for increasing
clinical oversight will strengthen the quality assurance aspect.

Wakefield >

¢ We are confident where a Care, Education-and Treatment Reviews was needed for a Wakefield young person that the Clinical
Commissioning Group Commissioner would follow the correct procedures and guidance, ensuring outcomes are quality assured.
Barnsley

¢ None to date

Actions:

Kirklees

e Clinical oversight business case to be progressed.

Wakefield

e Have relevant conversations with Clinical Commissioning Group Commissioners.
Barnsley

e To ensure processes in place through inter-agency governance in order to capture key messages and learning for future development.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017 93




ZST abed

6. Where do you feel you are in terms of developing sustainable community resources and services for children and
young people?

Slightly Confident

Calderdale
e There are gaps which need to be addressed
Kirklees

e In Kirklees we have invested the majority of our CAMHS Local Transformation Plan allocation within our new Healthy Child Programme
which brings together a number of provisions including our school nursing, health visiting, CAMHS provision, new Autism Spectrum
Condition provision, Children’s Learning Disabilities nursing provision. This increase in investment and new way of working under the
“Thriving Kirklees” model will bring a contlnuum of support across the life course for children and young people with Learning Disabilities
and / or Autism Spectrum Condition.

e We are working closely with SEN Assessment and Commissioning Team in relation to developing joint resource across Kirklees to meet the
needs of children and young people with“Special Educational Needs and Disabilities including developing our approaches to sensory
provision and Occupational Therapy provision; we are currently undertaking review of all children’s therapies also.

e Our main challenge is in relation to children’s challenging behaviour and the sufficiency of accommodation locally for children and young
people and families reachmg crisis.point and the level of input required from social care and crisis provision does not meet need.

Wakefield

o Wakefield has excellent special school provision in the local area and further work to understand current/ future demand is being
undertaken as part of the'Section 31 high needs strategic review.

o Wakefield has outstanding specialist short breaks residential provision providing short breaks and shared care in the district keeping

children and young people with their families and as close to home as possible. Further work to understand current/ future demand is being
undertaken as part of the Short Breaks review.

¢ The Autism Spectrum Disorder recovery pathway has been established and is currently decreasing the current waiting list.

Actions

Kirklees

e Explore through children and young people’s Transforming Care Plans accommodation and support options for them and their families at
risk of breakdown and in need of respite and/or accommodation.

Wakefield

o Further work to understand current/ future demand for special school and specialist short break residential/ shared care as part of the
Section 31 high needs strategic review and short breaks review.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017 94




€GT abed

7. How would you describe relationships with your multi-agency partners in providing an integrated approach to
understanding and meeting the needs of children and young people?

Confident

Calderdale:

e There are strong relationships between agencies and an integrated approach in meeting needs of learners with Learning Disabilities and
Autism Spectrum Disorder.

e Agencies have a joint understanding and work closely together around individual cases.

Kirklees

¢ On an individual level through our SEN Assessment and Commissioning Team provision we are working hard towards developing joint
working to appropriately identify needs, develop joint. outcomes and agree provision through the My Support Plan and Education, Health
and Care Plans. e

¢ On a system wide level through of children’s integrated commissioning arrangements we have a good understanding our need across the
system and as mentioned previously have recently-produced a needs assessment tin relation to those children with multiple vulnerabilities
across Kirklees. X

e We are working together on-a multiagency basis to agree the commissioning intentions that result from the understanding of need.

¢ The children’s commissioner-is the chair of the integrated commissioning group, which draws together schools, education, Clinical
Commissioning Group representation, social care representation, Public Health, Young People, parental input. This group is well
established and committed to articulating a set of commissioning intensions which support the outcomes required for the identified client
group. Through our CAMHS Transformation Plan arrangements have good multiagency input in planning and meeting needs of our children
and young people, and will'integrate Transform Care Plan outcomes required into our CAMHS Transformation Plan refresh.

Wakefield

o Partnership panels (Education Health and Care Plan and Complex Care) are consistently well attended ensuring multi-agency partners take
an integrated approach to understanding and meeting the needs of children and young people on the risk register.

Barnsley

e CAMHS has functioning dual-diagnosis pathways.

e Good inter-agency processes = integrated care planning and decision-making for social care, health and education.
o Need to ensure CAMHS play into these processes more systematically than at present.

Actions:

Kirklees

e Ensure individual level need is met and escalated through dispute resolution arrangements when required.

e Ensure that Children’s Integrated Commissioning Group keep oversight of any Transforming Care Partnership planning moving forward to
map against current needs.

o Ensure that needs identified relating to Transforming Care Plans embedded within the CAMHS refresh for October 2017.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017 95




vGT abed

Wakefield

¢ Continue to develop relationships with your multi-agency partners in providing an integrated approach to understanding and meeting the
needs of children and young people.

o Ensure the integrated approach is reflected in children and young people’s Education Health and Care Plans via the inclusion of specific
health and care outcomes in addition to educational outcomes.

o We have plans to look at past cases to identify lessons learned and influence future action.

Barnsley

e Improve CAMHS engagement with multi-agency care planning.

8. Does your Transforming Care scoping and ’planning process include children and young people with autism and no
learning disability?

Yes

Kirklees

e Yes. Lead CAMHS commissioner i$ chair of CYP TCP work stream.
Wakefield

e The risk register includes children/ young people in/ requesting residential schools and/ or hospital and children/ young people with Severe
Learning Disabilities/ Autism Spectrum Disorder / Profound Speech, Language and Communication Needs combined with Social,
Emotional, and Mental Health needs (Autism Spectrum Disorder pre-diagnosis).

e Children with Autism and/ or learning disabilities that do not require additional support in relation to their education, health and/ or care
needs are not included.

Barnsley

e Yes. This is an enduring challenge locally. High-tariff, residential school places placements can often create an expectation of ongoing
support for vulnerable young people that is unlikely to be replicated post-transition to adulthood. Planning for these young people, although
very low in incidence, is identified as a priority locally.

Actions:
Kirklees

e Ensure that the Children and Young People Transforming Care Partnership work stream includes CAMHS commissioner.
Wakefield

o Develop and maintain risk register and protocols and procedures
Barnsley

e Implement improvements to transition pathways for Learning Disabilities and Autism Spectrum Disorder young people

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017 96




GGT abed

9. Are you aware of the Children and Young People’s Supplementary pathway to the existing Building the Right Support
Service Model? Do you feel ready to underpin and integrate it with your current and existing plans and processes for
CYP locally?

Don’t know what it is

Kirklees

¢ Not aware of pathway, will find out about it through children and young people Transforming Care Partnership and ensure integration with
wider children’s service offer.
Wakefield

e Sorry No

Action:
Kirklees
e To examine detail of children and young/people’s supplementary pathway and align with children services offer.

\

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017 97




9GT abed

Thriving Kirklees — Provisional Implementation Plan Appendix G

YEAR 1 YEAR 2 YEAR 3 . YEAR 4 . YEAR 5

MDT’s Seed E E

Resources for Fund . .
greatest . .

impact/need . .

. Digitalisation

E Extended NP Extend Auntie Pams model into other Localities

- Programme/ - . .

Parenting Building Community Capacity
Courses

Comm ' BF Peer .
Partner Spaces Mentoring

Portals

Integrated Data Systems

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIN

n
HS n
L&C Hub .
Portals Text -
Service -

- L]

Workforce Development
] ]
Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017 98



/ST abed

Kirklees Baseline Data Tables Appendix H

Finance Tables - 1. Core Services - Only includes investments in the most appropriate category. No service is included twice.
CORE SERVICES - 2015/16 and 2016/17

LA Funded |LA Funded |CCG CCG Other Funding Other Funding Specify Funding Source(s) Comments
Service type 15/16 16/17 Funded Funded Source 15/16 Source 16/17
15/16 16/17

School Based Early Intervention Services
Sub-Total 0 0 0 0 0 0
Early Intervention Services - Other Bases
school nursing & Health Visiting 7,602,437| 7,352,437 43,500 43,500 LPS 1 (finks with LPS 3 & LPS 5)
Sub-Total 7,602,437 7,352,437 43,500 43 500 0 0
Services Targeted at Specific Vulnerable Groups
Vulnerable Childrens Team 50,000 170,000 YOT, LAC. CSE. LPS 14 (links LPS13 & LPS 17)
YOT Services 140,000 140,000 Young Offenders
LAC Services 65,300 120,000 170,000 Looked after Children
PRS Services 29,397 29,397 29,397 29,397|School Clusters Pupil Referral Units
Sub-Total 65,800 0 339,397 509,397 29,397 29,397
Specialist CAMH Services
Regional ED Team 217,000 211,000 LPS7
CAMHS wait times 340,500 420,000 LPS 6 (links with LPS 2 and LPS11)
Single Point of Access 55,000 145,000 LPS 10 {finks with LPS1, LP52, LPS6 & LPS11)
ChEWS Tier 2 360,000 360,000 96,000 96,000
CAMHS services in schools 339,561 339,561 Estimated spend
CAMHS Tier 3 2,164,190 2,164,190
Sub-Total 360,000 360,000 2,872,690| 3,036,190 339,561 339,561

MHS E funding for |NHS E funding for
Inp_atientTier 4 CAMHS Exp. [Do not use] 15,.’16_‘t0 be 16/17 to be supplied NHS England
(paid for by NHS England) supplied by NHS E |by NHS E and

and entered here |entered here
Total 8,028,237 7,712,437| 3,255,587 3,589,087 368,958 368,958

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017 99




8GT abed

Finance Tables

2. Allied Services — Only includes investments in the most appropriate category. No service is included twice.

ALLIED SERVICES - 2015/16

Service Type LA Funded |LA Funded |[CCG CCG Other Funding Other Funding Specify Funding Source(s) Comments
15/16 16/17 Funded Funded Source 15/16 Source 16/17
15/16 16/17
School Based Early Intervention Services
CAMHS Schools link pilot 40,000 40,000
Learning SEHM provision 420,000 420,000 Estimated
Sub-Total 420,000 420,000 40,000 40,000
Early Intervention Services - Other Bases
) ) 1,504,437 Previous submission counted this twice as was
School Nursing Service . . .
included in core services
Previous submission counted this twice as was
Health Visiting 6,098,000 included in core services
Sub-Total 7,602,437 0 0 0
Services Targeted at Specific Vulnerable Groups
Sub-Total 0 0 0 0
Specialist CAMH Services
Sub-Total 0 0 0 0
Total 8,022,437 420,000 40,000 40,000
Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017 100




6GT obed

Activity Tables

CORE SERVICES ALLIED SERVICES
No. Accepted |No. Accepted No. Accepted [No. Accepted
No. Refs. |No. Refs. |Into Services Into Services  |Active Cases [Active Cases No. Refs. [No. Refs. [IntoServices |Into Services |Active Cases |Active Cases
15/16 16/17 15/16 16/17 31/3/16 31/3/17 15/16 16/17 15/16 16/17 31/3/16 31/3/17
School Based Services School Based Services
* School Nursing 8,432|* 2,130 * 1,520( *
Learning SEMHD Provision |NA NA NA NA NA NA
CAMHS Schools link pilot  |NA NA NA NA NA NA
Sub-Total 0 0 0 0 0 0]Sub-Total 8,432 0 2,130 0 1,520 0
LA Based Services LA Based Services
* Services targeted at other
vulnerable children - YOT 179 * 37|% 11| * Health Visitors/FNP NK NK NK NK NK NK
Services targeted at other
vulnerable children - LAC NK NK NK < NK ) NK NA
* Services targeted at other
vulnerable children - PRS 219| % 151 * 134)*
Sub-Total 398 0 188 0 145 0|Sub-Total 0 0 0 0 0 0
Third Sector Based Services Third Sector Based Services
ChEWS CAMHS Service -
area based (used to be
referred to as Tier 2 services 2297 3175 1711 1,942 192 290
Sub-Total 2,297 3,175 1,711 1,942 192 290|Sub-Total 0 0 0 0 0 0
NHS Based Services NHS Based Services
Looked after Children
NHS Provider CAMHS 1,862 1,042 537 932 776 632|Nursing Team NK 978|NK 978|NK na
Sub-Total 1,862 1,042 537 932 776 632|Sub-Total 0 978 0 978 0 0
Total 4,557 4,217 2,436 2,874 1,113 922|Total 8,432 978 2,130 978 1,520 0

* Awaiting data confirmation from services - to be updated in final published version

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017 101




09T abed

Workforce Tables

Number of
Practitioner/Clinical
Staff in Post June 16

Number of
Practitioner/Clinical
Staff in Post June 17

Number of
Practitioner/Clinical
Staff in Post June 16

Number of
Practitioner/Clinical
Staff in Post June 17

School Based Services

[Use/insert as many rows as necessary]

School Based Services

[Use/insert as many rows as necessary]

School Nursing 31.20 31.20
Learning SEMHD Provision |60% of EP time 60% of EP time
CAMHS Schools link pilot 0.60 1.00
Sub-Total 0.00 0.00]Sub-Total 32.20 32.20
LA Based Services [Use/insert as many rows as necessary] LA Based Services [Use/insert as many rows as necessary]
Services targeted at other v Health Visitors/FNP
vulnerable children - YOT 1.00 1.00| Estimated numbers 160.00 160.00
Services targeted at other
vulnerable children - LAC 1.00 1.00
Services targeted at other
vulnerable children - PRS 2.00 2.00
Sub-Total 4.00 4.00]Sub-Total 160.00 160.00
Third Sector Based Services [Use/insert as many rows as necessary] Third Sector Based Services [Use/insert as many rows as necessary]
ChEWS CAMHS Service -
area based (used to be
referred to as Tier 2
services 15.50 21.30
Sub-Total 15.50 21.30]Sub-Total 0.00 0.00
NHS Based Services [Use/insert as many rows as necessary] NHS Based Services [Use/insert as many rows as necessary]
Looked after Children
NHS Provider CAMHS 30.98 32.38|Nursing Team 2.80 2.80
Sub-Total 30.98 32.38]Sub-Total 2.80 0.00
Total 50.48 57.68| Total 195.00 195.00

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017 102




T9T abed

NHS!

Yorkshire and the Humber
Clinical Networks

CYP Emotional Health Baseline Data Collection 2015
Introduction and Instructions

This template for recording emotional health services activity, workforce and investment builds on the template used in Yorkshire and Humber
in 2015. The main difference is that a distinction is made between ‘core’ and ‘allied” activity in the tables, as well as allowing a comparison
between 2014/15 and 2015/16. The tables allow more discretion for individual services to subdivide services, or not to do so - within the
overall divisions set out in the tables.

‘Core services’ are defined as those services with»a sole or predominant ‘emotional health/ mental health’ focus. ‘Allied services’ are those
services that make a contribution to the emotional*health of children and young people, but are not exclusively provided/commissioned for
this purpose. Some services, particularly in thethird sector, may be funded to provide both core and allied services, and proportions of such
services can therefore be allocated to both broadcategories.

It is expected that the ‘core columns’ are completed. It is at the discretion of individual areas as to whether they wish to complete the ‘allied’
columns. If you are unable to provide information please define whether it is either 'Not Known' or 'Not Applicable'.

The information provided will form-part of what areas are expected to make publically available via other means. The overall intention of these
tables is fourfold:

e To be transparent as the level of activity, workforce and investment in emotional health services in a CAMHS Partnership area, across
all providers and commissioners.

e To demonstrate the changes in activity, workforce and investment levels over time.

e To provide some baseline data to enable areas to estimate changes in activity over time, as required for national reporting. (It is
important to note that much activity, (e.g. at school level) cannot currently be collated, and that therefore overall increases will need to
be estimated.)

e To highlight areas of service that are being provided, but where no data is available. (e.g. services based in schools). This inhibits the
ability of the lead commissioner to plan services across the whole spectrum.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017 103



29T abed

The core services are as follows:

‘Emotional health’ focused staff located in schools/clusters

Looked After Children CAMHS services

Multi Systemic Therapy Services

Early intervention emotional health focused service

Headstart projects

Youth Counselling Services

Public Health activities with an EH focus

NHS based CAMHS teams

Intensive home treatment CAMHS services

Projects working to address emotional impact of abuse

Specialist CAMHS services with specific remits - forensic, Llj,«ADHD, YOT etc
Third sector Services, or sections of services, with an explicit emotional health remit
Projects ascertaining YPs views as to local emotional health services

Any other service with an exclusive emotional/mental health remit

\

Allied services are as follows:

(Descriptions drawn from are baseline statements in 2014/15)

School Based Services

School based staff with overall pastoral and learning responsibilities (e.g. learning

mentors, SENCOs)

Local Authority and Third Sector Based Services
Health visiting service

Children’s Centres

Early Help and Safeguarding Support

Early Help Hubs

Generic family support services

Parenting support projects

Youth Support Services

Educational psychologists

Special Education Needs Assessment and Review Team
Behaviour support teams

Inclusion Teams

SEMH provision

Inclusion teams (Autism)

Complex medical needs and education team
Designated Looked After Children nurse

Leaving Care Services

Generic looked after children’s teams

Overall YOT services

Young People’s Drug services

School Nursing Service

Public Health activities focus on children generally.
Healthy Schools Projects

Teenage pregnancy projects

‘Homestart’ type third sector services

Young carer’s schemes

Services with an overall remit to support young people
Services addressing abuse, trauma etc

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017 104



11 References

Kirklees information - accessible at www.kirklees.gov.uk/futureinmind

1.
2.
3.
4.

Kirklees Transformation Plan Refresh — 2017
Kirklees Transformation Plan Refresh — 2016
Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan 2015 to 2020

Various supporting documents and inférmation

Additional information sources

1. Brain in Hand” app

2. The Calderdale Framework *

3. Delivering the Forward-View, NHS Planning Guidance 2016/17

4. Five Year Forward View for Mental Health: One Year on 2017

5. Five Year Forward View for Mental Health — 2016 report

6. Five Year Forward View for Mental Health website

7. Future in Mind: Children and Young People’s Mental Wellbeing 2015

8. Kirklees Joint Strategic Analysis resource

9. Lenahan review, “Building the right support ”

10.  NHS England Choices web pages

11. NHS England Guidance “Developing support and services for children and
young people with a learning disability, autism or both

12.  Ofsted - Kirklees Improvement Action Plan Progress

13.  Public Consultation videos via You Tube.

14.  The ‘Childs Journey’ Kirklees Safeqguarding Children Board report

15. The Children’s Commissioner Briefing in Children’s Mental Healthcare

16. The Kirklees Health and Wellbeing Plan

17. The Lester Tool

18. The Progress and challenges in the transformation of children and young
people's mental health care report

19. Thrive Elaborated model

20.  Thriving Kirklees website

21. West Yorkshire and Harrogate Sustainability and Transformation Plan

22. Greater Huddersfield CCG Kirklees Sustainability and Transformation
Plan

23.  North Kirklees CCG Kirklees Sustainability and Transformation Plan

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update 31 October 2017

105
Page 163


http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/futureinmind
http://braininhand.co.uk/
http://www.calderdaleframework.com/
http://www.calderdaleframework.com/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/12/planning-guid-16-17-20-21.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/03/fyfv-mh-one-year-on.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/Mental-Health-Taskforce-FYFV-final.pdf
http://www.nhsconfed.org/news/2016/07/implementing-the-five-year-forward-view-for-mental-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/413393/Childrens_Mental_Health.pdf
https://observatory.kirklees.gov.uk/jsna
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/lenehan-review-into-care-of-children-with-learning-disabilities
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/lenehan-review-into-care-of-children-with-learning-disabilities
https://www.nhs.uk/NHSEngland/AboutNHSservices/mental-health-services-explained/Pages/about-childrens-mental-health-services.aspx
https://www.nhs.uk/NHSEngland/AboutNHSservices/mental-health-services-explained/Pages/about-childrens-mental-health-services.aspx
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/developing-support-and-services-for-children-and-young-people-with-a-learning-disability-autism-or-both/
https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/developing-support-and-services-for-children-and-young-people-with-a-learning-disability-autism-or-both/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/kirklees-childrens-services-report-to-the-secretary-of-state
https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLwU8eV939ETTctfqQmCXYOHTJwVHYco2s
http://www.kirkleessafeguardingchildren.co.uk/managed/File/Info%20for%20Professionals/20170515%20-%20KCSB%20CAMHS%20Review%20October%202016.pdf
http://www.kirkleessafeguardingchildren.co.uk/managed/File/Info%20for%20Professionals/20170515%20-%20KCSB%20CAMHS%20Review%20October%202016.pdf
https://www.childrenscommissioner.gov.uk/publication/briefing-childrens-mental-healthcare-in-england/
https://www.childrenscommissioner.gov.uk/publication/briefing-childrens-mental-healthcare-in-england/
http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/beta/working-with-children/pdf/future-in-mind/2017-18/KirkleesHealthWellbeingPlan.pdf
https://epi.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/progress-and-challenges.pdf
https://epi.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/08/progress-and-challenges.pdf
http://www.annafreud.org/media/3214/thrive-elaborated-2nd-edition29042016.pdf
http://www.thrivingkirklees.org.uk/
http://www.thrivingkirklees.org.uk/
https://www.wakefieldccg.nhs.uk/fileadmin/STP/Publications/Final-draft-submission-plan.pdf
https://www.greaterhuddersfieldccg.nhs.uk/sustainability-transformation-plan-stp/
https://www.greaterhuddersfieldccg.nhs.uk/sustainability-transformation-plan-stp/
https://www.northkirkleesccg.nhs.uk/sustainability-and-transformation-plan-stp/

12. Glossary and Acronyms

ASD/ASC Autism Spectrum Disorder / Autism Spectrum Condition

ASK CAMHS  Access and Support for Kirklees - Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services

CAMHS Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service

CBT Cognitive Behavioural Therapy

CCG Clinical Commissioning Group

CETR Care, Education and Treatment Reviews

ChEWS Children’s Emotional Wellbeing Service

Core 24 24 hours psychiatric liaison service to.Accident and Emergency Departments

CSE Child Sexual Exploitation ’

CYPEDS Children and Young People Eating Disorder Service

CYP IAPT Children and Young People’s Improving Access to Psychological Therapies

DNA Did not attend

EHC (P) Education Health and Care (Plans)

EIP Early Intervention and Prevention

KIHCP Kirklees Integrated Healthy Child Programme

KIJSA Kirklees Joint Strategic Analysis

KPI Key Performance Indicator — used to evaluate success at reaching targets

LPS Local Priority Stream

LPT CAMHS Local Transformation Plan

MH & WB Mental Health and Well Being

NICE National Institute for Health and Care Excellence

oT Occupational Therapy

PCAN Parents of Children with Additional Needs

PSHCE ed Personal, Social, Health, Citizenship and Economic education

SALT Speech and Language Therapy

SEMHD Social, Emotional and Mental Health Difficulties

SEN Special Educational Needs

SEND Special Educational Needs and Disability

SPA Single Point of Access

SPoC Single Point of Contact

STP Sustainability and Transformation Plan

TCP Transforming Care Partnership(s)

Tier 2 Historical description for practitioners who are CAMHS specialists working in
community and primary care settings

Tier 3 Historical description for a multi-disciplinary service, providing a specialised
service for children and young people with more severe, complex and
persistent disorders.

Tier 4 Services for children and young people with the most serious problems, such as

day units, highly specialised outpatient teams and in-patient units.

Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan — 2017 Draft Refresh and Progress Update

31 October 2017
106

Page 164



g st EpKirkieas

COUNCIL

Clindcal Comimisshoning Group Clindcal Cammilssloning Group




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 9:

KIRKLEES HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD

MEETING DATE: 14/12/2017
TITLE OF PAPER: Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment Post Consultation
1. Purpose of paper

This paper provides a table summarising the responses received post Pharmaceutical Needs
Assessment consultation. The paper also provides a table summarising the updates received
through formal communication during the consultation period.

2. Background

The HWBB’s second draft PNA was out for a 60 day consultation from 2 October 2017 -1
December 2017 in line with the NHS (Pharmaceutical and Local pharmaceutical services)
Regulations 2013. On behalf of the HWBB, consultation has taken place with members of the
HWBB, key stakeholders, local professional networks and teams within Kirklees Council. A
communication plan was in place to raise awareness of the consultation and there was the
opportunity for individuals and organisations to give their views either independently or through a
web snap survey feedback page.

3. Proposal

To share a summary of the PNA consultation responses with the HWBB. To provide assurance that
Statutory deadlines for PNA publication are being met.

4. Financial Implications
None
5. Sign off

Rachel Spencer-Henshall 5/12/2017
Richard Parry 6/12/2017

6. Next Steps

The Kirklees PNA Group will meet on Tuesday 19 December 2017 to review the consultation
responses and to agree the required changes to the draft PNA. A Briefing paper will be circulated
to the HWBB in February 2018 detailing feedback from the analysis of responses from the
consultation. The HWBB will be asked to approve the publication of the PNA on 29 March 2018.

7. Recommendations

The Board is asked to note the consultation responses and updates. The Board is invited to ask
guestions and provide any additional comments.

8. Contact Officer

Nicola Bush Public Health Pharmaceutical Advisor ; Nicola.bush@kirklees.gov.uk

Page 167


mailto:Nicola.bush@kirklees.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Kirklees Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment Consultation Reponses and Updates
02/10 2017-01/12/2017

Snap Survey Responses
The table below details comments from a total of five consultation responses received from the following people/ organisations:
e Pharmacy contractor representing a Pharmacy;
e Pharmacist representing two Pharmacies;
e Area Manager representing Well Pharmacies;
e Member of the public;
e Community pharmacy West Yorkshire representing all Kirklees Pharmacies.

Snap Survey Summary Responses

Date Respondent SNAP Question Pharmacy Details/ Survey Response Ward Areas of PNA
Category Address(es)/ PNA Affected
Areas
9/11/2017 Accuracy: Appendix 13: Batley, 4 Market Place This branch does not offer the Needle Exchange service Batley East Appendix 13;
Locally Commissioned Figures in main PNA
Services Heckmondwike, This branch does offer the Smoking Cessation Service Heckmondwike body
Northgate Centre
Skelmanthorpe, This branch does offer the Smoking Cessation Service Denby Dale
Commercial Road
Milnsbridge, Market This branch does offer the Smoking Cessation Service Golcar
Street
Area Manager Accuracy: Appendix 13: Heckmondwike, Union | This branch does not offer the Palliative Care Service Heckmondwike Appendix 13
on behalf of NHS England Street
Well Pharmacies | Commissioned Enhanced Milnsbridge, Market This branch does not offer Head Lice Treatment Golcar
and Advanced Services Street
Accuracy: Appendix 11: Heckmondwike, Union | The opening hours should be: Monday to Friday: 08:45 — Heckmondwike Appendix 11
Table of Community Street 18:00, Saturday: 09:00 — 17:00

Pharmacy Opening Hours

69T obed




Snap Survey Summary Responses

Date Respondent Category Pharmacy Details/ Survey Response Ward Areas of PNA
Address(es)/ PNA Affected
Areas
1/12/2017 Gaps: Public opinion Pharmacies in the “Netherton and Meltham need longer opening hours” Crosland Moor Two pharmacies
about opening hours. Netherton and and Netherton open week days
PNA No Gap identified Meltham areas Ward until 18:00pm and
one until 18:15pm
Holme Valley in Meltham/ on
Member of the North Metham R.oad. One
Public pharmacy in Honley
open until 18:30pm.
Three pharmacies
open Saturday
mornings. To
discuss with NHSE
and PNA Group
1/12/2017 Accuracy: Notification of Appendix 13: NHSE “Pharmacies reported in Meltham and Thornhill do not Dewsbury South/ | Appendix 13 “soon”
Pharmacist intention not to provide Commissioned provide NUMSAS as stated” Holme Valley to be removed in
NUMSAS Advanced Services North NUMSAS section
1/12/2017 Additional Comments “A greater scope of pharmaceutical Enhanced Services would be helpful to the area, Noted
Community such as Minor Ailments & EHC. They are currently rationed.”
Pharmacy Accuracy Appendix 11 and 13 “The Pharmacy is correctly spelled on p16 of Appendix. Liversedge and Appendix 11 and 13
Contractor Please change 'Chemist' to 'Pharmacy' on pp 126, 143 and Gomersal
152 of the main PNA.
1/12/2017 Accuracy: Notification to Main body of PNA “Number of pharmacies in Kirklees. P 25 states there are Page 25 Sections
. amend the details of Sections 2.42 and 2.44 | 93 40-hour contracts within Kirklees. This does not match 2.42 and 2.44
Community . .
Pharmacy West pharmacy summary the number of pharmacies that Community Pharmacy
. Y breakdown on page 25 West Yorkshire have on record: ¢ 83 40-hour standard
Yorkshire . . .
contracts ¢ 9 Distance selling pharmacies ¢ 15 100-hour
contracts ¢ 1 over 15,000 sq metre ® Total = 108"
1/12/2017 Additional Information Main body of PNA Huddersfield is a university town. As such there will be an Main body of PNA
. influx (both on a daily and term-time basis) of (mainly
Community . .
young) people. The requirements of this cohort of
Pharmacy West . L . .
. population should be noted within the PNA. This need is
Yorkshire . . .
met by the current pharmaceutical provision- but this
should be captured within the PNA.
Th2/2017 Community Additional Information Main body of PNA Need an overall District Level Map of Pharmacies Main body of PNA;
dditional Fi
Pharmacy West additional Figure
Yorkshire

Q
«Q
D
=
\l
o




Snap Survey Summary Responses

Date Respondent Category Pharmacy Details/ Survey Response Ward Areas of PNA
Address(es)/ PNA Affected
Areas
1/12/2017 | Community Additional Comments P101 of the PNA states ‘Some pharmacies provide EHC in the over 16 year olds and Noted — Main body
Pharmacy West sexual health services as private services.” This is not correct as ellaOne can be of PNA
Yorkshire purchased over the counter and does not have an age restriction on its supply.

1/12/2017 Additional Comments The NHS England commissioned On Demand Availability of Specialist Drugs Noted — Main body
(Availability of Palliative Care Medicines) service is currently under review. An of PNA; Figures;
updated service will be in place from the 1st April 2018. This will include a new set of Maps
pharmacies providing the service. This expected change should be reflected within
the PNA.

Distance-selling pharmacies (DSP) cannot provide face-to-face essential services. It

therefore may be misleading to mark DSPs on the maps in the same way as a bricks
Community and mortar pharmacy as patients cannot access their services from the DSP physical
Pharmacy West location. It is suggested that DSPs are marked using a different shape / colour to
Yorkshire distinguish them from other community pharmacies.

The number of Healthy Living Pharmacies is set to rapidly increase by November
2017. The final published PNA should include updated figures of the number of HLP
pharmacies. The PNA must clearly state that the date that on which the information
was correct. Section 2.45 is regarding distance-selling pharmacies.

There is reference made to ePACT analysis of the number of prescriptions dispensed
by DSP outside of Kirklees. It would be helpful to add the date of this analysis.

All respondents found the information in the PNA easy to understand and all found that the purpose of the PNA was made clear. The table below details
comments submitted regarding points of accuracy, additional information needed in the PNA and other additional comments to be taken into account
prior to publication.

Information Updates through Formal Communications

The table below details a total of thirteen updates from the following organisations during the consultation period:
e Ten NHSE services and hours updates;
e One NHSE new Distance Selling pharmacy determination;

T/T abed

e One Local public health service update (stop smoking services);
One National healthy living pharmacy update.




Date Received Category Pharmacy Address(es) Details Ward Areas of PNA
From? Affected
Information Updates through Formal Communications
4/10/2017 NHSE New Distance Selling FEF73 TH Pharma Ltd T/A: 5A Providence Monday-Friday: 09:00 — 17:00 Batley East Main body, maps,
Pharmacy from 9/10/2017 Street, Batley, WF17 5QW Appendices
The Pharmacy Hub
12/10/2017 NHSE Change of Ownership 71 Halifax Road, Dewsbury, West Yorkshire Same hours and services as Dewsbury West None
24/11/2017 From Eightlands Ltd to WF13 4HD previous contractor
Mount Pleasant Healthcare
Ltd from 1/12/2017
Mount Pharmacy
3/11/2017 NHSE Supplementary Hours change FJD26, Boots Pharmacy, 32 Peel Street, Monday-Friday: 08:30 - 18:00 Colne Valley Amended prior to
Marsden, HD7 6BW Saturday: 09:00 - 13:00 consultation
5/10/2017 NHSE Change of Ownership The Old Salvation Army Hall, 74 Same hours and services as Birstall and None
Pure Health Medical Ltd to Blackburn Road, Birstall, Batley, WF17 9PL previous contractor Birkenshaw
Norchem Healthcare Ltd
Oakwood Pharmacy
15/11/2017 NHSE Core and Supplementary FJY97: Boots Pharmacy, Mirfield Health Core hours: Mirfield Appendix 11
Hours Change- Immediate Centre, Doctor Lane, Mirfield, WF14 8DU Monday to Friday: 09:00-13:00,
14:00-18:00
Supplementary hours:
Monday and Wednesday: 08:00-
13:30, 14:00-19:30
Tuesday, Thursday and Friday:
08:00-13:30, 14:00-18:15
21/11/2017 NHSE Supplementary Hours FDF32: Well Pharmacy, The Health Centre, Monday to Friday: 08:30-18:00 Denby Dale Amended prior to
Change - Immediate Wakefield Road, Scissett, HD8 9JL consultation
21/11/2017 NHSE Supplementary hours change FDW64: Blundells Pharmacy t/a Manor Monday to Friday: 09:00-18:00 Holme Valley Appendix 11
from 17/02/2018 Pharmacy, 59 Huddersfield Road, Holmfirth, Saturday: 09:00-14:00 South
HD9 3JH Sunday: Closed
24/11/2017 NHSE NUMSAS Update plus Pilot 3 new, 2 no longer signed up Appendix 13; main
extension for additional 6 body PNA text
months
24/11/2017 NHSE FLU Update plus extension of 11 new, 6 x no longer signed up Appendix 13; main
provision to Care workers body PNA text
28/11/2017 Kirklees PH | Stop Smoking Service Update Appendix 13; Figure
U 3
(5/11/2017 NHSE Supplementary Hours FN687: Pharmacy Care Plus Ltd, t/a Shahs Monday to Thursday: 09:00-18:30 Liversedge and Amended prior to
0] Change - Immediate Pharmacy, 69 Valley Road, Liversedge, WF15 Friday: 09:00-18:00 Gomersal consultation

6DL

cl1




Epact:
PH:
NHSE:

NUMSAS:

PNA:
T/A:

¢/ T obed

Acronyms
Electronic Prescribing and Cost
Public Health
NHS England
NHS Urgent Medicines Supply Advanced Service PNA: Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment
Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment
Trading As



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10:

KIRKLEES HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD

MEETING DATE: 14" December 2017

TITLE OF PAPER: Proposals for Improving the Integrated Governance Arrangements for
Commissioning Health and Social Care in Kirklees

1. Purpose of paper

To seek the Boards support for the emerging proposals for integrated commissioning governance
arrangements.

2. Background

The Health and Wellbeing Board received a report on the Case for Change for integrated
commissioning and provision within Kirklees in June 2017 (here). The Board endorsed the
direction of travel set out in the case for change and supported the development of a programme
plan to further develop and implement the proposed approach.

This paper provides an update on the emerging proposals for integrated commissioning
governance arrangements, how they relate to existing arrangements, and what changes are
proposed to them to deliver our ambitions for integrated commissioning and provision.

3. Proposal

The existing integrated commissioning arrangements are shown in Figure 1.

Figure 1 Existing Integrated Commissioning Arrangements
Kirklees H&WB
\
H&WB Chief Officer
Group

Integrated Better Care Fund
Commissioning Exec Partnership Board

Integrated Integrated Integrated Integrated
Commissioning Commissioning Commissioning Commissioning
Group Group Group Group

Partnership Forums/Other Meetings

The existing arrangements have worked well over the past few years however; there is a need to
review them in light of the agreement to move towards greater integration. The Chief Officer
Group (COG) has not met for several months and the other integrated commissioning
arrangements need to be re-focused to ensure they are aligned with priority areas of work going
forward.

Page|

175


https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=159&MId=5371&Ver=4

We do not want to create additional layers of governance arrangements or to add in additional
elements to the existing arrangements. The proposal is to combine the functions of the Integrated
Commissioning Executive (ICE) and the Better Care Fund Partnership Board (BCFPB) into a new
Integrated Commissioning Board. The existing terms of reference and membership of these 2
groups have considerable overlap, although the BCFPB has specific duties in relation to managing
the Better Care Fund.

The existing terms of reference of ICE and the BCFPB already include many of the responsibilities
that are required to move forward with integrated commissioning so it is a case of refining these
for future use rather than wholesale change. In addition the membership will be reviewed in light
of the fact that COG no longer meets and changes in the senior roles within the Council and CCGs.

In addition the Integrated Commissioning Groups (ICGs) that currently sit below ICE will be
reviewed with the intention of creating programmes of work which align to the priority areas set
by the Integrated Commissioning Board. Some of these are likely to be covered by the existing
ICGs, some will be new and some of them may be time limited to focus on specific priorities. The
intention is also to review the wider commissioning capacity within the Council and the CCGs to
create aligned teams of staff that work across organisation boundaries to deliver on these
programmes of work. The proposed arrangements are shown in Figure 2.

Figure 2: Proposed Integrated Governance Arrangements

Kirklees H&WB

Integrated Commissioning
Board

Programmes of Work

MR RELMEE NI

Partnership Forums/Other Meetlings

The proposal is that the new arrangements will be in place from April 2018, and will initially
operate in safe mode which includes undertaking the existing functions of ICE and BCFPB. In
addition the Integrated Commissioning Board will:

e Build on existing trust, working relationships and confidence
e Develop the integrated commissioning:
0 Strategy and plan
0 Outcomes framework
0 Unified approach to quality
0 Unified approach to engagement and public involvement
e Receive finance, performance and quality information on existing services
e Agree the scope for integrated provision and manage delivery on early initiatives
e Agree the aspiration for further pooling of commissioning funds

Paage
L] v\.uv

176



The Integrated Commissioning Board will therefore be responsible for a number of important
functions which both continue to deliver on existing plans whilst developing plans to further
integrate commissioning arrangements and the overseeing of plans for integrated provision. Any
further pooling of funds is envisaged to be covered by existing or new s75 arrangements and the
Integrated Commissioning Board would then be in place to manage these alongside the existing
Better Care Fund.

4. Financial Implications

There are no financial implications arising directly from this paper.

5. Sign off

Carol McKenna, Chief Officer Greater Huddersfield and North Kirklees CCGs

6. Next Steps

If the Board approves the recommendations then terms of reference and proposed membership
for the Integrated Commissioning Board will be drafted. These will be iterated through the
existing Integration Steering Group during December 2017 and January 2018.

They will be shared in draft with the Health and Wellbeing Board members during February 2018
with a view to them being presented to the Board for formal approval in March 2018. The
Integrated Commissioning Board will then operate in ‘safe mode’ from April 2018.

7. Recommendations
The Board is asked to:
e Support the proposed changes to integrated governance arrangements

e Note the next steps in developing these arrangements, including further discussion and
approval at future Board meetings.

8. Contact Officer

Steve Brennan, SRO Working Together, steve.brennan@northkirkleesccg.nhs.uk, 01924 504913

Page 177


mailto:steve.brennan@northkirkleesccg.nhs.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2: Minutes of previous meeting
	3: Interests
	7: Kirklees Safeguarding Adults Board 2016/17 Annual Report
	Item 7a KSAB-Annual-Report-2016-17-final

	8: Children & Adolescence Mental Health Service (CAMHS) Local Transformation Plan Refresh
	Item 8a. Kirklees Future in Mind Transformation Plan Draft 2017 Refresh  31 Oct

	9: Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment Post Consultation
	Item 9a. Kirklees PNA CONSULTATION RESULTSv4 61217

	10: Proposals for Integrated governance arrangements for Commissioning Health and Social Care in Kirklees

